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Definitions

B

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following

meanings:

RAFHR - RXESBREN - THFARAEBUTIES !

“Acting in Concert Parties”

[—EITEAL]
“AGM”

[RFBAFRE ]
“Articles of Association”
[ARER]
“associate(s)”

R -INI

“Beijing OriginWater”

[ERE KR

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[EEg
“Chairman”
[EfF ]

“Company”, “our Company” or
“Yunnan Water”

[ARAT) I Erk

“connected person(s)”
[BIEA L]
“controlling shareholder(s)”

MR ER

Mr. Liu Xujun, Mr. Huang Yunjian and Mr. Wang Yong, members of the senior
management of the Company

FAATRSREEERERNELRE - BEERAERIERE

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held on 13 June
2018, or any adjournment thereof

AARBRZB-NFRATZHETRREFRERETAMES
the articles of association of the Company
RARNAEBERME

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB L mRAETZANEE

Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (It RE KRR BB E R 2 7)), a joint
stock limited liability company established in the PRC, the shares of which are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300070)

ERBKNERERODBRAT - RPBERINRODERLT » HROERIIEFESK
Fir £ (B 248355 - 300070)

the Board of Directors of the Company
RRBNESS

the Chairman of the Board

ExEXE

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (ErKIERERHER D F), a joint stock
limited liability company established in the PRC, the H Shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6839)

ERABREBROGERDT  RARFMERZORGOERLT - HEHREBRZFTER
L (AR5 - 6839)

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB LR BT 2 iEE
has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BEA EmRAETZANERR

EEABRERDERDA
2017 FE®/E
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Definitions

B

“Corporate Governance Code”

[ZEER<FA
“Director(s)”

&%)

“Domestic Share(s)”

[RER]
“ESG”
[ESG

“ESG Guide”
[ESG#55! ]

“Group” or “our Group”

[#5M |
“H Share(s)”

THER )
“HKS”
(387
“HKFRS”

[ &8I BIRELER]
“Hong Kong”
[&E ]

“IPO”

[BERARMEE]

the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report, as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

EmRAIM ST RN EEEETAREEERR
the director(s) of our Company
KARES

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share
capital of the Company which are subscribed for or credited as paid up in RMB

UARBEZBRIMEMENARAREAHEREEARE1.00 THEBHITER
environmental, social, and governance

BIR - HERER

environmental, social and governance guide

RIR - 2 RERIES

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time
RABRETEHHELQE

the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share
capital of the Company which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

EBXAER LA RTARATEREEARE1.00 THEBTEER
Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EREEERET

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations promulgated by the Hong Kong Accounting
Standard Board

BEMBREED  BEEESTEARBESHENEZESSEMNRE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFRITHE

the initial public offering of the Company’s Shares through the Stock Exchange in
May 2015

—2-EEEAAATRGEBRRFAYERABEE

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2017



“Listing Date”

[Em ]

“Listing Rules”
[ Em#RAl]
“Model Code”

M A

“PRC” or “China”

[E

“Prospectus”

[ERER ]

“Reporting Period”
[R5 ]

“RMB”

[AR®]

“SFO”

[ 325 RS iRA
“Share(s)”

[
“Shareholder(s)”

[R3R

Definitions

B

27 May 2015, being the date on which the H Shares were listed and from which
dealings in the H Shares of the Company commenced on the Stock Exchange

—E-RFERASTER  MHRREBEXA EmRFEREEN A
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Bt praE s E AR Al

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

LR RIS FEN EH B ITAESETES RS NWEESTE

the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report only,
excluding Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China and Taiwan

FEARANE - EXAHEMS - TEEEE hEARANBRRMBSHTHRER S

the prospectus of the Company dated 13 May 2015, issued in relation to the IPO
and listing of H Shares on the Stock Exchange

AR -AFAAT=REHERARBRERHRNEIF LHHNARTBRE

2

the 12-month period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017
H-_ZE—tF-—A—HBE=F—tF+-A=+—-HLE+=EAHH
Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

TEEEEBARE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BRI 571 B(RE R ERA)

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, including the H Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)

AATRRAFEREEARE1.00 THEER > BREHRRAER
the holder(s) of the Share(s)
ROFEA

EEABRERDERDA
2017 FE®/E
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Definitions

B

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 32 Fr |
“subsidiary(ies)
[~
“Supervisor(s)”

&%

“Supervisory Committee”

[BEEZEEE ]

“Undertaking Shareholders”

[ BAEGEIIIRER
“YMC'”

[ErHREHE |

“Yunnan Province Water”

EE S
o
1%

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BBMERZMBERATE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB L mRRAETZANEE

supervisor(s) of the Company

RRBNES

the supervisory committee of the Company

RAANESBEES

namely YMCI, Yunnan Province Water and Beijing OriginWater

AEFHIREE - EHEKBRIEREKE

Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd (EE & W HZRREE
B A PBR AT ) - a limited liability company established in the PRC and is the sole
shareholder of Yunnan Province Water, the Company’s controlling shareholder and

one of the Undertaking Shareholders

EFEATERREEEBRAT - RPERINEREELARERFEKBHIME—

BRR - BADFERRREER —BHERBHRR

Yunnan Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (EE& KK EZREGR L

F]), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC

EHEKBERREBRLR  RAOBEEMRLNEREELRF

per cent

Bt

* For identification purposes only

* EREE
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Annual Report 2017



The Board is pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

Financial Highlights

FERE

ESEMAEMTIMBRHE :

Year ended 31 December

BE+_-_B=1+—HLEE

2017 2016

—FE—tf —E—RE Percentage

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 Change

AR®FT ARBTT 28

Revenue Uz 5,142,242 2,865,890 79.4%
Gross profit EF 1,304,724 879,500 48.3%
Profit before income tax PS8 a R 702,244 516,734 35.9%
EBITDA (Note) BRAIE - BIE - TE 1,664,973 946,346 75.9%

RESHAT BRI (M)

Profit for the year F A= F 544,000 414,266 31.3%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%)  BRERELEHR=E (%) 8.14% 5.72% N/ATERA
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BREFRBRA(ARET) 0.354 0.325 8.9%

Note: EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of interests, income
taxation, depreciation and amortisation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s audited profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB422.8 million (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately RMB388.1 million).

Basic earnings per share for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMBO0.354 per share (for the year ended 31 December 2016: basic
earnings approximately RMBO0.325 per share), the calculation of such
basic earnings per share amount is based on the profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company, and the weighted
average number of Shares of approximately of 1,193,213,000 (2016:
1,193,213,000) in issue during the Reporting Period.

The Board recommended the payment of the final dividend of RMB0.13
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2017 (for the year
ended 31 December 2016: RMBO.1 per ordinary share). The Company
did not declare or pay any interim dividend or special dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

The AGM will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, 13 June 2018
at conference room, 5th Floor, Yunnan Water, 2089 Haiyuan Bei
Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan Province, the PRC. The
proposed final dividend is subject to consideration and approval by the
Shareholders at the AGM.

MiE : BRFIS - BR - ITERBHENERF D
MERFS - AR - TEREBHEATZ
REERRF -

RAEABERR  AEELEZEAQ AL
BRERREMEFNNAARE 4228878
T(BEZE—AR"E+A=1+—HILE
E Y ARH381HET) °

WREHABREABINAE AR 0.354
TBE-_ZE—-—R"EF+-A=+—HL
FE: BREFNNAARY0325T)
ZEREAREFNSENDEAQATEER
% R FEAL & A R 3R 5 HA A B B TRV N fE
T RR 49 £91,193,213,000 R (=& — 5
£ :1,193,213,000 %) R A EEFE -

BEESERRBREBE-_E—+tF+=A
St-HLEFENRERESREER
AREBOIBT(BE=ZE—~E+=A
=T—HLEFE:  SREBRAREO01
L) BEZZE—+tHE+ZA=+—HIt
FE > AR BREIRS X AHEM P H R
BEHR4FRIRE -

BRRBAFAEENR-ZF-N\FRAT=
REB=)EFTREREFEEZERSE
ESBAT 1S 31 10 5 3% iR 4L B 2089 57
ERABREREET - EERERE
ARBRRRRRBFASEZRBER
AEE -

EEABRERDERDA
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Chairman statement

ER|E

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the
Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

In 2017, China’s economy recorded stable and better-than-expected
growth, showing obvious sign of shifting from a stage of high-speed
growth towards one of high-quality development. China has attached
the greatest importance than ever to the cause of environmental
protection. On the one hand, it strengthened supervision and law
enforcement of environmental protection while increasing cost of
environmental violation and non-compliance to create a more equal
development opportunity for law-abiding enterprises and return a
better environment for the people. On the other hand, it implemented
environmental protection tax, promulgated the 13th Five-Year Plan,
and used top-level means such as laws and planning to guide and
accelerate the healthy development of the environmental protection
industry. As a result, responsibilities and opportunities coexisted for the
environmental protection companies.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

*E

Yang Tao #5i&

Chairman

SRR AR

FAERRESRE  MAREXREEE
EZE—tHF+Z A=+ —-HILBMEF
B2
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MERBR  RROFENEFEKBILF -



With keen insight, forward-looking strategic layout and the focus on
the Group’s positioning as a “municipal environmental protection
integrated services provider”, the Board actively leveraged favorable
policies and grasped market opportunities to led the Group to continue
promotion of the two core businesses of water and solid waste
treatment, expansion into domestic and foreign markets, enhancement
of technological R&D together with refined management, maintaining
a rapid growth momentum of operating performance amidst fierce
market competition.

In a period of promising development opportunities for the
environmental protection industry, the Group continued to enhance
and strengthen its core businesses of water and solid waste treatment
segments, and focused on the layout of the entire industry chain for
continuous expansion of market size. During the Reporting Period,
under the leadership of the Board, the Group actively seized policy
opportunities and closely focused on the annual business plan, with
operating results showing a development trend of steady growth.
During the Reporting Period, the Group realized total annual revenue
of approximately RMB5,142.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 79.4% as compared with approximately RMB2,865.9
million of last year. Profit for the year was approximately RMB544.0
million, representing an increase of approximately 31.3% as compared
with approximately RMB414.3 million of last year. Through investments
in new construction and equity acquisition, the Group has owned 170
water treatment projects with total treatment volume of approximately
4,712,700 tonnes per day. The Group’s business segment of solid
waste treatment, an important focus of strategic development of
the Group, experienced rapid expansion during the year. As of 31
December 2017, the Group owned 14 solid waste treatment projects
with treatment capacity of approximately 2,211,000 tonnes per year.

On the basis of the Group’s good operating results and financial
position, and considering the long-term sustainable development of the
Group, the Board proposes to distribute a final dividend of RMB0.13
to Shareholders to repay their long-term support and contribution
to the Company. Distribution of the final dividend shall be subject to
approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. The final dividend is
expected to be paid on or about 27 July 2018 (Friday).

Chairman statement

ERE®E

BEXSUSHAERD - AR K
R BBICEBRRANET - ERIED
SHB > TEAEEERIHTREGS
AR IR - AR I KIS M B BE R
EMAROES  AREARITS =
FHE M R AMB A EEAE - EHA
MHERFER  REFTEEXAREE

AHRRELZEREUENEREREEE
RE B E M A MR KENEEREER
REOEBDI  BZHETEELEMR
B THEBEATSRE - RBEHR
AEBEESSNEET  BHRICER
THE BRERFELENE K&
XEEEETERNERES - KEH
RBEEHABEEZELAUNSIIARYE
51422 BB BE—FEZEIAR
¥2865.9ABIERANT79.4% ; FRE
MPAS440B BT BRE—FEXEN
ARBA43EETERN31.3% « K
EEEBREFENBREVBESR
EEAKEEIEE170ME ST EREE
#3EA4,712,700M8 B - KEBEBH
BEREUIEENEEEEYRIEEK
W EREELET PRERMEER -
BE—ZT—t&+=-A=+—HIt B
BEERBEEEE 147 EEHRELS
2,211,000 £ o

ERAEERFHEE XA UK iR
no ERIAAEENRYPAUSERE
EXTSRORRRERBREERAR
#0.137x » AEHRKERBHYARRFH
XEFMER o RIS AR A R BN
ARNRRBF ARG LERRMAE - K
HRERBENR-—ZF-NFLtAZTL
B(ERH)EREIRA
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Chairman statement

ER|E

In 2018, the Group will continue to strive for technology research and
development, market development, cost control and human resources
management etc.; maintain and improve the investment decision-
making procedures, strengthen performance assessment while
preventing and controlling various risks to promote a new stage of
development.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to the management and employees of the Group for
their loyal and due diligence, and also to our Shareholders, our Board
members, investors and partners for their long-term supports. The
Company will continue to create better returns for Shareholders with
excellent performance and contribute to the sustainable development
of society and the environment.

Yang Tao
Chairman

ey

Kunming, the PRC
26 March 2018

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Chief Executive Officer

China’s environmental protection industry has witnessed tremendous
changes in 2017. Many important events during the year have left
an indelible mark on China’s environmental protection history: The
promulgation of the “13th Five-Year Plan” for National Standard of
Environmental Protection, the National Environmental Supervision
(R IR R B &), Reply of the State Council on the Plan for Water
Pollution Prevention in Key River Basins (Bl # Pz #it B & &R =7k 55 3
Fr’Aa#R El) and so on. The report of the 19th National Congress of the
Communist Party of China explicitly pointed out the speeding up of
ecological civilization system reform and the construction of a beautiful
China. During the “13th Five-Year Plan” period, ecological civilization
construction and ecological environment protection achieved
remarkable results. Furthermore, the Nineteenth National Congress has
also proposed a series of new ideas, new requirements, new goals and
new deployments for practicing green development.

TR S

TE#EH
Mr. Yu Long FiE

“EtERPERERESELRE

BN —F FZEESHEE-
FHEPERRELET T REBEXN—
F EARRREE =R IBRABIE
fi - PREGREE  BBERABBEIR
BATREEREE - PEAEE TN
REBEPAEIEL - RERECHEFIK
E oEREXEFE- -[t=H 8B &£
REYARRANERRIRREBNEE -
o THARBEITHREERRERT
—RIFEBR - HEXR - HERNHB
=2 o
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
THARBRE

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT

In 2017, based on business models such as government-enterprise
cooperation, investment in high-quality Public-Private-Partnership
(“PPP”) projects, acquisition of high-quality domestic and overseas
businesses and so on, the Group continued to accelerate the pace of
project expansion and market deployment by entering into several new
projects in provinces such as Xinjiang, Hebei, Henan, Shaanxi, Fujian
and Guangdong and winning several large-scale PPP projects for water
environment comprehensive treatment and solid waste treatment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group also continued to pay attention
to and lay out the overseas “Blue Ocean” market, steadily promoted
implementation and operation of overseas new projects in places such
as Thailand and Indonesia, grasping the opportunities brought about by
the implementation of the state’s “Belt and Road” initiative to enhance
the economic efficiency of the Group.

TECHNOLOGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group has adhered to a technology-driven development model
and built its core strengths and competitiveness through technology
research and development and reserves. In 2017, based on the
strategic development direction of “municipal environmental protection
integrated services provider” and its requirement for technological
advancement, the Group established a technology research and
development center to promote and optimize the MBR (membrane-
bioreactor) technology and at the same time accelerated research and
development of patented technologies such as waste gasification and
sludge carbonization, achieving initial results in industrial application in
terms of equipment manufacture. Meanwhile, during implementation of
the projects, the Group integrated and applied advanced technologies
such as precision aeration systems, solid waste retort technology,
bio-char application, and total nitrogen removal to reduce costs and
improve efficiency. Through a series of technical R&D and application
initiatives, the Group further enhanced its service standards such as
core technology output and system integration, which has enhanced its
market competitiveness and profitability.

FINANCING

In 2017, based on overall corporate development trend and fund-raising
plans, the Group fully explored financing resources to broaden funding
channels, and expanded credit cooperation with banks through models
such as matching direct financing with indirect financing and combining
traditional credit with innovative debt financing to enrich bank types of
financing. Meanwhile, the Group continued to explore direct financing
markets to enhance its influence and innovativeness in the bond issuance
market, effectively achieve optimal adjustment of the overall financing
structure, and provide long-term and stable financial guarantees for
corporate development. During the Reporting Period, the Company has
successfully issued RMB0.55 billion of “green corporate bonds” which

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

was the first case of green bonds issued by an environmental protection
industry company in Yunnan Province, enhancing its influence in the
innovative financing market. The Group has also successfully issued
RMB1.2 billion of perpetual capital instruments (“renewable green
corporate bond”) which has optimized the financial structure; and has
successfully issued RMB1.0 billion of non-public corporate bonds which
has diversified the Group’s financing channels.

In respect of overseas financing, on the basis of consolidating its
current US dollar debt structure align with continuing overseas
operation and the investments of construction, the Group steadily
established foreign currency financing policy to form a multi-channel,
diversified financing model which has strengthened the linkage and
collaboration between the Company and subsidiaries in the PRC and
overseas.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In 2017, due to expanding business scale of the Group and in order
to increase efficiency and enhance synergy, the Group built a regional
centralised management model based on the layout of projects and
has established management hubs for greater regions such as Xinjiang
Region, Shandong Region, Northeast Region, Southwest Region, East
China Region and North China Region; and strengthened synergies
across large projects within large regions to carry out centralized
regional market development and scientific regional management.
Under this strategy, the Group continued to set up provincial platform
company that to integrates functions of financing, investment and
project management to enhance effectiveness such as standardised
and centralised project financing and operation management.

The Group strived to enhance the standard of refined management,
regulate and improve procedures for internal control of business,
strictly implement internal control construction and implementation,
and incorporate them into the assessment of subordinate enterprises
and employees. The Group attached great importance to safety and
quality control, and continuously carried out safety inspections and
rectifications throughout the year to prevent duplication and eliminate
hidden dangers.

BUSINESS RISKS

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s major business risks included:
stringent environmental protection regulation, centralized release of
orders amidst intensifying industry competition which might result
in fierce competition at a lower price and profit margins for new win
projects; PPP projects that showed trend of large-size and scalable with
longer investment cycle and lower yield rate; tightened market liquidity
and rising overall financing costs which have increased the financial
costs of businesses and so on. Facing with new challenges and issues,
the Group adhered with a rigorous and prudent, to effectively control and
minimize the risks and ensure the stable development of the business
through a series of targeted systematic approaches.
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TR S

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND FUTURE PROSPECT

Looking forward to 2018, the Group will continue to position itself as
a “municipal environmental protection integrated services provider”
to strengthen and enhance the operation standard and competitive
strength of the two core businesses of water and solid waste treatment,
actively expand domestic and foreign markets, and strengthen its
internal control and external risk prevention capabilities for achieving
stable operation and sustainable development of the businesses.

In terms of new businesses, the Group plans to adopt a one-stop
sludge carbonization technological solution to treat disposal of sludge
generated during waste water treatment process for achieving reduced
pollution, harmless treatment, stabilized disposal and resources
recycling so as to enhance target and price and increase revenue;
actively dive into village garbage disposal market through research and
development of waste gasification technology as well as manufacture
and promotion of small-scale environmental protection equipment;
and promote third party industrial wastewater management and
environmental sanitation business to create new point of growth for
water and solid waste treatment segments.

As such, the Group will increase investments in technology research
and development, striving to grasp core technologies and seek
advantage of equipment manufacturing integration while enhancing
market competitiveness and profitability. The Group also plans to
establish a technical service center for talent recruitment, solution
design, technical support, process debugging, personnel training and
etc. to serve all projects of the Group.

In 2018, the Group plans to set up a cost management center to strictly
control costs for construction, operation, and management of projects
and to enhance economic efficiency through effective measures
and approaches. As a result, the Group will establish an operation
database to support refined management, and will promote and apply
technologies such as precision aeration and decentralized photovoltaic
power generation in project implementation to further save energy
consumption, reduce operating costs and increase investments return
rates.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In recent years, with the introduction of several national policies that
made a profound impact on the environmental protection industry,
the environmental protection industry has ushered in a period of rapid
development. In 2017, the 19th National Congress of the Communist
Party of China clearly stated in its report that “We will create a market-
based system for green technology innovation, develop green finance,
and spur the development of energy-saving and environmental
protection industries as well as clean production and clean energy
industries.” Thus, currently, our country’s “determination of, effort
put in and the effectiveness of ecological civilization construction
are unprecedented, and the ecological environment has significantly
improved.” The environmental protection industry provides reliable
technology, equipment, engineering and service support for the
construction of ecological civilization and environmental protection,
and has made significant contributions to improving the ecological
environment quality.

Prevention and control of water pollution is an important aspect of
ecological civilization construction, and water pollution control is also
one of the areas of which environmental pollution control was first
introduced in China. During the “13th Five-Year Plan” period, China has
continuously putting more attention on control of water pollution, and
the control work has entered a stage of comprehensive and intensive
implementation. At this stage, sufficient attention has been given to
wastewater treatment across industrial, urban or rural area.
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In the field of water treatment, the State Council issued the “13th Five-
Year Plan for Ecological Environmental Protection” [+ =& |4£ /& &
B RE 4 E))) in November 2016, in which the regulations on pollution
control in industrial parks are clearly set out: “The implementation of
the change of deadline for enterprises in key industries to meet the
emission standards, and the improvement of centralized wastewater
treatment facilities in industrial parks”. In December 2016, the National
Development and Reform Commission (BIR#RE MK EZEE) and the
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development ({E /5 FiH 4052 5% 56)
jointly issued the “13th Five-Year Plan for National Urban Wastewater
Treatment and Recycling Facilities Construction” [ + =% 12 EH &S
KEE K BER ARIEERIFEZ), which proposed by the end of 2020,
constructed areas in cities at prefecture level and above shall basically
achieve full collection and full treatment of wastewater, and those in
county towns shall achieve no less than 85%. According to the above
plan, during the “13th Five-Year Plan” period, the water treatment
industry in China will exceed the market scale of RMB1 trillion, and the
market has huge capacity and numerous investment opportunities. The
addition, upgrading and reconstruction market capacity of municipal
wastewater reaches RMB193.8 billion, the municipal reclaimed water
market capacity reaches RMB15.8 billion, and the market potential for
sponge city construction reaches RMB400 billion.

In terms of solid waste treatment, the report of the 19th National
Congress of the Communist Party proposed that it is necessary to
“strengthen solid waste and garbage treatment”, and this is the first
time that solid waste treatment was mentioned the report of National
Congress of the Communist Party. This means that China has placed
unprecedented emphasis to solid waste treatment has risen to a
national strategy and has become an indispensable and important
part of ecological civilization construction. In April 2017, 14 ministries,
including the National Development and Reform Commission, jointly
released the “Cyclic Development Leads Action” (({& & % 8 5| B 1T
&) )), which has clarified the responsibility and target of China’s major
waste recycling rate, comprehensive utilization rate of general industrial
solid waste, comprehensive utilization rate of crop stalks, urban kitchen
waste resource treatment rate and other indicators.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The year 2017 was the first year for the full implementation of the
“13th Five-Year Plan” for eco-environmental protection in China.
Driven by the newly promulgated national policies, enormous market
opportunities and development potential will be brought to the future
of the water and solid waste treatment industries. The Board expects
that, the development, scale and growth of these industries will further
expand and investors in the capital market will pay more attention to
the environmental protection industry.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECT

In 2018, the Group will continue to uphold its strategy of becoming one
of the leading municipal environmental protection integrated services
providers in the PRC. While adhering to the development of its water
business, the Group will fully develop solid waste treatment business
and focus on its key businesses such as wasterwater treatment, water
supply, solid waste treatment and relevant professional services, make
use of market-oriented operation to allocate resources reasonably and
maximize efficiency in order to build environmentally friendly cities.
The Group will closely monitor and act in line with national strategies
and industry trends, and actively formulate and adjust its strategic and
business planning and investment plans while continuously improving
its operation, technology and project management levels, consolidating
its target markets and enhancing its competitive edge, so as to
ensure that the Group will move forward in the ever-changing market
environment, and become a well-known large-scale environmental
protection integrated services provider in the PRC and overseas.

In order to ensure the smooth realization of the strategic objectives,
the Group will continue to strengthen its work of “increasing revenue
and reducing expenditure, reducing cost and increasing efficiency”
in the future, and will set up cost centre, research and development
centre and technical service centre in its organizational structure.
The main responsibilities of the cost centre include unifying control
and management of all costs and expenses of the Group in project
construction, operation and operation management aspects. The
research and development centre aims to enhance the innovation
and research and development of the core technologies of the Group
including technologies for waste gasification, sludge carbonization
and mobile sludge treatment devices, and bring new drivers for profit
growth to the Group. The construction of the technical service centre
will provide effective technical support for the design and process
commissioning of all water and solid waste treatment projects of the
Group, and will provide a professional and systematic training and
learning platform for project technicians.
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BEEENR®ER DM

In the meantime, the Group will actively seek external financing both in
the PRC and overseas in 2018. Domestically, the Group will continue
to explore diversified financing channels and gradually spread the
financing entities over subsidiaries in regional centres across the PRC
in an effort to leverage the advantage of the performance of financial
markets in different regions, share the financing pressure of the
headquarters and effectively reduce financing costs. As for overseas
financing, an offshore financing platform comprising Yunnan Water
(Hong Kong) Company Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and a subsidiary in Singapore as a financial center will be set
up, in order to open up financing channels in overseas debts markets
in addition with bank borrowings and other offshore financial liabilities
to support the overseas investments and construction projects of the
Group.

In order to achieve sustainable development, the Group will pay close
attention to the implementation of the “The Belt and Road” strategy and
the significant opportunity of the PRC giving support to build Yunnan
into a center radiating South Asia and Southeast Asia. By utilizing
the advantages of the Company in capital and technology, the Group
will further explore overseas blue ocean markets and form a strategic
layout whereby Hong Kong would be an important base radiating
countries (regions) including Thailand, Indonesia, Singapore, Malaysia,
Australia and Taiwan. The Company will continuously seek investments
in and the acquisition of well-established large-scale environmental
protection business opportunities within the PRC and overseas with
advanced technology.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is one of the leading integrated service providers in the
municipal environmental protection industry in China. The Group mainly
adopts the Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”), Build-OwnOperate (“BOO”),
Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT”), Transfer-OwnOperate (“TOO”),
Build and Transfer (“BT”), Engineering-ProcurementConstruction
(“EPC”), Rehabilitate-Operate-Transfer (“ROT”) and Operation and
Maintenance (“O&M”) models to provide customized and integrated
turnkey solutions for water supply, wastewater treatment and solid
waste treatment as well as system integration services of core
technologies to customers. The Group’s businesses are carried out
in China and the Southeast Asian countries, the Group’s principal
businesses comprise five major segments, namely, wastewater
treatment, water supply, solid waste treatment, construction and sales
of equipment and others.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s water related projects had the
total daily treatment capacity of approximately 4,712,700 tonnes,
representing an increase of approximately 78.9% as compared
to the total daily treatment capacity of 2,634,000 tonnes as at 31
December 2016. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s solid waste
treatment related projects had the total annual treatment capacity
of approximately 2,211,000 tonnes, representing an increase of
approximately 63.8% as compared to the total annual capacity of
1,350,000 tonnes as at 31 December 2016.

The Group has been closely following the national policies and actively
searching opportunities brought upon by the PPP projects introduced by
the Chinese government to advance the development of PPP. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had been awarded tenders of more than 10
PPP projects, for example the project for the construction of the third,
fourth and sixth sluices on Chengdu reach (Jinma River) of Minjiang
River and the comprehensive treatment of the black and odorous
water in Wenjiang District, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, the PRC,
the project for the comprehensive utilization of water resources and
integration of urban and rural sanitation in Luo Yuan County, Fujian
Province, and the project for environment upgrade and ecological
restoration works for Yanjin lake within Chishui river areas. The total
investment amount of the above-mentioned PPP projects amounted to
approximately RMB10 billion with business involving water treatment,
solid waste treatment, watercourse comprehensive treatment, reservoir
engineering and etc. Among which the total daily treatment capacity
of the water supply project is approximately 180,000 tonnes, the
total daily treatment capacity of the wastewater treatment project is
approximately 10,000 tonnes, the total annual treatment capacity of the
solid waste treatment project is approximately 318,000 tonnes.
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BEEENWE D

Wastewater Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 87 concession
wastewater treatment projects under construction and in operation,
including 5 BOO projects, 66 BOT projects, 2 TOO projects and 14 TOT
projects, with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 2,439,000
tonnes, representing an addition of 18 BOT projects and 2 TOT
projects year-on-year, and an increase in total daily treatment capacity
of approximately 1,060,000 tonnes compared with the year ended 31
December 2016, representing a growth rate of approximately 76.9%.

As at 31 December 2017, 77 concession projects with total daily
treatment capacity of approximately 2,184,000 tonnes had commenced
commercial operation, representing an addition of 1 BOO project, 15
BOT projects and 3 TOT projects year-on-year which commenced
commercial operation and an increase in total daily treatment capacity
of approximately 1,060,000 tonnes compared with the year ended 31
December 2016. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective
wastewater treatment utilization rate was approximately 74.6%, and
the average unit charge of wastewater treatment was approximately
RMB1.31 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2017, 10 concession projects with total daily
treatment capacity of approximately 255,000 tonnes had not
commenced commercial operation, representing an addition of 3 BOT
projects year-on-year. During the Reporting Period, 1 BOT project had
commenced commercial operation with a total daily capacity of 30,000
tonnes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Water Supply Projects

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 48 concession water
supply projects under construction or in operation, including 13 BOO
projects, 24 BOT projects and 11 TOT projects, with total daily capacity
of approximately 1,687,000 tonnes, representing an addition of 15 BOT
projects and 3 TOT projects year-on-year, and an increase in total daily
capacity of approximately 671,000 tonnes compared with the year
ended 31 December 2016, representing a growth rate of approximately
66.0%.

As at 31 December 2017, 32 concession projects with total daily
capacity of approximately 1,285,000 tonnes had commenced
commercial operation, representing an addition of 9 BOT projects,
1 BOO project and 2 TOT projects which commenced commercial
operation year-on-year and an increase in total daily capacity of
approximately 610,000 tonnes compared with the year ended 31
December 2016. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective
water supply utilization rate was approximately 71.1%, and the average
unit charge of water supply was approximately RMB2.39 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2017, 16 concession projects with total daily
capacity of approximately 402,000 tonnes had not commenced
commercial operation, representing an addition of 6 BOT projects and
1 TOT project year-on-year and an increase in total daily capacity of
approximately 62,000 tonnes. During the Reporting Period, 1 BOO
project with total daily capacity of 10,000 tonnes had commenced
commercial operation.

Solid Waste Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 11 solid waste treatment
projects with total annual treatment capacity of 1,747,000 tonnes, 8
of which with an annual treatment capacity of 1,168,000 tonnes had
commenced commercial operation and 3 of them with an annual
treatment capacity of 579,000 tonnes was under construction. As
compared to 31 December 2016, 2 additional solid waste treatment
projects commenced operation and 2 were under construction and the
total annual treatment capacity increased by 761,000 tonnes. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective solid waste treatment
utilization rate was approximately 88.7%.
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Construction and Sales of Equipment

The Group’s construction and sales of equipment segment comprises
BT projects, EPC projects and sales of equipment. As at 31 December
2017, the Group had a total of 11 BT projects, which were either under
construction and/or completed, among which income of 10 BT projects
were recognised during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 10 EPC projects,
representing an addition of 3 EPC projects as compared with 31
December 2016.

The Group engages in the production, sales and installation of
equipment for wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste
treatment and other infrastructure facilities. The major category of water
related equipment in the Group’s production is membrane. Most of the
membrane products are produced by the own plant of the Group.

Others

During the Reporting Period, the Group also undertook O&M projects
for wastewater treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment
facilities owned by third parties as well as provision of technical and
consultancy services in relation to environmental protection. As at
31 December 2017, the Group had 32 O&M projects, including 1
solidwaste treatment project with annual capacity of approximately
146,000 tonnes, 1 water supply project with daily capacity of
approximately 5,000 tonnes and 30 wastewater treatment projects with
daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 391,700 tonnes,
representing an addition of 7 wastewater treatment O&M projects,
and an increase in the total daily treatment capacity of approximately
173,000 tonnes as compared with 31 December 2016. During the
Reporting Period, two O&M agreements which include 1 soildwaste
treatment project with annual capacity of 219,000 tonnes and 1
wastewater treatment project with daily capacity of 15,000 tonnes were
terminated.

The Group newly entered into investments of several PPP projects
for integrated environmental protection industry during the Reporting
Period. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 8 PPP projects under
construction.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017

BERRBHEE
AREBNBERREHED HEEBT
BH -EPCEERREBHE - HE=-Z
—+tF+ZA=+—0  KEBEER
&/ HEXIMNBTEEH11E  HPR
WREAERINGEABTIEE £ 1018 -

MIRERR » ANEBEPCIEE #1018 -
HEZ-_E-—AFT+ZHBA=1+—HEL
i 3EEPCIER -

REBEE  HERTESKER - #
X BEREEEREMERRENRE
AEBREENKEEBRENTESE
ABEER - AXsEERBAEEB
BIREE-

Hity

AEEEREHANECRE=ZFEENT
KR - kK E R EIE R R R O&M
HE WRHTHREREABNE
MiRBEARE - BE=-FE—+tFE+=A4
=t+—H8 X&EE#HE32E0&MIER -
HEA1@EFEEE 5 146,000 M 1Y E B
HE 1ESHEEE L A5000M Y
HAKEEMRIOBEERSKEEENS
391,700 MERY;S/KRIBIER » HEZ T
—RE+ZA=+—HMELLIFE7ES
KEEOAMIEE ' SHEEBASRMAY
173,000 - RI|EHA > BFE1EFE
IBEE A 219,000 Y E EEREE B & 1
18 B BE ¥ 8L 1 A 15,000 Wi {55 7k B2 32 18
B R MIE O&M A& Ik -

AEBRBEPAFAREGESBRRIT
¥MWHETPPPEE - RZE—tF+=
B=+—H &~&5E#BE8{EEEPPP
HH -



Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of
approximately RMB5,142.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 79.4% as compared with the year ended 31 December
2016. The Group realized a net profit of approximately RMB544.0
million, representing an increase of approximately 31.3% as compared
with the year ended 31 December 2016. Profit attributable to the
ordinary shareholders of the Company was approximately RMB422.8
million, representing an increase of approximately 8.9% as compared
with 31 December 2016. Earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately RMB0.354.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased from approximately RMB2,865.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately
RMB5,142.2 million for the Reporting Period, representing an increase
of approximately 79.4%.

In respect of the business segments of the Group, revenue from
wastewater treatment tremendously increased by approximately
167.9% from approximately RMB628.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to approximately RMB1,683.5 million for the Reporting
Period. Revenue from water supply increased by approximately
86.8% from approximately RMB639.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to approximately RMB1,194.2 million for the
Reporting Period. Revenue from solid waste treatment increased by
approximately 34.8% from RMB425.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to approximately RMB573.5 million for the Reporting
Period. Revenue from construction and sales of equipment increased
by approximately 6.0% from approximately RMB1,109.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB1,175.8 million
for the Reporting Period. Revenue from other business increased from
approximately RMB63.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
to approximately RMB515.3 million for the Reporting Period.
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The increase in revenue from the wastewater treatment segment was
mainly attributable to (i) an increase in construction revenue generated
by certain ongoing and newly acquired wastewater treatment projects
under construction and rehabilitation; and (ii) certain wastewater
treatment projects newly acquired by the Group in 2017 which
generated operating revenue during the Reporting Period.

The increase in revenue from the water supply segment was mainly
attributable to (i) an increase in construction revenue generated
by certain onging and newly acquired water supply projects under
construction and rehabilitation; (ii) certain water supply projects newly
acquired by the Group in 2017 which realized revenue during the
Reporting Period; (iii) certain water supply projects under commercial
operation recorded an inspiring increase due to the increase of
utilization rate; and (iv) certain projects which acquired at the end of
2016 realized a full-year revenue during the Reporting Period.

The increase in revenue from the solid waste treatment segment was
mainly attributable to (i) certain solid waste treatment projects under
commercial operation acquired at the end of 2016 realized a full-year
revenue during the Reporting Period; (ii) existing solid waste treatment
projects recorded an increase in revenue which credit to the successful
market exploration; and (jii) the unit price inflation is approved by local
authority in certain province.

The increase in revenue from the construction and sales of equipment
segment was mainly attributable to (i) the ongoing construction of BT
projects; and (i) an increase in sales of equipment and technical and
cosultancy services for construction projects during the Reporting
Period.

The increase in revenue from other business segment was mainly
attributable to investments and constructions of PPP projects
which engage in urban water comprehensive treatment and other
environmental protection businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB3,837.5 million, representing an increase of approximately 93.2%
as compared with approximately RMB1,986.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The increase was primarily due to (i) an
increase in construction costs due to considerable construction of
several wastewater treatment, water supply and PPP projects; (ii) the
acquisitions of certain wastewater treatment, water supply and solid
waste treatment projects under commercial operation in 2017, resulting
in an increase in operating costs; and (jii) certain solid waste treatment
projects acquired at the end of 2016 achieved full-year operation in
2017.

Gross Profit Margin

For the Reporting Period, gross profit margin of the Group was
approximately 25.4%, resenting a decrease of approximately 17.3% as
compared with approximately 30.7% for the year ended 31 December
2016. The decrease was primarily due to (i) the gross profit margins
of certain newly acquired water supply and wastewater treatment
projects being slightly lower than the margins of the existing projects;
(i) the proportion of construction services of wastewater, water supply
and other PPP projects recorded a significant increase, resulting in
lower overall gross profit margin; and (jii) certain newly-operated BOO
projects recorded a lower gross profit margin as a result of a relatively
higher depreciation and other fixed costs against a lower initial unit
price and utilization rate.

Other Income

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other income of
approximately RMB309.6 million in aggregate as compared with
approximately RMB160.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
representing an increase of approximately 93.0%. The increase in
other income was mainly attributable to (i) the recovery of certain other
receivables which had been considered as unrecoverable in previous
years; and (ii) an increase in government grants during the Reporting
Period.
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Other Gains - net

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other net gains of
approximately RMB57.4 million, representing a substantial increase
as compared with approximately RMB8.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2016. The increase was mainly attributable to fair value
gains on the revaluation of a joint venture and an associate.

Selling Expenses

For the Reporting Period, selling expenses of the Group was
approximately RMB 39.5 million, representing an increase of
approximately 73.2% from approximately RMB22.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The increase was due to (i) an increase
in employee benefit expenses in solid waste treatment segment for
market expansion; and (ii) selling expenses from subsidiaries acquired
at the end of 2016 achieved full-year operation in 2017.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by RMB100.5
million from approximately RMB331.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to approximately RMB431.5 million for the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of approximately 30.4%. Increase
in administrative expenses was primarily due to the expansion of the
Group’s business by acquisitions, which resulted in an increase in
expenses such as employee remuneration expenses, depreciation and
amortization costs, and office expenses etc.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Costs - net

Net finance costs increased by RMB301.4 million from approximately
RMB220.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
approximately RMB521.5 million for the Reporting Period, representing
an increase of approximately 136.9%. The increase in net finance costs
was primarily due to increase in bank and other borrowings and the
issuance of multiple debt securities to support the Group’s business
expansion and operation.

The average interest rate on borrowings of the Group for the Reporting
Period was approximately 4.3% per annum, representing a decrease
as compared with approximately 4.7% per annum for the year ended
31 December 2016 due to the diversified financing channels.

Profit Before Income Tax

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded profit before
income tax of approximately RMB702.2 million for the Reporting
Period, representing an increase of approximately 35.9% as compared
with approximately RMB516.7 million recorded for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses increased by RMB55.7 million from approximately
RMB102.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 to
approximately RMB158.2 million for the Reporting Period, representing
an increase of approximately 54.3%. The weighted average effective
tax rate was approximately 20.1% (2016: 19.1%). The increase is
caused by a change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in
respective countries and regions applying different corporate income
tax rates.
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Profit and Net Profit Margin for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the Reporting Period increased
by RMB129.7 million from approximately RMB414.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB544.0 million for the
Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 31.3%.
Net profit margin decreased from approximately 14.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to approximately 10.6% for the Reporting
Period.

Receivables under Service Concession Arrangements

The Group’s receivables under service concession arrangements
increased by RMB2,219.9 million from approximately RMB2,891.2
million as at 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB5,111.1 million
as at 31 December 2017, representing an increase of approximately
76.8%. Such increase was primarily due to (i) the receivables of the
newly acquired concession projects during the Reporting Period; and
(i) investments on PPP projects under construction which led to an
increase in receivables under the service concession arrangements.

Trade and Other Receivables and Prepayments

The Group’s trade and other receivables and prepayments increased
by RMB1,988.9 million from approximately RMB4,216.1 million as
at 31 December 2016 to approximately RMB6,205.0 million as at 31
December 2017, representing an increase of approximately 47.2%.
Such increase was primarily due to (i) an increase in trade and other
receivables and prepayments from the newly acquired projects during
the Reporting Period; (ii) a continuous increase in scale of sales of
equipment and professional services in environmental protection
industry; and (jiii) an increase in prepayments for ongoing construction
projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s total cash balance decreased by RMB1,233.0 million
from approximately RMB4,129.9 million as at 31 December 2016
to approximately RMB2,896.9 million as at 31 December 2017,
representing a decrease of approximately 29.9%. Such decrease
was primarily due to the payment of acquisition consideration and
repayments of matured borrowings.

Trade and Other Payables

The Group’s trade and other payables increased by RMB1,621.1
million from approximately RMB2,907.6 million as at 31 December
2016 to approximately RMB4,528.7 million as at 31 December 2017,
representing an increase of approximately 55.8%. Such increase was
primarily due to (i) the considerable construction investments in newly
acquired PPP and ongoing BOT projects during the Reporting Period;
(ii) the increase in trade and other payables of the newly acquired
subsidiaries during the Reporting Period; and (iii) the increasing
procurement for EPC and sales of equipment and other operating
business.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB13,788.0 million (31 December 2016: approximately RMB8,298.5
million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had unsecured borrowings of
approximately RMB10,465.7 million (31 December 2016: approximately
RMB6,468.7 million), and secured borrowings of approximately
RMB3,322.3 million (31 December 2016: approximately RMB1,829.8
million).
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Perpetual capital instruments

During the Reporting Period, the Company issued perpetual capital
instruments with an aggregate proceeds of RMB1,200.0 million to a
financial institution in the PRC (for the year ended 31 December 2016:
RMB2,000.0 million); and redeemed perpetual capital instruments
amounted to RMB2,000.0 million from a financial institution in the
PRC (for the year ended 31 December 2016: nil). The perpetual capital
instruments have no maturity date, and the payments of distribution
can be deferred at the discretion of the Company. The profit
attributable to the holders of perpetual capital instruments for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was approximately RMB85.4 million (for the
year ended 31 December 2016: nil).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB1,633.4 million which were secured by the Group’s land use
rights, shares of subsidiaries (31 December 2016: borrowings of
approximately RMB688.5 million were secured by the Group’s land use
rights, shares of a subsidiary and a joint venture). As at 31 December
2017, the Group had borrowings of approximately RMB1,688.9 million
(31 December 2016: approximately RMB1,141.3 million) which were
secured by right of charges from concession projects of water supply,
wastewater treatment, solid waste treatment and BT projects.

Capital Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments increased by RMB3,266.5 million
from approximately RMB4,683.2 million as at 31 December 2016
to approximately RMB7,949.7 million as at 31 December 2017,
representing an increase of approximately 69.7%. Such increase was
primarily due to the Group’s increased investments in PPP projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total
capital) increased from approximately 36.52% as at 31 December 2016
to approximately 61.96% as at 31 December 2017. The increase in
gearing ratio was mainly due to the increased scale of debt financing
during the Reporting Period.

THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING (THE “IPO”) OF THE COMPANY
AND THE USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The H shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 27 May 2015. After completion of the IPO, the total number of
the Company’s H shares was 363,713,900 (including the H shares
converted from domestic shares on a one-for-one basis). The
proceeds from the IPO after deducting the relevant listing expenses
were approximately HK$1,739 million, the utilization of which is in line
with the information as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 13 May 2015. As at 31 December 2017, the Group has utilized
proceeds of approximately HK$1,736 million, and unutilized proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$3 million.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 5,302 employees (31
December 2016: 3,666). For the year ended 31 December 2017, staff
cost was approximately RMB411.4 million (for the year ended 31
December 2016: RMB264.3 million). The Group will strive to ensure that
the remuneration level of employees is in line with industry practices
and prevailing market conditions, and remunerations of employees will
be determined based on their performance. The remuneration package
provided to employees also includes basic and floating salaries,
discretionary bonus and staff benefits. The Group also provides
external and internal training programs for its employees. The Group
did not experience any significant labour disputes causing any material
impact on its normal business operations.
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Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
being settled in RMB, which is the functional currency of most of
the group entities. The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign
operations. Foreign exchange risk arises from the recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations
is managed primarily through financing activities denominated in the
relevant foreign currencies.

The group entities are exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign
currencies other than their functional currencies, primarily with respect
to the US dollars (“US$”), Euro (“EUR”) and Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”) (together “Non-functional Currencies”). The Group seeks to
limit its exposure to foreign currency risk by closely monitoring and
minimizing its net foreign currency position. Management considers
the fluctuations in exchange rates between the functional currencies of
respective group entities and Non-functional Currencies in which the
group entities conducts business will not have significant effect on the
Group’s financial position and results of operations.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Final Dividend

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of RMBO0.13 per
share (tax included) for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
proposed distribution of final dividend by the Company is subject to
approval at the forthcoming AGM. Upon approval, the final dividend will
be paid on or before 27 July 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

On 28 September 2017, the Company together with Xiamen
Anneng Construction Co., Ltd.* (B F9 Z £ 2 X B R 2 7)) and
Zhongnan Engineering Corporation Limited of PowerChina* (9
BERZEE TR HEREBRAT) were formally awarded
a PPP project in relation to the third, fourth and sixth sluices on
Chengdu reach (Jinma River) of Minjiang River and comprehensive
treatment of the black and odorous water in Wenjiang District,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, the PRC through public tender
by the Water Affairs Bureau of Wenjiang District* (&L &k # F
/&) of Chengdu City authorized by the People’s Government of
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, the PRC. The total estimated
investment amount of the project is RMB780,000,000.

On 26 July 2017, the Company entered into a joint venture
agreement with Renhuai Urban Development Construction and
Investment Operation Co., Ltd.* ({ZIZ i m R ERBRELES
FRE1E 2 8) in relation to the establishment of Guizhou Renhuai
Yunshui Environment Co., Ltd.* (EM{ZIEEXKIREBR A F) as
a joint venture company in Renhuai, Guizhou Province, the PRC,
with a total investment amount of RMB522,838,800.

On 27 June 2017, the Company was formally awarded a PPP
project, environment upgrade and ecological restoration works
for Yanjin Lake within Chishui river areas through public tender by
Renhuai City Environmental Protection Bureau* ({_{EHIRERER)
authorized by the People’s Government of Renhuai City, Guizhou
Province, the PRC. The total estimated investment amount of the
project is approximately RMB2,600,000,000.

On 12 May 2017, the Company together with Fujian Dongfei
Environmental Group Co., Ltd* (REEZRRKREEEE R 2 7)
and Xiamen Anneng Construction Co., Ltd.* (EFI Z BEiZ2 R AR
‘A 7)) were formally awarded the comprehensive utilization of
water resources and integration of urban and rural sanitation PPP
project in Luoyuan County, Fujian Province, the PRC through
public tender by the Water Conservancy Bureau of Luoyuan
County* (28R %k R F) authorized by the People’s Government
of Luoyuan County, Fujian Province, the PRC. The total estimated
investment amount of the project is RMB1,335,000,000.
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On 12 May 2017, Yunnan Solid Waste Investment Co., Ltd.
(E ™ E K E BB 2 a) (@ non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, as purchaser) entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Zhongshan Chuangzhi Building Materials
Technology Co., Ltd.* (FILTm RIEZM B BR A F) (as vendor)
in relation to the acquisition of 90% equity interest of Sanming
Jinliya Environmental Protection Technological Investment Co.,
Ltd* (ZAMm &R R RERFIREBR /A A]) at a consideration of
RMB276,520,900 (subject to adjustment).

On 13 April 2017, Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company Limited
(a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser)
entered into a share purchase agreement with Ms. Zhang Hui
(as vendor) in relation to the acquisition of 97% equity interest in
Pan Asia International (Sishui) Co., Limited at a consideration of
RMB376,400,000.

On 15 March 2017,Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company Limited
and the Company (as purchaser) completed the acquisition of
the remaining 50% equity interest in Galaxy NewSpring Pte.
Ltd.at a consideration of US$136,500,000 against Hyflux Asset
Management Pte.Ltd. and Hyflux Ltd (as vendor). The sale and
purchase agreement was agreed and signed on 26 October 2016.

On 25 January 2017, the Company entered into a joint venture
agreement with Yunnan Sidu Investment Management Co., Ltd.*
(EMHTEREEE AR 2 T) in relation to the establishment of
Yunnan Solid Waste Investment Co., Ltd.* (EEEREREBR D F)
as a joint venture company in Yunnan Province, the PRC, with a
total investment amount of RMB500,000,000.

For details of the above-mentioned significant investments and
acquisitions, please refer to the announcements published by the
Company on 28 September 2017, 26 July 2017, 27 June 2017, 12 May
2017, 13 April 2017, 15 March 2017 and 25 January 2017, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Subsequent Events:

On 13 April 2018, the Board received a resignation letter from Mr.
Kwok For Chi stating that due to his other work commitments, Mr.
Kwok For Chi resigned as an independent non-executive Director
of the second session of the Board, member and chairman of the
Audit Committee and member of the Compliance Committee with
effective upon the conclusion of the AGM. In the meantime, the
Board proposed to nominate Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (Ef#3I) to be
the independent non-executive Director candidate of the second
session of the Board.

On 4 April 2018, the Company together with YCIH No.5
Construction Co., Ltd.* (EmERELEZRBR A A]) were formally
awarded the PPP project in relation to Wuzhi County urban water
transformation and upgrading works in Wuzhi County, Jiaozuo
City, Henan Province, the PRC through public tender by the Wuzhi
County Water Resources Bureau (& BS 5 7k %l /&) authorized by
the People’s Government of Wuzhi County, Jiaozuo City, Henan
Province, the PRC. The total estimated investment amount of the
project is approximately RMB1,103,097,800.

On 21 March 2018, the Company together with Guangdong Yixin
Great Wall Construction Group Co., Ltd. * (ER —Hi R W EZ &
£ B APBR 2 A ) and Zhongdu Engineering Design Co., Ltd. * (F
EIRRETHMR Q3 ) were formally awarded the PPP project in
relation to the construction of wastewater treatment facilities in
the entire Xu Wen County in Zhanjiang City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC through public tender by the Housing and Urban-
Rural Development Bureau of Xu Wen County (& B % 1 & 1 3
48 3 3] B ) authorized by the People’s Government of Xu Wen
County, Zhanjiang City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. The total
estimated investment amount of the project is approximately
RMB1,249,740,000.

On 13 February 2018, Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company
Limited and the Company (as the purchaser) has entered
into the Equity Transfer Agreement with Mr. Wang Zhi (as the
vendor), Future International Group Co., Limited and Huize
Water (Qingzhou) Company Limited* (FE;Z/k i (FM)BR D7)
(“Huize”) for purchasing and selling the remaining 35% of Huize at
a consideration of RMB200,000,000.
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— On 24 January 2018, the Company entered into a joint venture
agreement with Qinyang Qinbei Construction Investment Co.,
Ltd.* OO Db ERIREBRAF) and YCIH No.5 Construction
Co,Ltd*(EmE KR % I & % B R 2 A) in relation to the
establishment of Qinyang Yunhuai Water Co., Ltd. Ltd.* (0B M E
12k #E B BRAF) as a joint venture company in Henan Province,
the PRC, with a total investment amount of RMB442,003,000.

— On 12 January 2018, the Board announced that the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong has been changed to
Suite 3110-11, 31/F, Tower 1, The Gateway, Harbour City, 21
Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong with effect
from 12 January 2018.

— On 11 January 2018, the Company together with Yunnan
Construction Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. No.5
Construction Co., Ltd.* (EMMEERBEEREBERERERA
7]) were formally awarded a PPP project in relation to Qinyang
urban water comprehensive treatment works in Qinyang City,
Henan Province, the PRC through public tender by Qinyang
Housing and Urban-Rural Development Bureau (30 B5 ™ 1£ & #
W4 R F) authorized by the People’s Government of Qinyang
City. The total estimated investment amount of the Project is
approximately RMB1,767,973,000.

— On 5 January 2018, the 2018 first extraordinary meeting of the
Company approved the registration and the issuance of the
Corporate Onshore and Offshore Debt Financing Instruments with
a size of not more than RMB2 billion.

— On 5 January 2018, the 2018 first extraordinary meeting of the
Company passed the resolution regarding the appointment of Ms.
Zhang Ling as an independent Supervisor of the second session
of the Supervising Committee, while the term of office shall be
from the date of passing the resolution in the EGM until the expiry
of the term of office of the second session of the Supervisory
Committee.

For details of the above-mentioned subsequent events, please refer
to the announcements published by the Company on 13 April 2018,
4 April 2018, 21 March 2018, 13 February 2018, 24 January 2018, 12
Jaunary 2018, 11 January 2018 and 5 January 2018, respectively.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017

- RZZE-NF-A=t+HEABA' &
RAENEHHIERRREBR
RAREEERREARRERD
ARRPETEEARLGED
AWM ERKBERQAG
VeEhE BREFAARY
442,003,000 7T °

- RIE-N\E—/A+ZBH EE8
ERBE-E-NF-At+=HE"
AABEBEBNETELS E &
ABEBNERVEERE21HEE
BB R AKESE1E31#83110-11

S

- RZZE-NF-A+—-B A 2FH
BHEEmEERREEZREEER
ZHRARAFEXNPREAEE D
5 A RBUF RS T {EREH
HAPERABBAMARIART
MBI EKRRERELR
PPPIEHE - 2B B MERARERD
A ARY1,767,973,000 7T °

- RZIE—-N\E—FHB: > RARA=%
—NFFE-RHEERRAEHED
AEMERBITREANDTEERE
TEARESFTTEBBARE20E
7_1—Jo

- RIZE-—N\E—AHH &RFEZ
Z-N\EE-RBERRAGHE
BB RRLZTEZTAFE-REE
EZEEBHVES  FHAREK
SEBCHEF _ERESERERZ
Hik

BB LB EENFE  B2HA
AR =ZE—N\FEFOA+=H"
E-NFENANAE - ZE-—NFE=
—+—HB -ZB—-N\E=ZA+=H"
E-NF—A=+WHE - =ZZF—NF—
B+=ZH -=ZZ2—-N\E—A+—-HBK=
E-N\FE-—BRBTIBNAE -

>

[l ao |1



Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Tao, aged 42, joined the Group in August 2017 as non-
executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Board. Mr.
Yang Tao obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Guanghua School of Management, Peking University in July 2007. He
was qualified as a senior engineer in August 2006. Mr. Yang Tao has
extensive senior management experience in architectural engineering,
urban development and cultural tourism. Mr. Yang Tao served as vice
general manager of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group Co., Ltd.*
(EEEIEEHEMR QT from April 2009 to April 2011. Mr. Yang Tao
has been appointed as a member of the Standing Committee, deputy
secretary of the Standing Committee and head of the united front work
department of the Standing Committee of the Communist Party of
China of Xishuangbanna Autonomous Prefecture between April 2011
and August 2014. Mr. Yang Tao was appointed as party secretary
and vice chairman of of the board YMCI between August 2014 and
December 2016. Since December 2016, Mr. Yang Tao was appointed
as vice party secretary, vice chairman of the board and Chief Executive
Officer of YMCI.
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Mr. Dai Richeng (“Mr. Dai”), aged 53, joined the Group in June
2016, and currently serves as executive Director and Vice-Chairman
of the Board of the Company. Mr. Dai obtained a master’s degree
in environmental engineering from the Department of Chemical
Engineering at Nanjing University of Science and Technology and a
doctoral degree in environmental engineering from the Department
of Environmental Engineering at Tsinghua University. Mr. Dai has
extensive experience of about 31 years in the water treatment industry.
Mr. Dai was an engineer at the Water Pollution Research Office of the
Quan Jun Environmental Science Research Centre* (2 E I & & 2 ff
FHROIKTRIFEE) from 1986 to 1989, and later acted as a senior
engineer in the China Water Pollution Research Centre* (/' Bl 7Kk 55 %
iff 3% A ) from 1993 to 1998. From 1998 to 2010, Mr. Dai acted as
the general manager and senior engineer in a subsidiary principally
engaged in wastewater treatment of Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd.* (/&
#[EH R AR D F), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600100). From 2010 to 2012, Mr. Dai
was the vice-president and senior engineer of Beijing Enterprises
Water Group Limited* (dt 12 7k # & B & R A 7]), the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 371). From October
2012 to March 2014, Mr. Dai was the general manager of Beijing
OriginWater, a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company. From April 2014 to April 2016, he was the director
and general manager of Beijing OriginWater, and from April 2016 to
March 2018, he served as the director of Beijing OriginWater, and he
has been the director and general manager of Beijing OriginWater
since March 2018. Mr. Dai joined the Group in June 2016 as executive
Director of the Company. He was later appointed as Vice-Chairman of
the Board of the Company in August 2017, and is mainly responsible
for investment risk control and supporting the marketing development
work in all regions of the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. He Yuanping (“Mr. He”), aged 51, joined our Group in June
2011 as a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering from Nanjing University of Science
and Technology in July 1987. He also completed a master’s degree
in mechanical engineering in Beijing University of Science and
Technology in February 1992 and obtained a master’s degree in
financial mathematics from the Victoria University of Wellington in
New Zealand in July 2000. Mr. He was appointed as director, deputy
general manager and chief financial officer of Beijing OriginWater
Science and Technology Development Co., Ltd. (predecessor of Beijing
OriginWater) from September 2005 to June 2007. From June 2007 to
March 2018, he has been the director, deputy general manager, chief
financial officer and board secretary of Beijing OriginWater. Mr. He has
also assumed positions such as member of fixed income professional
committee of the Securities Association of China, expert in the PPP
expert database of the National Development and Reform Commission,
business mentor of Beijing Fourth Board (it & P %), committee
member of the Beijing Haidian District Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, vice-chairman of Hydraulics Committee
of the Chinese Hydraulic Science Society (/1 Bl 7K F| & 2 &), guest
teacher of the School of Accountancy of Central University of Finance
and Economics, guest teacher of University of Science and Technology
Beijing, vice president of Western Returned Scholars Association ANZ
branch, deputy secretary-general of The Listed Companies Association
of Beijing. He has been appointed as chairman and director of a
number of subsidiaries of Beijing OriginWater since May 2011, and has
managerial experience of over 10 years in large-scale enterprises and
the water works industry. In addition, Mr. He has been appointed as
director of Wuhan Sanzhen Industry Holding Co., Ltd. (the shares of
which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600168)
since November 2013.
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Ms. Li Bo (“Ms. Li”), aged 41, joined the Group in August 2014, and
currently serves as non-executive Director of the Company. Ms. Li
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Dalian
University of Technology in Dalian in June 2008. Ms. Li has more than
11 years of senior management experience in water works industry.
From August 2014 to August 2017, Ms. Li acted as shareholder
representative Supervisor of the Company, and from August 2017
till now, she has been the non-executive Director of the Company.
Ms. Li was appointed as the deputy manager of the investment and
financing department of YMCI between April 2005 and May 2010, and
was promoted as manager of the investment and financing department
between May 2010 and May 2012. Ms. Li acted as the board office
director of YMCI from May 2012 to December 2017, and she has been
the Secretary to the Board and Assistant to President of YMCI since
December 2017. In addition, Ms. Li has also been appointed as the
director of a number of subsidiaries of YMCI since January 2014.

Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi (“Mr. Feng”), aged 42, joined our Group in June
2013 as non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Feng obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economics from the Central University of Finance
and Economics in July 1997 and a master’s degree in business
administration from a joint university programme organized by the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and Tsinghua University in December
2005. Mr. Feng has more than 16 years of senior management
experience in large-scale enterprises and the water works industry. Mr.
Feng has been appointed as managing director of Finergy Guangda
(Tianjin) Capital Partners (Limited Partnership) since May 2011. Mr.
Feng has been appointed as general manager and managing director
of Yunnan Finergy Tongda Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd.
since March 2012. Mr. Feng has been appointed as a member of
the investment management committee of Yunnan Energy-saving
Environmental Protection Venture Capital Fund Partnership (Limited
Partnership) since December 2012. In addition, Mr. Feng has been
appointed as director of Shandong Higer Information Technology Co.,
Limited* (LU R 8 HE B MR 0B R A 8) (the shares of which are
listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotation (also known as
the “NEEQ”), stock code: 834482) since August 2017.
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Mr. Yang Fang, aged 44, joined the Group in March 2013, and
currently serves as the executive Director, deputy chief executive
officer and party secretary of the Company. Mr. Yang Fang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and statistics from Yunnan University
of Finance and Economics in July 1998, and further obtained an
executive master’s degree in business administration from Dalian
University of Technology in June 2008. Mr. Yang Fang was qualified
as a first-class enterprise human resources managing personnel in
March 2009 certified by the Ministry of Labor and Social Security.
Mr. Yang Fang served as party secretary of the Company in March
2013, and he was subsequently appointed as deputy chief executive
officer of the Company in November 2014, and was appointed as the
executive Director of the Company in August 2017. Mr. Yang Fang
has more than 10 years of senior management experience in water
works related companies, and is mainly responsible for party building
work, disciplinary inspection and supervision work of the Company,
coordinating water projects in Inner Mongolia region, and market
development and managerial work in Jiangxi, Hunan regions. Mr. Yang
Fang served in various positions in YMCI, including deputy manager
of personnel and organization department, manager of personnel and
organization department, manager of the human resources department,
and he was the party secretary of Yunnan Province Water from May
2012 to September 2014.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok For Chi (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 46, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2015. Mr. Kwok obtained
his bachelor’s degree in accounting and business administration from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in November
1994, and became a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Kwok has more than 15 years of experience in
financial management and auditing, he worked in KPMG accountancy
firm from August 1994 to October 2006. Mr. Kwok was appointed as
the chief financial officer and company secretary of KFM Kingdom
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 3816), since February 2012. Prior to that, Mr. Kwok served as
the chief financial officer and company secretary of Xing Yuan Power
Holdings Company Limited from December 2010 to February 2012,
the financial controller of Beijing Huaxia Real Estate Development
Company Limited from October 2006 to December 2008, and Head
of the Group Finance and Investment Centre of Hopson Development
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 754), from April 2008 to November 2009.
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Mr. Hu Song (“Mr. Hu”), aged 56, joined the Group in August 2014
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Hu
obtained a master’s degree in western economics from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology in December 2002. Mr. Hu
is mainly participating in making significant business decisions and
providing independent advice on corporate governance, connected
transactions, various matters of directors and scale management. Mr.
Hu has 14 years of experience as senior management in enterprises,
and has successively served as director of companies such as
Shenzhen Rihai Communications Equipment Company Limited* (%%
YT BB @ARE SR A 5) and Shenzhen Yungong Investment Co.,
Ltd.* CRYIT 2 2R EBR A7) as well as the consultant of Mission
Hills Group.

Mr. Ma Shihao (“Mr. Ma”), aged 79, joined the Group in August
2014 as independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ma
obtained a bachelor’s degree in water supply and drainage study of
civil engineering from Tsinghua University in January 1963. Mr. Ma
was qualified as an engineer specializing in radioactive wastewater
treatment in December 1979 by the National Cadre Bureau of Science
and Technology, and qualified as a senior engineer specializing
in wastewater treatment in August 1987 and as a senior engineer
(professor level) specializing in environmental engineering in November
1995 by the Beijing Senior Professional and Technical Personnel
Certifying Committee. Mr. Ma is mainly participating in making
significant decisions and providing independent advice on corporate
governance, connected transactions and matters of corporate
operations. Mr. Ma has more than 51 years of working experience in
the water industry. He worked in Beijing Municipal Research Institute of
Environmental Protection between January 1963 and January 1999, and
was subsequently appointed as a member of the Shandong Xiaoginghe
Wastewater Treatment Construction Technology Advisory Committee.
Mr. Ma was appointed as independent director of Beijing OriginWater
between September 2007 and April 2014. Mr. Ma is the author of the
Beijing discharge standard of water pollutants for municipal wastewater
treatment plants (DB11/890-2012) promulgated by Beijing People’s
Government in May 2012 and the second amendment of the Beijing
integrated discharge standard of water pollutants (DB11/307-2013)
promulgated by Beijing People’s Government in December 2013. Mr.
Ma was awarded by the Ministry of Environmental Protection and
the Beijing Municipal Management Committee for preparing various
feasibility reports on wastewater treatment. Mr. Ma was awarded for
his book, “The Book of Practical Water Treatment Technology” in
September 2002 published by China Petroleum & Chemical Industry
Federation.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Long Limin (“Mr. Long”), aged 49, joined the Group in August
2017 as a shareholder representative Supervisor of the Company
and Chairman of the Supervisory Committee. Mr. Long obtained a
bachelor’s degree in engineering from Chongging University in 1991
and a master’s degree in business administration from Tsinghua
University in 2004. Between 1991 and 2000, Mr. Long successively
acted as workshop director, assistant to factory director and deputy
factory director of BBMG Group Co. Ltd* (It RE B EBE R = 1T
A #)). Between 2000 and 2010, Mr. Long served as vice general
manager of TsingHua TongFang Artificial Environment Co., Ltd* (& %
BA ATIREERADF). Between 2010 and 2011, Mr. Long was the
director of operation and the manager of procurement department of
Beijing OriginWater. Between 2011 and 2013, Mr. Long served as the
general manager of Shandong Yashi Co., Ltd.* (LR R BR D
7]). Between 2013 and 2016, Mr. Long was the director of enquiry and
procurement department of Beijing OriginWater. From 2016 to March
2018, Mr. Long was the director of operation planning centre of Beijing
OriginWater, and he has been the director and deputy general manager
of Beijing OriginWater since March 2018.

Mr. Zhu Zhen (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 33, joined the Group in August 2017
as a shareholder representative Supervisor. Mr. Zhu obtained his
master’s degree in law from Tsinghua University in September 2009.
Mr. Zhu has almost 8 years of experience in law and investment related
industries. Mr. Zhu was the deputy general manager of the auditing and
legal department of YMCI from October 2013 to September 2016, and
he was promoted as the general manager of the legal department of
YMCI in September 2016. In addition, Mr. Zhu has served as director
and supervisor in various subsidiaries of YMCI since September 2014.
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Ms. Yang Chuanyun (“Ms. Yang”), aged 40, joined the Group in June
2011 as an employee representative Supervisor and the manager of
the legal department of the Company. Ms. Yang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economic law in June 2000 and a master’s degree in
economic law in June 2003 from China University of Political Science
and Law. Ms. Yang has more than 11 years of working experience in
large-scale enterprises, and she is mainly responsible for supervising
the Directors, managers and other management personnel of the
Company to ensure compliance with laws and regulations, the Articles
of Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Ms.
Yang has more than 11 years of working experience in large-scale
enterprises. Between September 2004 and July 2008, Ms. Yang was
appointed as the legal consultant of Beijing Municipal Investment
Company Limited. Ms. Yang served in the investment department
of Yunnan Province Water, controlling shareholder of the company,
between December 2009 and June 2011.

Ms. Tang Shuang (“Ms. Tang”), aged 33, joined the Group in January
2015 as an employee representative Supervisor of the Company.
Ms. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in management from Yunnan
University in Yunnan in July 2007, and she obtained the qualification
as an accountant in May 2006 awarded by the Ministry of Finance. Ms.
Tang is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors, managers
and other management personnel to ensure compliance with laws
and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of
Shareholders’ meetings. Ms. Tang has more than 9 years of working
experience in large-scale enterprises. Ms. Tang was an employee of the
Yunnan branch office of Ping An Life Insurance Limited between July
2007 and June 2008, later she served as the accountant for the Beijing
branch office of Ping An Property & Casualty Insurance Company of
China Limited from July 2008 to March 2010. From March 2010 to
February 2015, Ms. Tang served in the business department of Yunnan
OriginWater Technology Company Limited. Ms. Tang served as the
deputy manager in the bidding and procurement department of our
Company from March 2015 to November 2015. Since December 2015,
she has been the deputy manager in the business department of our
Company.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Mr. Tan Hairui (“Mr. Tan”), aged 47, joined the Group in January
2015 as an independent Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Tan obtained
a bachelor’s degree in economics from Yunnan Finance and Trade
College (now known as Yunnan University of Finance and Economics)
in July 1993. Mr. Tan obtained the certificate as a registered accountant
issued by Accountant Examination Committee of Ministry of Finance
of the PRC in April 1999 and a Lawyer’s License in August 2004. Mr.
Tan has more than 17 years of working experience in large-scale
enterprises, and he is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors,
managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance with
laws and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions
of Shareholders’ meetings. Mr. Tan was the deputy manager of
the financial department of Yunda Science & Technology Industry
Company from 2000 to December 2001. Mr. Tan joined Yunnan
Hengxin Law Firm as trainee solicitor and lawyer from January 2002
to August 2007. Mr. Tan joined the Yunnan Quzhi Law Firm as lawyer
between September 2007 and March 2009. Since March 2009, Mr. Tan
has been working in Yunnan Geyuan Law Firm as a lawyer.

Ms. Zhang Ling (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 42, is the deputy professor
and Master’s tutor of law school of Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics and director of the collaborated regional resources
law research center of law school of Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics. Ms. Zhang obtained her law degree in July 1997 at
Wuhan University and master degree in international business law and
European Union law at University of Sheffield in November 2004. Since
September 2005, Ms. Zhang has been working at the law school of
Yunnan University of Finance and Economics, responsible for teaching,
research and application of law. Ms. Zhang had published dozens of
professional academic papers on law, held discussions on national
social topics and research on provincial laws. She was invited by the
Legal Affairs Office of the State Council* (Bl 7 Fx 5% %I3#), the Ministry
of Civil Affairs* (R B &) and the Ministry of Foreign Affairs* (¥h 32 &B)
to participate in the amendments of two laws and regulations and
legislative consultation. She has received the research award of Yunnan
Philosophical Social Science Society* (EE&E 2t SR B R EF)
twice. In addition, Ms. Zhang had approximately twenty years of solid
experience in the legal field. Since she was qualified as a practicing
lawyer in November 1999, Ms. Zhang had worked in five different law
firms in Yunnan Province and is currently working on or part-time basis
at Yunnan Zhiguo Law Firm* (EFABEEMEFEFN).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Long (“Mr. Yu”), aged 46, joined the Group in June 2011,
and currently serves as Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
Yu obtained a MBA degree from Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University in July 2013. Mr. Yu won the “Yunnan Labour
Medal” awarded by Yunnan Provincial Union Federation in 2012 and
2013 and the “Yunnan 2008-2012 town wastewater and household
waste treatment facilities construction advancement - personal
award” granted by the People’s Government of Yunnan Province.
Mr. Yu as more than 15 years of experience in environmental and
water works industry, market development, project management,
investment capital management, and risk control management, and
he is mainly responsible for the overall operation and management,
strategic planning and business development of the Company. Mr. Yu
has been appointed as part-time professor of the Urban Construction
and Management School of Yunnan University and the Environmental
Science and Engineering School of Kunming University of Technology
successively since April 2012. Mr. Yu was appointed as general
manager of water works division and deputy general manager of
Beijing Tsinghua Novel Environmental Protection Company Limited
between July 2003 and August 2007. Mr. Yu was appointed as
project management director of Kardan Water Group Limited between
August 2007 and July 2008. Between July 2008 and April 2009, Mr.
Yu was appointed as the deputy general manager of Ruoshi (Beijing)
Investment Co., Ltd. Between May 2009 and October 2012, Mr. Yu
was appointed as the sales director and the deputy general manager
of Beijing OriginWater. Between June 2011 and August 2017, Mr.
Yu served as Chief Executive Officer and executive Director of the
Company, and Mr. Yu has served as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company from August 2017 till now. In addition, Mr. Yu has been
appointed as chairman or director of various subsidiaries of our Group
since January 2011.
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Mr. Liu Xujun (“Mr. Liu”), aged 45, joined our Group in June 2011
and currently serves Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in water supply and drainage
engineering from Tongji University in Shanghai in July 1995. Later,
he further obtained a master’s degree in environmental engineering
from Kunming University of Science & Technology in Kunming in
June 2009, and he obtained a doctorate degree in environment
engineering at Tongji University in Shanghai in September 2017. Mr.
Liu was qualified as a senior engineer specialized in water supply
and drainage in September 2006 by the Kunming Architecture Senior
Engineer Certifying Committee (EB M EEIRESHIEMITEZR).
He was also qualified as a professional manager in June 2007 by the
Human Resources and Social Security Bureau of Yunnan Province
of the PRC. Mr. Liu has become a member of the International Water
Association (IWA) (EIF# k1) since January 2013. He was subsequently
qualified as a professorate senior engineer specialized in water supply
and drainage in November 2014 by the Yunnan Professorate Senior
Engineer Certifying Committee (EE&E ESRIEMAEEZES). Mr.
Liu has more than 20 years of technical experience in the water works
industry, including 6 years of senior management experience in water
works enterprises, mainly responsible for the overall operation and
management, strategic planning and business development of the
Company. Mr. Liu served as engineering staff in Kunming Municipal
Sewerage Co., Ltd., a deputy director and later a director of World Bank
project office between July 1995 and October 2005. Mr. Liu worked
as a procurement specialist for the World Bank Resident Mission from
December 2007 to October 2009. He served as chief engineer and
deputy general manager of Yunnan Province Water from January 2010
to June 2011. Mr. Liu served as executive director and deputy chief
executive officer off the Company from June 2011 to August 2017. He
has been the deputy chief executive officer since August 2017.
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Mr. Huang Yunjian (“Mr. Huang”), aged 52, joined our Group in
December 2011 as Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and served as executive Director of the Company prior to August
2017. Mr. Huang obtained a degree in environment engineering from
Kunming University of Science and Technology in Kunming in July
1988. He obtained a certificate for senior research studies on modern
economics management in 2005 and a certificate for the “Western
China Environmental Infrastructure Technologies and Projects” course
in December 2005. Mr. Huang subsequently obtained the qualification
of a Chinese professional manager in June 2006 awarded by Chinese
Professional Manager Coalition. Mr. Huang has more than 18 years
of experience in operation management and senior management in
companies related to water works, and he is mainly responsible for
management, strategic planning and business development of our
Group. Mr. Huang was appointed as engineer and plant manager
of the 4th sewage plant of Kunming Municipal Sewerage Co., Ltd.
from April 1998 to June 2005. Mr. Huang was appointed as the legal
representative, executive director and general manager of Kunming
Wastewater Treatment Co. Ltd. between June 2005 and July 2008. Mr.
Huang served as assistant to the general manager and deputy general
manager of Yunnan Province Water, our controlling shareholder,
between January 2010 and June 2011. Mr. Huang served as executive
director and deputy chief executive officer of the Company from
December 2011 to August 2017. He has been the deputy chief
executive officer since August 2017. Mr. Huang also served as legal
representative and director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
In addition, Mr. Huang has also been a part-time professor of Kunming
University of Science and Technology since January 2013.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. Wang Yong (“Mr. Wang”), aged 46, joined the Group in January
2013 and is currently the financial controller of the Company. Mr.
Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 1993 from
Yunnan Finance and Trade College (now known as Yunnan University
of Finance and Economics) and a master’s degree in business
administration in January 2009 from the Yunnan University. He was
qualified as an accountant in the PRC in May 1996, and also qualified
as a registered tax agent in the PRC in October 2000, later he was
promoted to a senior accountant in October 2004. From April 2002
to January 2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as the manager of finance
department of Kunming Sino-Platinum Metals Catalyst Co., Ltd.
Mr. Wang joined the Group in January 2013 as manager of finance
department of the Company, subsequently he was appointed as
financial controller of the Company in November 2013. Mr. Wang has
more than 14 years of senior management experience in large-scale
enterprises and extensive experience in accounting, and he is mainly
responsible for the financial evaluation of the Company’s investment
risk control and overseas mergers and acquisitions.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo (“Mr. Li”), aged 39, joined the Group in May 2013 as
company secretary of the Company and was appointed as Secretary to
the Board since August 2013. Mr. Li graduated from Capital University
of Economics and Business in Beijing with a bachelor’s degree in
economics in July 2001 and obtained a master’s degree in accounting
from Macquarie University in Australia in April 2006. Mr. Li is currently
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the Certified Public Accountants of Australia. He is
mainly responsible for assisting with the operation of our Company and
the operation of the Board. Mr. Li has more than 9 years of experience
in finance-related senior positions. Mr. Li was engaged by Audit Office
of New South Wales as an auditor since August 2007 and was later
promoted to senior auditor. From March 2011 to June 2013, Mr. Li
served as the financial controller and the company secretary of Beijing
Jingkelong Company Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 814).
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to the Shareholders.

THE IPO OF THE COMPANY AND THE USE OF PROCEEDS
FROM THE IPO

The H shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 27 May 2015. After completion of the IPO, the total number of
the Company’s H shares was 363,713,900 (including the H shares
converted from domestic shares on a one-for-one basis). The proceeds
from the IPO after deducting the relevant listing expenses were
approximately HK$1,739 million. The utilization of which is in line with
the information as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
13 May 2015. As at the last practicable date, the Group has utilized
proceeds of approximately HK$1,737.2 million, and unutilized proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$1.8 million.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2017, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB1,193,213,457, divided into 1,193,213,457 Shares of RMB1.00
each. Details of share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 27 to the Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the
Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC,
the Company is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to
propose new issues to its existing Shareholders in proportion to their
shareholdings.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

EXSEUAORRREZAEEBE=-Z
—tF T A=+ -RLEFENFHRE
RETIBRR((HMBERE]D) -

ERRERARBEURERARBE
eI AR

AATHBRR=-ZE—HEERA=1++tH
EBHXFEm - RERABEBETK
% AR BHER # 2 5363,713,900 i
(BREBERERRMO U — G —BEEERR
BREIHER) - ZLHIBRER EmXE &
RABMBEMSRIENB1,7305 88
T FIBRIEBRAREAQNTHHPA-E
—HEERAT=BNBRERFEES
RER BEBZEREZUTHHAKERD
FERREHRIEN1,737288EB T Ek
FAMSHEN18EEBT

(ES

BEE_Z-tF+=-RA=1+t—-H8 %2
AR A EEE A AKRY1,193,213,457 7T
D AE1,193213457TREBRHEEARE
1.00 TR - FARAERDABTRANFES
BRI IR T 27 -

BE - HESEEARR EHHS

RI|BEHA - A2 B HEAIKE R A
BMERE  HEIBEEAAQF LT
R o

BEBEE

REQAFAERRFEER A QALE
EANERABLBERNERE  £4AQTH
AEBRRARBERRORELF RS
PREREXATHAL -



PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is an operator primarily engaged in municipal environmental
integrated services and the only urban environmental integrated
service provider in Yunnan Province. The Group is also one of the
few integrated operators in municipal environmental services in China
that has expanded overseas successfully, and our overseas business
is mainly located in Southeast Asian regions. In addition, the Group
operates upstream and downstream development industries to
improve the Group’s profitability structure and broaden the sources of
income. The Group has good track records in projects such as urban
wastewater treatment, tap water and raw water supply, watercourse
comprehensive management, solid waste treatment and others.

The major business segments of the Group include investment,
construction and management services for water supply, waste water
treatment, solid waste treatment, production and sales of equipment
and other environmental protection related services. The corporate
strategy of the Group is to set our foundation of business in Yunnan,
identify overseas investment opportunities continuously, and gradually
expand our business to other favourable regions in China and overseas
emerging markets, in order to secure a stable source of growth.

RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 107 to 108. The financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 is set out in the consolidated
balance sheet on page 109 to 111. The consolidated cash flow of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the
consolidated statement of cash flows on page 114 to 115.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and
significant elements affecting the results of operations and financial
condition of the Company during the Reporting Period are set out in the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report from page 17 to 38.

Directors’ Report

EEEHRS

FEER
AEBE—REE] %iﬁj@miﬁiﬁ:ﬂmﬁﬁ
BHEZLR  AEMEE ——EMH

MRESERBENLAE - XEBIR AT

B ERINIER 28IV T RBE RS
REEER AEENENEKRFTERE
REEHE - i REBRELTH
HRELUNSAEENRFEE B
FAUWARIE - REBHEEWR T ISKE
B -BRAREKGEE - TEHEER
B ERRESEENREEE -

AEBENEBREBRRBIEMK - 5K
R - EEEE  ZRME %EF&%
EUREMRREERE - AEEHzh
ERMUEMARERER  BFEVLSE
IMREREUREBBELBRETEH

HERSHEUEHETES  LURER
ERE °

E¥
rEEBE-_Z—tE+=-BA=+—8

LFENRKRBETREEBEHNE107ZE
108 ENEHEENER - AEBR=-Z
—t¢+—ﬂ—+ B Y B 7551k 55 B R

F109Z 111 EHNEHEEERER - &&

BEE=ZE—t+tF+=-BA=+—HLHF
ENEHREREHNFE114E115HH
EHBELERER -

%Fm“ﬁﬁ&%%ﬁ B AR D T &

%iﬁﬁﬁ#&mzkl%mmﬂ&
DI BRAFERFEI7TEISENEE
Bitwmk o JZRR -

EEABRERDERDA
2017 FEH/E

53



54

Directors’ Report

ESERE

DISTRIBUTIONS AND DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to declare the final dividend of RMBO0.13
per Share (tax included) for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
proposed final dividend is subject to the consideration and approval
by the Shareholders at the AGM. The final dividend is payable to the
Shareholders whose names are listed in the register of members of the
Company on 25 June 2018, in an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB155.1 million.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the final
dividend will be denominated and declared in RMB. The final dividend
on Domestic Share will be paid in RMB and on H Share will be paid
in Hong Kong dollars. The relevant exchange rate for conversion shall
be calculated by the average median exchange rate for converting
RMB into Hong Kong dollar as quoted by the China Foreign Exchange
Trading Centre for the week immediately before the date on which
the dividend was declared (i.e. Wednesday, 13 June 2018). The final
dividend is expected to be distributed on or before 27 July 2018.

The Company has established a sound decision making process and
profit distribution mechanism. Emphasis is placed on Shareholder
returns and cash dividends are distributed to Shareholders regularly. In
formulating the profit distribution plan, the Board has fully considered
the opinions and demands of Shareholders to, after taking into account
the statutory interests of minority Shareholders, and has submitted
the profit distribution plan at the general meeting for approval. Also,
the independent non-executive Directors have properly carried out
their duties in regards to the decision making process of the profit
distribution plan.

Under the relevant tax rules and regulations of the PRC (collectively
the “PRC Tax Law”), the Company is required to withhold corporate
income tax at the rate of 10% when distributing the final dividend to
non-resident enterprises (such term shall have the meaning as defined
under the PRC Tax Law) whose names appear on the H Shares register
of members of the Company.

In accordance with the PRC Tax Law, the Company is also required
to withhold individual income tax when distributing the final dividend
to individual shareholders whose names appeared on the H Shares
register of members of the Company. The Company will determine the
country of domicile of the individual holders of H Shares based on the
registered addresses as recorded in the H Shares register of members
of the Company on the record date with details as follows:
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- For individual holders of H Shares who are Hong Kong and Macau
residents and those whose country of domicile is a country which
has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of 10%, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of them.

- For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile
is a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of less than 10%, the Company
will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10%
on behalf of them. The Company would make applications on
their behalf to seek entitlement of the relevant agreed preferential
treatments pursuant to the Notice of the State Administration of
Taxation in relation to the Administrative Measures on Preferential
Treatment Entitled by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)
(Guo Shui Fa [2009] No.124) (BB KA RREREE <IERER
FiBZFBSEWE (F17) > HBA) (BIF 3 [2009]124 5%)).

- For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile
is a country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of higher than 10% but lower than
20%, the Company would withhold and pay the individual income
tax at the agreed-upon effective tax rate on behalf of them.

= For individual holders of H Shares who are residents of those
countries without any tax treaties with the PRC or having tax
treaties with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20% or
more, and other situations, the Company would withhold and pay
the individual income tax at a tax rate of 20% on behalf of them.

If individual shareholders of H Shares have any queries on the above
arrangement, they may consult their tax advisers for advice on the
taxation effects involving the ownership and disposal of H Shares in
PRC, Hong Kong and other countries (regions).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the list of Shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of holders of H Shares of the
Company will be closed from 14 May 2018 to 13 June 2018 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
Holders of H Shares whose names appear on the register of holders of
H Shares of the Company at the close of business on 12 June 2018 are
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM.
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In order to attend and vote at the AGM, any holder of H Shares whose
transfer has not been registered shall lodge the transfer documents
together with the relevant share certificates with the Company’s H
Share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, by no later than
4:30 p.m. on 11 May 2018.

For the purpose of determining entitlement for the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 21 June 2018 to Monday, 25
June 2018 (both dates inclusive) during which registration of transfer of
Shares will be suspended.

To be eligible to receive the final dividend, all transfer documents must
be lodged with the Company’s H Share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 22nd Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong (for holders of H Shares), or the secretariat of
the Board, located at 5th Floor, Yunnan Water, 2089 Haiyuan Bei Road,
Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan Province, the PRC (for holders of
Domestic Shares), by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 20 June
2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the Financial
Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in consolidated statement of changes
in equity, of which details of reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders are set out in consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made external donations
of approximately RMB5.7 million (excluding personal donations of
employees).
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as of 31 December
2017 are set out in note 30 to the Financial Statements of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Certain information concerning the Directors and the Supervisors and
senior management of the Company during the Reporting Period and
as at the date of this annual report is set out below.
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Date of Appointment for

Name Title in the Company the Current Term
" A2 B R BT RITENMEEEN
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Dai Richeng Executive Director, Vice-chairman 28 August 2017
BEMRELE HITES - BER —ZE—tFENA=TNH
Mr. Yang Fang Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive Officer 28 August 2017
Bh L HITES - BIR8R —ZE—+tFNA=+N\H
Mr. Yu Long (resigned from Executive Director, 15 July 2014

Executive Director on Chief Executive Officer

28 August 2017)
TRRAELE(R=ZF—tF HITES - (THREE “E-NFtLA+AHA

NAZT N\ BEEHITES)

Mr. Liu Xujun (resigned from Executive Director,
Executive Director Deputy Chief Executive Officer
on 28 August 2017)

ZIEERE(R=Z—tF HITEE - B8R
NAZ+ N\ BEERTES)

Mr. Huang Yunjian Executive Director,
(resigned from Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director
on 28 August 2017)

HEERRE(R=Z—F HITEE - 8RR
NAZT N\BHEEHRTES)

15 July 2014

—Z-—WFEtHB+EHAH

15 July 2014

—E-NELATEA
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Date of Appointment for

Name Title in the Company the Current Term
"A RAR BB BiTEHZEEBEH
Independent Non-executive Directors
EHITES
Mr. Yang Tao Non-executive Director, Chairman 28 August 2017
BeRE FHMITES - RE —ZEZ—+tFNA=+N\H
Ms. Li Bo Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
FREZL FHITES —E—tFNA=TN\H
Mr. He Yuanping Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
fAIFEF L FHITES —E2—tHENAZ=+NAH
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
BAEEE FHITESE —E-tFNA=+N\H
Mr. Xu Lei (resigned Non-executive Director, Chairman 15 July 2014

on 24 February 2017)
HEEER=Z—tF FHITES - —E-MELA+TEA

—AZ=+HBEHME)
Mr. Jiao Jun (appointed as the Non-executive Director, acting Chairman 15 July 2014

acting Chairman on
24 February 2017 and
resigned on 28 August 2017)
EEXE(R=Z—tF FHMITES - REE —E-NE+LA+EA
TACTTHNEEREARERE -
R=Z2—tFN A=+ \B&IT)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BAEHITES
Mr. Kwok For Chi Independent Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
FRERE BN FHITES —E-tFNA=+N\H
Mr. Hu Song Independent Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
AR TE BN FHITES —E-tFNA=+NH
Mr. Ma Shihao Independent Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
BxLE BMFHITES —ZE—+tFNA=+N\H
Mr. Ren Gangfeng (resigned Independent Non-executive Director 18 August 2014

on 28 August 2017)
ERERE(R=Z—tF BIMFHITES —Z-MmENA+NH

NAZ+ N\ BEHE)
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During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers all the

independent non-executive Directors to be independent from the

MARDBAL

Company.

Date of Appointment for
Name Title in the Company the Current Term
21 AR B BY BT RiTEHMEEES
Supervisors
BE=
Mr. Long Limin Chairman and Shareholder representative Supervisor 28 August 2017
EAMREE FFE - RRAKES —E-tFNA=+NH
Mr. Zhu Zhen Shareholder representative Supervisor 28 August 2017
RIRFTE RERARKREES —E-tFNAZ+NH
Mr. Tan Hairui Independent Supervisor 28 August 2017
EEBEE BIUEE —E2—tHENA=+NAH
Ms. Zhang Ling Independent Supervisor 5 January 2018
Rt BES —E-\F—AEH
Ms. Xu Cuifen (resigned Independent Supervisor 28 August 2017

on 15 November 2017)
BREZF LT (RN=ZZ—tF
+—AT+HBRE)
Ms. Yang Chuanyun
BIELZL
Ms. Tang Shuang
ERLZ+
Ms. Wang Shuqin (resigned
on 28 August 2017)
FRELZE(R=ZZE—LtF
NB=+N\HEfE)
Ms. Li Bo (resigned on
28 August 2017)
FREZEL(R=T—LF
NAZ=+/\BEEE)
Mr. Cao Jinwen (resigned
on 13 August 2017)
EENEE(R=ZE—LF
NA+=HEHE)

BUESR

Employee representative Supervisor
BITARES

Employee representative Supervisor
BIARES

Chairman and Shareholder representative Supervisor
R RRARES
Shareholder representative Supervisor

RRAKRES

Independent Supervisor

BVES

—E-tFNAZ=tN\H

28 August 2017
—E—+tFNA=tTNAH

28 August 2017
—E-tFENA=+NH

15 July 2014

—Z-—WFEtHA+EHA

18 August 2014

—E-MOFENA+TNH

7 January 2015

—Z-AF-AtH
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Date of Appointment for

Name Title in the Company the Current Term

HA RAR BB RiTEHMEEEH
Senior Management

BREEE

Mr. Wang Yong Chief financial controller 28 August 2017
IBERE g —E-tHFNA=+N\H
Mr. Li Bo Company secretary, secretary to the Board 15 August 2013
FELE NEWE  EFEUS —ZE-=ZFN\AT+EA
Mr. Hu Shake (retired on Deputy chief executive officer 15 July 2014

23 May 2017)

WA REE(R=E—+F Bl
AA=+=RHEK)

BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are set out on page 39 to 51 of this
annual report. There are no relationships among the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company, including
financial, business, family or other material relationships as defined in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the
Directors and Supervisors containing terms relating to, among other
things, compliance with relevant laws and regulations, observation
of the Articles of Association and provision on arbitration. The
service contracts may be renewed in accordance with the Articles of
Association and applicable rules.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service
contract with the Company during the Reporting Period which is not
terminable within one year nor may be terminated by the Company
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DETERMINATION OF AND BASIS FOR DETERMINATION OF
THE REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management
is subject to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and
determined by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending
remuneration for Directors, Supervisors and senior management to
the Board with reference to, among other factors, salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors of the
Company are set out in note 40 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, there were no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance subsisting in relation to the Group’s business in
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was directly or indirectly
a party and any Director or Supervisor had a material interest.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any
contract of significance with any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been entered into
for the services provided by any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge of the Board,
none of the Directors and Supervisors and their respective associates
has any business or interest that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or have or may have any conflict of interest with
the Group.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during
the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executives of the Company had the following interest in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise,
to be entered in the register maintained thereunder, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, or held interest in the Company as follows:

P SEE A
A B PR HY A I R BT AR IR R

#WitheE

B BERESITHABERR -1
Rl RESZEZRRE

REZZB-—tF+ZA=1T—H  A2F
EE ESRBESTRAERARAR
HEMABEE(ERREH R BERD
SEXVER KRG - HERORESS -
B RIERE S R E R 5E 352 R 5 1A
Ht B A EAHAR R AREBEZIRATF
ENBTEMNVER  URBEETA
AHEARNARBRANER  REH
BNARQFERMOT ¢

Percentage
Percentage of of the
the respective total number
Name of Director, type of Shares of Shares
Supervisor and in issue (%) in issue (%)
chief executive Number of 1B 81T LB &7
EE BER Capacity Type of Shares Shares held BRI ez
ERiTBEABRA 5 BRipER  HEROGBE # EL 151 (%) # EL 151 (%)
Mr. Yang Fang Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 1,755,000(L) 0.21 0.15
WAL BEREEA AER 1,755,000(L) 0.21 0.15
Ms. Yang Chuanyun Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 520,000(L) 0.06 0.04
BIEZL BEREEA RER 520,000(L) 0.06 0.04
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 10,820,000(L) 1.30 0.91
TELEE EREEA RER 10,820,000(L) 1.30 0.91
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner H Shares 770,000(L) 0.21 0.06
TeELE BREAA H & 770,000(L) 0.21 0.06
Notes: FIEE -
(L) refers to long position L RERHFE

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as
at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors, Supervisors and the chief
executives of the Company had any interests and short positions in
the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

To the Company’s best knowledge, as at 31 December 2017, the
following persons (other than Directors or Supervisors whose interests
are disclosed in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions
of Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company which were
required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or more of the
respective type of share capital in issue of the Company which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO:
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Percentage
Percentage of of the
the respective total number
type of Shares of Shares
in issue (%) in issue (%)
Number of HE T LE#&T
Name of Shareholder  Capacity Type of Shares Shares BRI M gy
B & #8 GLEE] RABE MBI HHH (%)
Yunnan Province Water! Beneficial owner, Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly Shares
with another person
EREKHB BRBEBA HEE—F RER  361,487,162(L) 43.58 30.30
AL HERHEE#ER
Mr. Huang Yunjian' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly
with another person
BEEREELE BRBEEA HEE—F RER 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
AL HERFEER
Mr. Liu Xujun' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly
with another person
ZIMBE AL BEREAA BE—-F AER 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
AL HERFEER
Mr. Wang Yong' Beneficial owner, Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly Shares
with another person
FEEE! EREBA HE—F RER 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
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Percentage
Percentage of of the
the respective total number
type of Shares of Shares
in issue (%) in issue (%)
Number of HE 1T Le#T
Name of Shareholder  Capacity Type of Shares Shares BRI gy
fR 3 &8 iR &5 Bz 3 2 5l B8R H9 BBl (%) B9 Bl (%)
YMCI' Interests in controlled Domestic 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
corporation, interests held Shares
jointly with another person
EmEREE" NEEEERESR - RER 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
HE -ZATHEEEFEEER
Beijing OriginWater Beneficial owner Domestic 286,650,000 (L) 34.56 24.02
Shares
L RE KR BEREEA RER 286,650,000 (L) 34.56 24.02
CNPC Assets Interests in controlled Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Management Co., Ltd. corporation Shares
FHEEEEAMRAR RIELENER W&ER 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
China National Petroleum Interests in controlled Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Corporation? corporation Shares
FEAERAAREE LR RIELENES AER 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Kunlun Trust Co. Ltd.? Interests in controlled Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
corporation Shares
ERETAREEAR? RITZENES AER 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
Finergy Development Beneficial owner Domestic 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
(Tianjin) Equity Shares
Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)?
MERR (X2 RERE BEREEA REKR 137,880,000 (L) 16.62 11.56
EREE(BRER)?
the National Council Beneficial owner H Shares 30,454,900 (L) 8.37 2.55
for Social Security Fund
of the PRC
2EHEREESEES EXHEEA HE 30,454,900 (L) 8.37 2.55
Caiyun International Beneficial owner H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
Investment Limited
FERBRREARAR' BREFA HE 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
YMCI' Interests in controlled H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
corporation
EmEREE" NEELENER H R 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
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Notes:

L
1)

refers to long position

Yunnan Province Water is wholly owned by YMCI and is the beneficial
owner of 361,487,162 Domestic Shares. Caiyun International Investment
Limited is wholly owned by YMCI and is the beneficial owner of 8,449,000
H Shares. YMCI is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares
held by Yunnan Province Water and H Shares held by Caiyun International
Investment Limited pursuant to the SFO which representing approximately
31.01% of total issued Shares. By virtue of the Acting in Concert
Agreement, each of Yunnan Province Water and YMCI is deemed to be
interested in all the Domestic Shares held by Huang Yunjian, Liu Xujin,
Wang Yong and each of Yunnan Province Water and YMCI in aggregate
pursuant to the SFO.

Huang Yunjian is the beneficial owner of 1,950,000 Domestic Shares.
By virtue of the acting in concert agreement (the “Acting in Concert
Agreement”) dated 24 July 2014 entered into between Yunnan Province
Water, Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong, pursuant to which
each of Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong agreed to act in
concert with Yunnan Province Water in exercising their voting rights in
the Shareholders’ meeting of the Company. Mr. Huang is deemed to be
interested in all the Domestic Shares held by Yunnan Province Water, Liu
Xujun, Wang Yong and Mr. Huang himself in aggregate pursuant to the
SFO.

Liu Xujun is the beneficial owner of 195,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of
the Acting in Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the
Domestic Shares held by Yunnan Province Water, Huang Yunjian, Wang
Yong and himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Wang Yong is the beneficial owner of 585,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue
of the Acting in Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all
the Domestic Shares held by himself, Yunnan Province Water, Huang
Yunjian and Liu Xujun in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Finergy Development (Tianjin) Equity Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership) is controlled as to 84.86% by Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd., its
general partner, and the beneficial owner of 137,880,000 Domestic
Shares; Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd. is owned as to 82.18% by CNPC Assets
Management Co., Ltd., which in turn is wholly-owned by China National
Petroleum Corporation. Under the SFO, each of Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.,
CNPC Assets Management Co., Ltd. and China National Petroleum
Corporation is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held
by Finergy Development (Tianjin) Equity Investment Partnership (Limited
Partnership).
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Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as
at 31 December 2017, no person (other than the Directors, Supervisors
and chief executives) had informed the Company that he had interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of equity
derivatives of the Company which were required to be notified to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or held any interests or short positions in 5%
or more of the respective types of capital in issue of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company’s business were entered into or existed during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the Prospectus and the announcements of the
Company dated 14 October 2016 and 6 November 2016, the Group
has entered into certain continuing connected transactions. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the transactions carried out pursuant to
the BT Construction Agreement (as supplemented by two supplemental
agreements) are non-exempt connected transactions which are subject
to the reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules and the
transactions carried out pursuant to the Membrane Ancillary Material
Procurement Master Agreement and Master Sale and Purchase
Agreement for Engineering Services are continuing connected
transactions exempted from the independent Shareholders’ approval
requirement but are still subject to the reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company
has obtained approval from the Stock Exchange in respect of the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions under the BT Construction
Agreement (as supplemented by two supplemental agreements) upon
the IPO and such transactions were exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.

The table below shows the annual caps and actual transaction value
of such continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2017:
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Actual
transaction
Annual cap amount
Nature and description Basis for determining the for 2017 in 2017
Name, date and term of the agreement Connected Persons of the transaction consideration ZF-t5E “3-tf
h#aM - BERAR BEAL RAHERER TEER LR BN 5EE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
BT Construction Agreement Yunnan New Century Dianchi - Yunnan Water offers Onanam’s length basis 205,000 =
BTIRES S International Cuttural Tourism  construction service for and on normal commercial
The BT Con struncti on Agreement was Convention Investment Yunnan New Century terms.
: ] Co.Ltd. Dianchi
entered into on 20 August 2014, with . . N wipe
two supp|emen‘[a| agreements signed on Z@*ﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁ)ﬂ%x{t E@j@%%;@*ﬁﬁéﬂ Qigﬁzﬁ\ljﬁ_ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬂ 205,000 -
3 December 2014 and 25 March 2015 KEERREBRAR HLRETIERREH
respectively to ascertain the annual cap of
transaction for 3 years from 2015 t0 2017.
RBT IR 2014F8 520 AL -
BM2014512 3K 201553 A 258
BIRA B ARE 201522017 F=F
EERZLR
Membrane Ancillary Material Procurement  Beijing OriginWater Yunnan Water purchases ~ Onanam’s length basis 30,000 10,813
Master Agreement Technology Co,, Ltd. and ts  membrane ancilary materials - and on normal commercial
[Tt YT subsidiaries from Bejjing OriginWater ~~ terms.
h was emered into on 14 October 2015 to it?%ﬂ@ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ §@7ki%mit§%7kjﬁ ﬂﬁﬁﬂu&_ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬂ_‘i 30’000 10’813
set the annual cap of transaction for 3years BRAAREMBART  FEEHS
from 2015 to 2017.
R20155 10 A 14 BET XL » HIRE 20155
ENTE=FEERG LR
Master Sale and Purchase Agreement for  Yunnan Metropolitan Yunnan Water provides Onanam'’s length basis 54,000 3,133
Engineering Services Construction Investment Co.,  Engineering Services to and on normal commercial
TRRRAGS Ltd. and its subsidiaries YMCI terms.
It was entered into on 6 November 2015 to Eﬁﬁ‘é\iﬁﬁﬁﬁ?&ﬁﬁﬁ ;rﬁ*ﬁ%;@ﬁﬁ% ’Rﬁﬁﬂ”&‘ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%?x 54’000 3’133
set the annual cap of transaction for 3 years BRAFREMEAT REIRERE
from 2015 to 2017.
R20155 11 B6 RETAL » BARE 20155
ENTE=FFERG LR -
EEABRERGERD A
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Several related-party transactions as disclosed in Note 38 to the
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS fall under
the definition of “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that such transactions were:

(1) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2) carried out in normal commercial terms or better; and

(38) carried out according to the relevant transaction agreements, the
terms of which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Auditor’s Confirmation

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the
conclusions in respect of the above-mentioned continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
above continuing connected transactions.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the Acting in Concert Parties signed a non-competition
undertaking on 6 May 2015, in favor of the Company (the “Non-
competition Undertaking”). Pursuant to the Non-competition
Undertaking, each of the Acting in Concert Parties has irrevocably
undertaken that it will not, and will procure that its associates (except
the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as principal or
agent, either on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, whether inside or outside the PRC,
among other things, carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or
interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition with the business of the Company
from time to time (the “Restricted Business®). Each of the Acting in
Concert Parties has also undertaken to the Company that, if there is
any new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within
a reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to
our Company on a pre-emptive basis.

The Acting in Concert Parties have confirmed in writing to the
Company of their compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking
for disclosure in this report during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information
provided by the Acting in Concert Parties regarding compliance with
the Non-competition Undertaking and had determined that the Acting
in Concert Parties have fully complied with and are not in breach of the
Non-competition Undertaking during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENTS

The Undertaking Shareholders signed non-competition agreements
(the “Non-Competition Agreements”) on 6 May 2015, in favour of the
Company. Pursuant to the Non-competition Agreements, each of the
Undertaking Shareholder has irrevocably undertaken that it will not and
will procure that its associates (except the Company) will not, directly or
indirectly, whether as principal or agent, either on its own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, whether
inside or outside the PRC, among other things, carry on, engage,
participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with the
business of the Company from time to time. Each of the Undertaking
Shareholders has also undertaken to the Company that, if there is any
new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within a
reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to our
Company on a pre-emptive basis.
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The Undertaking Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the
Company of their compliance with the Non-competition Agreements for
disclosure in this report during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information
provided by the Undertaking Shareholders regarding compliance with
the Non-competition Agreements and confirmed that all Undertaking
Shareholders have fully complied with and are not in breach of the
Non-competition Agreements during the Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period the total amount of procurement from the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 44.9% of the total
amount of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
procument from the largest supplier accounted for 36.8% of the total
amount of procurement for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of sales for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for 45.7% of the total amount of revenue, and the total
amount of sales to the largest customer accounted for 17.2% of the
total amount of revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

The Directors and the Supervisors of the Company, and their respective
close associates, or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company) do
not hold any interest in the top five customers and top five suppliers of
the Group.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Please refer to the Note 2.26 to the Financial Statements for detailed
information on the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the
Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and analysis of the
Group’s performance for the year and material factors relating to its
results and financial conditions are respectively set out in the chapter
headed “Chief Executive Officer’'s Report” from page 13 to 16 and the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from page 17
to 38 in this annual report. Such discussions constitute an integral part
of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the leading integrated urban environmental treatment
services providers in the PRC, the Company is committed to operating
its various business segments in an environmentally-friendly manner.
The Board believes that compliance with the relevant environmental
protection rules and regulations is crucial to the long term development
and success of the Group’s businesses. In order to maintain a high
standard of staff awareness of the relevant rules and regulations, the
Company offers periodical trainings to the key technical personnel at
the various water treatment plants and solid waste treatment plants.
As a result of the Company’s commitment to environmental protection
and through the implementation of advanced technologies, the Group
has achieved safe and environmentally-friendly production during the
Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board believes the compliance with laws and regulations as the
cornerstone of a business and attaches considerable importance to it.
To the best knowledge of the Board, during the Reporting Period, the
Company has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Company. Furthermore, as the H Shares of
the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company shall be
bound by the Listing Rules and the SFO.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s business, future results of operations and prospects
could be affected by certain risks and uncertainties. Please refer to
the chapter headed “Chief Executive Officer’s Report” from page 13
to 16 of this annual report for detail analysis of the relevant risks and
uncertainties.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Company has undertaken and maintained a collective liability
insurance policy covering, among others, all directors of the Company
and its “associated companies” (as such term is defined under the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)).
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director and Supervisor or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DEBT AND PERPETUAL INSTRUMENTS ISSUANCE

During the Reporting Period, the Group issued the following debt
and perpetual instruments for purposes of meeting the daily business
operation needs, adjusting the debt structure, replenishing working
capital and project investment.

(1) On 24 March 2017, the Company issued its first tranche of
private placement corporate bonds with a principal amount of
RMB510,000,000. The term of maturity of such corporate bonds
was 3 + 2 years and the interest rate was 5.3%;

(2) On 2 June 2017, the Company issued its second tranche of
private placement corporate bonds with a principal amount of
RMB490,000,000. The term of maturity of such corporate bonds
was 3 + 2 years and the interest rate was 6.3%;

(8 On 1 June 2017, the Company publicly issued its “green
corporate bonds” with a principal amount of RMB550,000,000.
The term of maturity of such green bonds was 5 + 5 years and the
interest rate was 6.3%;

4 On 29 June 2017, the Company non-publicly issued
renewable green corporate bonds with a principal amount of
RMB1,200,000,000. The term of maturity of such renewable green
corporate bonds was 3 + N years and the interest rate was 7%;

(5) On 15 September 2017, the Company non-publicly issued its debt
financing instruments with a principal amount of RMB400,000,000.
The term of such debt financing instruments was two years and
the interest rate of 5.7%.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders
and enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is one of the factors leading to the success of
the Company and balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all
code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange. Details of the corporate governance practice of the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from page
75 to 95 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved by the Stock
Exchange and permitted under the Listing Rules as at the date of this
annual report.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had not been
involved in any material litigation nor arbitration and the Directors are
not aware of any litigation or claims of material importance pending or
threatened against the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Company are set
out in the chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from
page 17 to 38 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the annual results
and the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor of the Company for
the financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 prepared in accordance with
HKFRS have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company
has retained the services of PricewaterhouseCoopers since 2013.

A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of
the Company for the year of 2018 will be proposed at the AGM.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of results of operation and the position of assets and
liabilities of the Group for the recent five financial years is set out on
page 255 in this annual report.

For and on behalf of the Board
Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited*

Yang Tao
Chairman

Kunming, the PRC
26 March 2018
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report of
the Company from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017

The Group strive to maintain high standards of corporate governance to
enhance Shareholder value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests. The
Company’s corporate governance principles emphasize the importance
of a quality Board, effective internal control and accountability to the
Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders
and enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is one of the factors leading to the success of
the Company and balancing the interests of shareholders, customers
and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors.
The Group has made specific enquiries with all of its Directors and
Supervisors, and all Directors and Supervisors have confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the Reporting Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS Exg
Board composition EESMHEK
The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period are: ARREERERNEES
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dai Richeng (Vice-chairman) BAREE(FFE)
Mr. Yang Fang (Deputy Chief Executive Officer) B R (FI#EE)
Mr. Yu Long (Chief Executive Officer) FRELE(TTEAEH)
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=F—tFENA=1/THEETE)
Mr. Liu Xujun (Deputy Chief Executive Officer) BINBE K4 (FI#E#)
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=F—+FE/NA =+ AEEE)
Mr. Huang Yunijian (Deputy Chief Executive Officer) BEREAE (FIEH)
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=ZF—+ENF=1/VHEEE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Yang Tao (Chairman) BERE(FE)
Ms. Li Bo FRLZE
Mr. He Yuanping AR e
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BAtE L
Mr. Xu Lei (Chairman) HEEE(EE)
(resigned on 24 February 2017) (R=FB—tF=—H=—+HFT)
Mr. Jiao Jun (acting Chairman) EEERE(CEE)
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=ZF—+ENA=F/VHEEE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHITES
Mr. Kwok For Chi FRERE
Mr. Hu Song A A
Mr. Ma Shihao BtREE
Mr. Ren Gangfeng B k= i
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=ZF—+FENA=1+/VHEEF)
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To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors has any
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other. In particular, there is no such relationship between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The roles of Chairman (and
the acting Chairman since the resignation of the Chairman of the first
session of the Board on 24 February 2017) and the Chief Executive
Officer are assumed by Mr. Yang Tao (Chairman of the second session
of the Board)/Mr. Xu Lei (Chairman of the first session of the Board)/
Mr. Jiao Jun (acting Chairman of the first session of the Board) and Mr.
Yu Long, respectively. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the
Directors containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, observation of the Articles of
Association and provision on arbitration. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association, the Directors (including the non-executive Directors and
the independent non-executive Directors) shall serve a term of three
years from the date of he/she takes up the appointment.

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors (at least one-third
of the Board) with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence during
the Reporting Period pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent during the Reporting Period in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.
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Responsibilities of the Board

The Board’s fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best judgement
and to act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.
The Board oversees management’s efforts to promote the Company’s
success while operating in an effective and responsible manner. The
Board also formulates the Company’s overall business strategies and
monitors management’s execution of such strategies.

By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the business
and governance issues for which it needs to be responsible, and these
matters reserved for the Board have been separately defined, and are
reviewed periodically, to ensure that the Company maintains the proper
level of corporate governance and to ensure they are up to date. In this
regard, the Board discharges, among others, the following duties:

(1) to be responsible for convening general meetings, to propose at a
general meeting to pass the relevant matters and to report on its
work to the general meeting and to implement the resolutions of
the general meetings;

(2) to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment
plans;

(8) to formulate the Company’s proposed annual preliminary and
final financial budgets and profit distribution plans and plans for
recovery of losses;

(4) to draw up plans for the material asset acquisition or disposal,
repurchase of shares of the Company or merger, division,
dissolution and alteration of corporate form of the Company;

(5) to decide on the proposals for salaries, incentives and
punishments of the Company’s staff;

(6) to decide on the establishment of special committees under the
Board and to appoint or remove its person-in-charge;

(7) to propose at general meetings for the appointment, renewal
or remove of accountants’ firm conducting auditing for the
Company; and

(8) toreview and supervise the policies and practices of the Company
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
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The Board delegates the responsibility of day-to-day business and
operations to the Company’s senior management team, which
includes its chief administration officers, the chief executive officer
and deputy chief executive officers. The senior management team
meets regularly or as frequent as necessary to formulate policies and
make recommendations to the Board. The senior management team
administers, enforces, interprets and supervises compliance with the
internal rules and operational procedures of the Company as well
as its subsidiaries and conducts regular reviews, recommends and
advises on appropriate amendments to such rules and procedures. The
senior management team reports to the Board on a regular basis and
communicates with the Board whenever required.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the corporate governance
policies and performing the corporate governance duties, which
include, among others:

(1) to develop and review the policies and practices of the Company
on corporate governance and make recommendations;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and Senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) to review and supervise the compliance of the Directors and
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code; and

(5) to review the compliance of the Company with relevant code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
make its disclosure in the corporate governance report prepared
under the Listing Rules.
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Operation of the Board

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least four times a
year. Meetings shall be convened by the Chairman and notice of
and documents for such meetings shall be sent to all Directors and
Supervisors 14 days before the meeting is held. The Chairman, any
Shareholder(s) representing more than one-tenth voting rights, more
than one-third of the Directors, or the Supervisory committee or more
than one-half of the independent non-executive Directors or the Chief
Executive Officer may propose the holding of an extraordinary meeting
of the Board. The Chairman shall convene and preside over the
extraordinary meeting of the Board within ten days upon receipt of the
proposal, and shall give written notice to all Directors and Supervisors
five days before the meeting is held. During the Reporting Period, the
Board held 36 Board meetings, one annual general meeting and one
extraordinary general meeting.

In case of urgency, the extraordinary Board meeting may be held upon
approval by the Chairman, not subject to the requirement of meeting
notice as set out in the Articles of Association, provided that reasonable
notice shall be given to Directors, Supervisors and the Chief Executive
Officer.

Nomination, Appointment and Removal of Directors

The Company has formulated formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The nominations of
new directors are considered first by the Nomination Committee and
the Remuneration Committee, then they will make recommendations
to the Board for consideration. All nominees of new directors must be
approved by the shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
Dismissal of members of the Board must also obtain approval of the
shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
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Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board held 36 meetings. All Directors
duly performed their duties and attended the meetings in person or
by electronic communication means. They made informed decisions
to safeguard the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
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whole. The attendance of Directors is as follows: o EBEHNHERMT :
Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings
EEgHERE
Name of Director EEnA BITRY
Mr. Yang Tao BExE
(appointed on 28 August 2017) (R=Z2—tFENA=T\BEZE) 16/16
Mr. Dai Richeng BARELE 36/36
Ms. Li Bo £ g
(appointed on 28 August 2017) (R=ZF—tFENAZ+N\BEZEE) 16/16
Mr. He Yuanping fAIREF 4 36/36
Mr. Yang Fang BhEE
(appointed on 28 August 2017) (R=Z—tFENA=T\BEZE) 16/16
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BALER T E 36/36
Mr. Kwok For Chi PRIELE 36/36
Mr. Hu Song kA HS 36/36
Mr. Ma Shihao BtRELE 36/36
Mr. Xu Lei HFELE
(resigned on 24 February 2017) (R=ZF—tF-A+MAEE) 3/3
Mr. Jiao Jun EEXE
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=Z—tFNAZ+\BET) 20/20
Mr. Yu Long TRERE
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=ZZ2—tENBZ+N\BEET) 20/20
Mr. Liu Xujun ZBEFLE
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=ZZE—tFENBZ+N\BEET) 20/20
Mr. Huang Yunjian BEERELE
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=F—tENB =+ N\BHEF) 20/20
Mr. Ren Gangfeng Bz i
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=Z2—tFNAZ+NBEE) 20/20
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of executive Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

During this Reporting Period, the Board has considered and approved
important proposals, mainly including:

Proposal in respect of the amendment to the Articles of
Association

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2016 annual report of
the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2016 profit distribution
plan of the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2016 financial
statements and the 2017 financial budget report of the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of the registration and
issuance of Onshore and Offshore Debt Financing Instruments by
the Company and the provision of guarantees by the Group

Proposal in respect of the approval of the delay in re-election of
the first session of the Board of the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of the nomination of Director
candidates of the second session of the Board of the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of supplemental nomination of
independent Supervisor candidates of the second session of the
Supervisory Committee.by the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of continuing connected
transactions of the Company

Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2017 interim result
report of the Company

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Pursuant to the Articles of Association, general meetings comprise BRE(RAIZER) REAE2ARKE
annual general meetings and extraordinary general meetings. FAENRERRAE RRBFAE
Annual general meetings are held once every year and within six SF&3—X  YEREL—ENKEFE
months after the conclusion of the previous financial year. During the = & RER AR RNET - RIBEH R -
Reporting Period, we held a total of 2 general meetings, including  HKMEBE T ZXARERE  HFE—
one extraordinary general meetings. The attendance of Directors is as ~ AXARERRAE - EBNHERNT ¢
follows:

Attendance/
Attendance/ Number of
Number of annual extraordinary
general meeting general meeting
BRAFXE BRREERE
HERE, HERE,
Name of Director EEnA R R
Mr. Yang Tao BetE
(appointed on 28 August 2017) (R=Z2—tFNA=-+N\BEZT) N/A 738 11
Mr. Dai Richeng BARSLE 11 11
Ms. Li Bo FRLE
(appointed on 28 August 2017) (R=ZZ—tFN\B=Z+\BEZMT) N/A 738 11
Mr. He Yuanping AT o4 11 11
Mr. Yang Fang BRxE
(appointed on 28 August 2017) (R=Z2—tFNAB=-+N\BEZF) N/A 738 11
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BAEEEE 11 11
Mr. Kwok For Chi FRERE 1/1 1/1
Mr. Hu Song A& 11 11
Mr. Ma Shihao Btt=%4E 11 1/1
Mr. Xu Lei AERE
(resigned on 24 February 2017) (R=ZZ—tF A+ W ABTE) N/A 738 N/A 738 A
Mr. Jiao Jun EELAE
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=Z2—tFENB=Z+N\BEE) 1/1 1/1
Mr. Yu Long FEEE
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=ZZ—tFENAZ+N\BEMT) 1/1 11
Mr. Liu Xujun ZEELE
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=Z—tFNAZ+N\BEME) 1/1 11
Mr. Huang Yunjian BEERERE
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=ZZ2—tENBZ+N\BEE) 11 11
Mr. Ren Gangfeng Gz e
(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=ZZE—tENBZ+N\BEET) 1/1 1/1

EEABRERDERDA 83
2017 FEH/E



84

Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

Continuous Professional Development of Directors and
Supervisors

Directors shall from time to time understand their responsibilities
as Directors of the Company, and the mode of operation, business
activities and development of the Company.

All newly appointed Directors will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to
ensure that newly appointed Directors have appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and are fully aware
of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. During the Reporting Period, Directors
of the Company have participated in the training about “Obligations of
Directors of Listing Companies” conducted by lawyers.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company constantly arrange internal seminars and
provide reading materials on relevant topics to Directors, and all
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, apart from provision of
general introduction for newly appointed Directors, the Company
has also arranged the Directors, Supervisors and relevant senior
management members to participate in a training seminar on
“Introduction to the Listing Rules, Guidelines to Directors’ Duties in the
Aspect of Valuations in Corporate Transactions, Corporate Governance
and Equity Merger and Acquisition” on 13 June 2017 hosted by
the compliance adviser, with a view to raise the level of standard
operations among the Board and senior management of the Company.

Mr. Dai Richeng, Mr. He Yuanping, Ms. Li Bo, Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi, Mr.
Kwok For Chi, Mr. Hu Song, Mr. Ma Shihao, Mr. Jiao Jun (resigned on
28 August 2017), Mr. Yu Long (resigned on 28 August 2017), Mr. Liu
Xujun (resigned on 28 August 2017), Mr. Huang Yunijian (resigned on
28 August 2017) and Mr. Ren Gangfeng (resigned on 28 August 2017)
have participated in relevant trainings and have provided the relevant
records to the Company. The Directors developed and updated their
knowledge and skills through participation in the training programmers,
which in turn ensures that they could make suitable contribution to the
Board.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

EERESCRHEEXRR

EEATHTHRAEARQIAESZH
B URAQRBZEERTN - #HEH
RER -

EREFYUYREREZENERME
X 2EREHERENAB - BEIE
EEMUEERRA L AEBREE
I 2 EIEEREE LR R R ARREER
ENBEREE FAR2RAESRHREH
W E2MEMERBE EmARES
& 1rsE3 -

EXASUBENSESERE  BE
WEHEMBRE R AEREEE
EEBEZEEMRYEGHMENERTEH
ESSFHEM A 2AKERESZ
BRSNS R AR EETIEEN
B WHBEES MBS IRE -

BE-ZF—tHT-A=1+T—-HLHF
E-BREFEEFREABNEN &
RANCRHES. ESREBESRE
BABRZZE-—LtFARAT=B2MNH
SREREENERE EmRAEN &
EAELERGEERENEEESIQTE
SRER R IEIIREE - BRIESA
AEESSNEEEBHRBEMENKT -

BERLEE MEFLEE FEHat
BHELE  BBRIELE  AREE -
BitZh4E EEXE(R=Z2—LEN
BZ+N\EE) TEEEWR=ZZE—+
FENAZTNEE)  BEEEER=
ZE—tENAZTNEE) BEEELLE
(R=ZZE—tFENB =+ N\BE)FEHR
BEAENRZZS—tFENB =+ N\BEE)
HESEAREIEY - Y E mARQTRM
ERL EEEBRSHETIIRERRE
REFABBHERERE  MAZED
AAESEELHEENER -



CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are separate and held by different persons and have been clearly
defined in the Articles of Association. Mr. Xu Lei serves as Chairman in
the first session of the Board, and after his resignation on 14 February
2017, Mr. Jiao Jun was appointed as the acting Chairman on the same
day, and Mr. Yu Long serves as Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Yang
Tao serves as Chairman in the second session of the Board, and Mr.
Yu Long serves as Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman is elected
by a majority vote of all Directors, and the Chief Executive Officer is
nominated and appointed by the Board.

The Chairman of the Board places great emphasis on communication
with the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors. The Chairman holds meetings with the non-executive
Directors and the independent non-executive Directors at least once
every year, in respect of development strategy, corporate governance,
operational management, at which no executive director is present.

The Chairman encourages open and active discussions. Directors
may speak freely at the Board meetings and actively participate in the
discussions of significant decision-makings in the Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees.
The Company had established four Board committees, being the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, Compliance
Committee and the Audit Committee.

(1). Nomination Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include: reviewing and monitoring the structure, size, composition
and diversity of members of the Board in light of the Company’s
strategy; identifying suitably qualified individuals and making
recommendations to the Board to be new Board members;
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
individuals nominated to be Directors by Shareholders; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
reviewing and monitoring the implementation of diversity policy
of Board members of the Company. Terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee have been published on the website of the
Company.
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During the Reporting Period, the former Nomination Committee
consisted of one non-executive Director, Mr. Jiao Jun (appointed
as the acting Chairman on 24 February 2017 in place of Mr.
Xu Lei who resigned as the Chairman and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee on the same day) and two independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ren Gangfeng.
According to the announcement of the Company dated 28
August 2017 in relation to (among others) the appointment and
re-appointment of Directors and Supervisors and changes in the
composition of the Board Committees (“EGM Announcement”),
the second session of the Nomination Committee consists of
one non-executive Director, Mr. Yang Tao (as Chairman) and two
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ma
Shihao, with effect from 28 August 2017.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the
Company has held the meeting once, to discuss the nomination
and appointment matters of Directors of the second session
of the Board of the Company, and review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. At such meeting, Ms. Li Bo
was nominated as a non-executive Director of the second session
of the Board, and this is the first time the Company has female
members joining the Board, which further enriches our Board
diversity strategy. Such nomination helps to enhance the scientific
decision-making of the Board and improve the Company’s
operating results, and the Company will continue to train and
identify female candidates who have the potentials to become
managerial staff and Board members. The attendance record of
the committee members are as follows:

RBEHRR - RREEZEEH—F
FUTESEERER=ZF—*
F_R-THAEZRERKEREIU
RENEXRBITERREESEES
EEMNFELE) UM EEILIFE
HITESWNEEREMELEA
B RBEARANR=_ZF-—LFNA
“HNBHENER(HPERE)ZE
EREHFERESRES  URE
FEEZRES2ERNAE(HRE
REXEAE])  F-REEREE
SH-EFHTESHEEEES
EFFEIUARMEBALFATESH
REERSFHESRELEEAR B=F
—tFNAZTNBEREX -

RBERR > XQFRBZEEH
BITT-REE  UFARAQAE
—REEEEECREEAEE
Wi EESEE. ABRARN
RBMFHTEEZHILIME - AKX
RREBTEIRLLEF_REES
SHPTES AAESEEEARE
ZMABMA  E—SEETES
22 T{LREE - ARIEBE BRI
BMEBEENEBRRAKENEAAT
L NABBEZERER
BHARAEBEAERESERE
WEMAT - ZEGCREHER
BROOT -

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

HiERE

Name of Director EEnA BRH

Mr. Yang Tao BEELE N/A 738
(appointed on 28 August 2017) (R=ZF—tFENA=T\BHEZEF)

Mr. Hu Song AR 1/1

Mr. Ma Shihao Bit=4E4E N/A 118 F

Mr. Jiao Jun EF%4 1/1

(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=FB—tENA=Z+N\BEMT)
Mr. Ren Gangfeng k=3 e 1/1

(resigned on 28 August 2017)
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The Company had adopted a Board diversity policy with a view
to achieving the diversity of the Board. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
made upon the possible contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include (among others): making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure of remuneration for all Directors and
senior management members and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy; review and approval of the remuneration proposals from
the management; making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management members; and to advise Shareholders of the
Company with respect to the service contracts of Directors that
require Shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules. Terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee have been published
on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the former Remuneration Committee
consisted of one executive Director, Mr. Yu Long, and two
independent non-executive Directors Mr. Hu Song (as Chairman)
and Mr. Ren Gangfeng. According to the EGM Announcement,
the new session of the Remuneration Committee consists of
one executive Director, Mr. Yang Fang and two independent
non-executive Directors Mr. Hu Song (as Chairman) and Mr. Ma
Shihao, with effect from 28 August 2017.
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In 2017, the Remuneration Committee provided recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration and performance management
policy and framework for the Directors and senior management.
Meanwhile, it inspected and assessed the performance of
duties by the Directors and senior management and the annual
performance. During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration
Committee of the Company has held the meeting once, to
consider and approve the proposals in respect of (among others)
the amendments to the measures for the performance and
remuneration management of senior executives, the creation
of special award for general manager and project development
awards,the attendance record of the committee members are as
follows:

R-ZE—tF . FHEESHME
ENSREEABNFHNENRE
BRER - RBOESSREMHES -
B WEENSREZAENE
THEBIRFEABETRER
Al - RIMEHA - NAFFHME
EEHBT-RER  BERTET
NAEERMFMEEE - R
REERRRNTEEBERRRER
ERE > ZEZHBEZHEREN

Attendance/

Number of

Meetings

RS,

Name of Director EEpa ERRHY

Mr. Hu Song [ vt 1/1

Mr. Yang Fang BREE 11
(appointed on 28 August 2017) (R=ZF—tFENA=+N\BEZMF)

Mr. Ma Shihao S=EE 11

Mr. Yu Long TREE N/ATER

(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=FB—tENA=Z+ BB
Mr. Ren Gangfeng i3 N/A 738 A

(resigned on 28 August 2017)

Compliance Committee

The principle responsibilities of the Compliance Committee are
to conduct independent investigation and make decisions on
compliance matters with respect to our business operations by
authorization from the Board. The Company has established the
Compliance Committee to ensure the operation of any projects
acquired and operated by us are in compliance with our internal
control standards and the relevant PRC laws and regulations.
During the Reporting Period, the Compliance Committee of the
Company has held the meeting once, all the members were
attended.
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During the Reporting Period, the former Compliance Committee
consisted of one executive Director, Mr. Yu Long (as Chairman),
and three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Kwok For
Chi, Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ren Gangfeng and one Supervisor, Ms.
Yang Chuanyun. According to the EGM Announcement, the new
session of the Compliance Committee consists of two executive
Directors, Mr. Dai Richeng (as Chairman) and Mr. Yang Fang,
three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Kwok For Chi, Mr.
Hu Song and Mr. Ma Shihao, and one employee representative
Supervisor, Ms. Yang Chuanyun, with effect from 28 August 2017.

Audit Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Company,
including making recommendations on appointing or changing
the external auditor and its terms of engagement; reviewing and
monitoring external auditor’s independence and audit process
objectively; monitor the truthfulness, accuracy and integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, annual report and accounts and
half-year report; oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control system; other
matters that the Board has authorized it to deal with. Terms of
reference of the Audit Committee have been published on the
website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the former Audit Committee
consisted of four independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Kwok
For Chi (as chairman), Mr. Hu Song, Mr. Ma Shihao and Mr. Ren
Gangfeng. The former Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial information of 2016 and the unaudited interim condensed
financial information of 2017 of the Group for the Reporting
Period. The former Audit Committee has also discussed matters
with respect to the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Company and internal control with senior management of the
Company. According to the announcement of the Company dated
28 August 2017 in relation to (among others) the appointment and
re-appointment of Directors and Supervisors and changes in the
composition of the Board Committees (“EGM Announcement”),
the second session of the Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Kwok For Chi (as
chairman), Mr. Hu Song and Mr. Ma Shihao, with effect from 28
August 2017.
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In 2017, the Audit Committee of the Company has held the
meeting twice, to review the Annual Report 2016, Interim Report
2017 of the Company, to propose the payment of dividends,
and to discuss and make recommendations on matters such
as internal control and internal audit procedures. During the
Reporting Period, the attendance record of the committee

R=Z2—t& KARAEKZEE
HETTWAEE EEEMHTA
A=F-—AFEEE  —F—tF
YEERT  ERRERERYA
HMESE - WERE R FFETH®
RIZHEE - REPH > ZEEZ

members are as follows: REHFERHNT :
Attendance/
Number of
Meetings
HERE
Name of Director EEna ERRY
Mr. Kwok For Chi HRELRE 2/2
Mr. Hu Song A 2/2
Mr. Ma Shihao S=REE 2/2

Mr. Ren Gangfeng B k=

(resigned on 28 August 2017) (R=ZZE—tFENBZ+N\BEE) 2/2

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of senior management of the
Group. Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 40 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors)
by bands for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (RMB)

EERRREEANSHFHH

AABCHFTARESREEAEN
FHBRRELEARAZHENER -
BE_Z-tF+-A=1T—HLFE
BEESHFHMNFRTHNES OB HRKRM
40 °

RIBLEEAAIEBASER » TREY
BE-_Z—tHF+-A=+—HLLFE
REEIAI TN FEREEAE(TEHE
BE)WEDH

Number of
individuals
HIMERE (AREE) A

Nil to 1,000,000
1,000,001 and above
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2017. The Directors consider that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future
and are not aware of material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue its operation as a going
concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that effective environmental, social and corporate
governance management policies are crucial to the sustainability of
the Group’s business. As such, the Group proactively enhances its
understanding of the latest laws and regulations and the best practices
both within and outside the PRC, which are relevant to the Group’s
business, as well as its management approach and management
system. As a responsible corporation, the Group is also committed and
dedicated to maintaining the highest environmental and social standards.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
in relation to its business, including but not limited to health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.
The Group understands that a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. Towards that end, it has encouraged
employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate
in environmental and social activities which benefit the community
as a whole. The Group also maintains strong relationships with its
employees, has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has
provided high quality products and services to its customers so as to
ensure sustainable development.

An ESG report has been prepared with reference to Appendix 27 ESG
report Guide to the Listing Rules. The report presents our contributions
to sustainable development during the Reporting Period, and covers
the major environmental and social policies, environmental indicators
of our Group, measures adopted for reducing emissions by our Group
and the relevant achievements of our Group. The ESG report is set out
on page 256 to 274 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management
and internal control system to safeguard the Shareholder’s investments
and the Company’s assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such
system on an annual basis with the support of the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal audit system and the risk management
and internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff in the aforementioned systems and of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and the adequacy of their training
programmes and budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through a review, considered
that the risk management and internal control system of the Company
and its subsidiaries was effective and adequate.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” from page 96 to 106 of this annual
report.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor is set out below:

JE By B B Y AR B 4
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2106 B B2 EEMIRE I -

TREJIABEBAXN,BAFTFED
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Amount
&8
RMB’ 000
AR®TT

Fee for audit services
Fee for non-audit services

BRRE

The Group also appointed other external auditors in respect of audit
services and non-audit services during the Reporting Period.

Total fees
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.
The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face
communication between the Board and the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) holding more
than 10% (individually or together with others) of Shares of the
Company shall be entitled to request for an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting according to the following procedures:

(1) Upon signing one or several written requests with the same
content and format, and stating the subject of the meeting, the
aforesaid Shareholders may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting. Concerning
the above request, the Board shall, in accordance with the law,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply
with a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to
convene an extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon
receipt of the proposal. Shares held by the above Shareholders
who made the requests shall be calculated as at the date of
submitting the written request.

(2) If the Board agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting
or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within
five days upon making the Board decision. Any changes made to
the original request in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant
Shareholders.

(8) If the Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting, or does not reply within 10 days upon
receipt of the proposal, Shareholders individually or together
holding more than 10% of the Shares are entitled to request the
Supervisory Committee in writing to hold an extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting.
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(4) If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the extraordinary
general meeting or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of
general meeting within five days upon receiving the requests. Any
changes made to the original request in the notice shall be agreed
by the relevant Shareholders.

(5) If the Supervisory Committee does not issue the notice of general
meeting within the prescribed period, it shall be deemed as the
Supervisory Committee not convening and not holding the general
meeting. Then the Shareholders who individually or together hold
more than 10% of the Shares for more than 90 consecutive days
may convene and hold the meeting themselves. Before publicly
announcing the resolution(s) of the general meeting, the convening
Shareholders shall hold no less than 10% of the Shares. When
the convening Shareholder issues the notice for general meeting
and publicly announces the resolution(s) of the general meeting,
they shall submit the relevant proof materials to the securities
regulatory authority where the Company is located and relevant
stock exchange.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholders who individually
or together holding more than 3% of the Shares may submit ad hoc
proposals in writing to the convener of the general meeting ten days
before the holding of the general meeting. The convener shall issue
a supplementary notice of the general meeting within two days upon
receipt of the proposals and announce the contents of the ad hoc
proposals.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the
Shareholders to communicate with the Company:

Contact Add:

5th Floor, Yunnan Water, 2089 Haiyuan Bei Road, Gaoxin District
Kunming Yunnan Province, the PRC

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716
Company website: www.yunnanwater.cn
E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by the law.
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AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

On 28 August 2017, the Company passed a resolution at the 2017 First
Extraordinary General Meeting to approve the amendments to Articles
of Association, which was effective on 28 August 2017. The amended
Articles of Association was published on the website of the Stock
Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo had been the company secretary of the Company. Pursuant
to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each financial
year. Mr. Li provided his training records to the Company indicating
more than 15 hours of relevant professional development by attending
courses on company secretary functions, accounting system and
Listing Rules, etc. offered by qualified professional training institutions.
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s

pwec

To the Shareholders of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Yunnan Water Investment Co.,
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on

pages 107 to 254, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then

ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

and

o The notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession
arrangements under financial asset model

° Recoverability of trade receivables

o Acquisition of Galaxy NewSpring Pte. Ltd.
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Key Audit Matter

Receivables and revenue
recognised for service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model

Refer to note 2.11(a) (i) for the
accounting policy of service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model,
note 4(a) for the critical
accounting estimates and
judgements involved, and note
20 to the consolidated financial
statements for the receivables
under service concession
arrangements.

The Group has entered into a
number of service concession
arrangements with certain
governmental authorities or their
designators (the “Grantors”)
under Build-Operate-Transfer
arrangements and Transfer-
Operate-Transfer arrangements
in respect of its sewage and
reclaimed water treatment and
water distribution services.
Certain of these service
concession arrangements are
accounted for using “financial
asset” model while others
are accounted for using
“intangible asset” model. For
the Group’s service concession
arrangements under financial
asset model, the fair value
of receivables and revenue
recognised are derived from
valuation in which a number of
critical assumptions were used.
As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of receivables
under service concession
arrangements amounted to
RMB5,111.1 million, which
accounted for 19% of the
Group’s total assets.

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

With respect to valuation and
revaluation for the service
concession arrangements
under financial asset
model undertaken during
the year, we assessed the
methodologies used by
the external valuer and
evaluated the independence,
competence and capabilities
of the external valuer.

We selected samples of service
concession arrangements under
financial asset model for testing.
The key procedures included:

1. Examining the agreements
between the Group and the
Grantors.

2. Testing the reasonableness
and appropriateness of
critical assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecasts,
mainly in relation to:

— sending confirmations to
the Grantors to confirm the
current unit price and the
future price incremental
rate;

— assessing and analysing
the reasonableness of
the operating costs by
comparing to the actual
costs of other existing
service concession
arrangements of the
Group;
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Key Audit Matter

Receivables and revenue
recognised for service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model
(Cont’d)

Management has engaged
an external valuer to perform
the valuation for those service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model
at initial recognition, and to
perform revaluation when
there were indicators that
the critical assumptions in
the initial valuation have
been significantly affected
and deviated subsequent
to initial recognition. Such
valuation and revaluation
were determined based on
the forecasted cash flows to
be derived from the related
projects which involved
critical judgements and
assumptions including but
not limited to the effective
interest rate, forecasted unit
price of service fee, operating
costs and profit margins of
the operating services. With
reference to the valuation and
revaluation performed by the
external valuer, management
determined the amount of
receivables and revenue to
be recognised for service
concession arrangements
under financial asset model
during the year, and the
subsequent measurement of
receivables and revenue.

We paid significant attention to
this area due to the significance
of receivables and revenue
recognised for service concession
arrangements under financial
asset model and there was critical
judgement involved in determining
the critical assumptions used in the
valuation and revaluation.

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

— assessing and analysing
the profit margins of
the operating services
by comparing with the
average profit margin of
the operating services of
the industry; and

— assessing the effective
interest rate by reference
to our knowledge of the
industry and independent
research on external
evidence.

We also challenged
management’s assessment
of whether the subsequent
measurement of receivables
and revenue recognised
for the service concession
arrangements under financial
asset model should be subject
to revaluation by comparing the
actual outcome, if available, with
the critical assumptions applied
in the valuation in previous
years and assessing the
potential impact of reasonably
possible changes in the critical
assumptions.

Based on our audit work, we
found the critical assumptions
used by management on
the service concession
arrangements under financial
asset model to be consistent
with the evidence that we
obtained.
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Key Audit Matter

Recoverability of trade
receivables

Refer to note 4(b) for the
critical accounting estimates
and judgements involved, and
note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements for trade
receivables.

As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of trade
receivables amounted to
RMB3,467.4 million, which
accounted for 13% of the Group’s
total assets.

The identification of impairment
events and the determination
of the impairment provision of
trade receivables require the
application of critical judgement
by management.

Management performed
individual credit evaluations
on trade receivables. These
evaluations focused on the
customers’ settlement history
and current ability to pay, and
took into account information
specific to the customers
as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in
which the customers operated.

We paid significant attention to
this area because management
made critical judgements over
both timing of recognition of
impairment and the estimation
of the amount of any such
impairment.

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding
of management’s processes
and controls over credit risk
management. This included
the identification of which
receivables were impaired and
estimation of the impairment
provisions. We determined
that we could rely on these
controls for the purposes of
our audit.

In addition, we selected
samples to inquire
management for the details of
their evaluations and tested
the underlying information
referenced by management,
which included comparing
with external evidence
obtained from our independent
research on public available
information of the customers,
performing ageing analysis,
examining the historical
transactions and settlement
records of the customers,
sending confirmations to the
customers and testing of the
subsequent settlements.

Based on the above, we
found that the judgement
applied by management
on their assessment of
the recoverability of trade
receivables was consistent
with the evidence we
obtained.
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Key Audit Matter

Acquisition of Galaxy
NewSpring Pte. Ltd.

Refer to note 4(e) for the critical
accounting estimates and
judgements involved, and note
37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 15 March 2017, the Group
completed the acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of the remaining
50% equity interest of Galaxy
NewSpring Pte. Ltd. (“GNS”,
which was a former joint venture
with 50% equity interests held
by the Group in 2016) at a cash
consideration of RMB943.4
million.This is treated as a step-up
acquisition, and thus the Group
has recognised in its consolidated
financial statements of:

— fair value gains of RMB51.8
million on the remeasurement
of the former 50% equity
interests in GNS;

— identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed from
GNS at their fair value of
RMB1,497.5 million, net; and

— goodwill of RMB194.7 million.

Management has engaged
an external valuer to assist in
performing valuation for the
identifiable net assets of GNS
and performing the relevant
purchase price allocation as
at the acquisition date. The
valuation was determined
based on the discounted cash
flows forecast of GNS.

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

In connection with the Acquisition,
we have performed the following
procedures:

® Assessed the independence,
competence and capabilities
of the external valuer;

® |nvolved our internal valuation
specialists in our test on the
valuation and purchase price
allocation;

® Evaluated the appropriateness
of the basis of methodologies
as adopted in the fair values
assessments and the
purchase price allocation;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BYZBERE

Key Audit Matter

Acquisition of Galaxy
NewSpring Pte. Ltd.

Critical judgements were
involved in the determination of
key assumptions applied in the
valuation. Moreover, the total
consideration has to be allocated
among the subsidi-aries of GNS
in proportion to their respective
fair value of identifiable net assets
as cal-culated. We considered
this area as a key audit matter
because the reasonableness of
the above mentioned judgements
and assumptions had a significant
impact on the accounting
treatment of the Acquisition.

How our audit addressed
the Key Audit Matter

® Evaluated the reasonableness
of key assumptions adopted
in the valuation and the
purchase price allocation by:
1) comparing them with the
publicly available information
of comparable companies; 2)
checking the key assumptions
against the clauses of
the service concession
arrangement agreements,
the historical financial and
operating data and the
approved budgets of GNS;
3) inquiring of management
and reviewing the
correspondences with relevant
governments to understand
the latest development plans
of the plants and the recent
development trends of water
industry;

® Discussed with management
and the external valuer about
the synergies achieved by
the Group in the Acquisition,
and reassessed the overall
reasonableness of goodwill
recognised in the Acquisition;
and

® Checked the calculation of
valuation and the purchase
price allocation.

We found that the
methodologies and key
assumptions adopted in the
valuation and the purchase
price allocation were supported
by the available evidence.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017
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U Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
auditor’s report is Zee, Ho Sum.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

B REREMGRERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HL&E

Note 2017 2016
g —E—+tf —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT ARET T
Revenue Y &= 5 5,142,242 2,865,890
Cost of sales SHEMA 8 (3,837,518) (1,986,390)
Gross profit EF 1,304,724 879,500
Other income HA 6 309,566 160,389
Other gains - net HiW = F 58 7 57,354 8,387
Selling expenses SHEMX 8 (39,524) (22,810)
Administrative expenses THRAX 8 (431,477) (331,001)
Operating profit T 1,200,643 694,465
Finance income AE W E 10 = 12,674
Finance expenses Py 3 10 (521,481) (232,816)
Finance costs - net A AN FRE 10 (521,481) (220,142)
Share of profit of investments accounted DARESR A A BRAVFE(L
for using the equity method RERF 16 23,082 42,411
Profit before income tax ER 5 FL AT A 702,244 516,734
Income tax expenses FrSHipx 11 (158,244) (102,468)
Profit for the year FWiEH 544,000 414,266
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEY S
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss AJEEE#7 B E 182319
HE
- Exchange differences on translation —BREFIINEBERN
of foreign operations bE 5 EXE 148,011 5,123
- Share of other comprehensive income — AR A A BRIV (L
of a joint venture accounted for using BE AR HA
the equity method 2 16 3,731 (29,643)
151,742 (24,520)
Total comprehensive income for the year, F RN EIX LR
net of tax (PR FLIR) 695,742 389,746

EEABRERBERAEA 107
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

EfERREMESRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HL&E

Note 2017 2016
g —E—+tf —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT ARET T
Profit attributable to: AT ANLTEMLER :
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company —RARIEBRRR 422,812 388,093
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments —XABARIAEFEA 85,444 —
- Non-controlling interests —JEIEpR S 35,744 26,173
544,000 414,266
Total comprehensive income UTALTESAEZEKRE
attributable to: i
- Ordinary shareholders of the Company —ARAREBRKRE 574,554 363,573
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments —KAERIAFEA 85,444 —
- Non-controlling interests — IFIERRER 35,744 26,173
695,742 389,746
Earnings per share for profit attributable  7</ 5] & @ R% IR = E(L
to ordinary shareholders of the kil R=T Rkl
Company (expressed in RMB per share) (BB ARBITETR)
- Basic and diluted —HARREE 12 0.354 0.325

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ~ L¥MiEHHEHE R HMERE WK ELEE
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the  EBMiFE—HBIE -
accompanying notes.

1 08 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Consolidated balance sheet

EHEEREBR

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—H
Note 2017 2016
MIEE —E—tF —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETT
ASSETS BiE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERRE 17 2,379,444 2,326,287
Investment properties REME 18 26,692 17,177
Land use rights I i A 19 189,751 192,381
Receivables under service concession PRSI RE T HET Y
arrangements FEURFRIE 20 5,058,220 2,860,146
Amounts due from customers BHRIREREFRE
for contract works 23 260,694 659,974
Intangible assets BmEEE 21 8,508,853 4,560,375
Investments accounted for using DIRESREARNIRE
the equity method 16 623,028 746,680
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 4,675 4,675
Trade and other receivables B R EMEWFIE 24 30,214 128,605
Prepayments FETFE 24 1,695,626 1,230,108
Deferred income tax assets EIEFEHEE 33 314,869 245,992
19,092,066 12,972,400
Current assets MEEE
Receivables under service concession PRSI E R HE T #Y
arrangements Y FE 20 52,928 31,082
Inventories FE 22 45,630 27,385
Amounts due from customers BHIREREFRIE
for contract works 23 405,060 30,614
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EMEWRIE 24 4,350,247 2,723,824
Prepayments IR 24 128,899 133,538
Restricted cash FRFIRE 25 124,292 9,610
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY 26 2,896,927 4,129,921
8,003,983 7,085,974
Total assets BB E 27,096,049 20,058,374
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Consolidated balance sheet

eHEEERER
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—H
Note 2017 2016
MIEE —E—tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARETT
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to ordinary AN AL BERRE
shareholders of the Company FEIGH#E 25
Share capital B 27 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves HAeth & 28 2,331,308 2,247,305
Retained earnings REBEFR 1,012,044 800,051
4,536,565 4,240,569
Perpetual capital instruments KAEBARTERE 29 1,200,000 2,000,000
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 949,384 1,005,890
Total equity LEHE I 6,685,949 7,246,459
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities EREBARE
Borrowings =L 30 9,349,422 5,689,554
Trade and other payables BN EMENFIE 31 1,272,984 49,055
Deferred income B = 32 633,892 646,997
Deferred income tax liabilities EILEFIEHERE 33 970,786 646,890
Provision BE 34 263,487 78,717
12,490,571 7,111,213

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Consolidated balance sheet

EHEEREBR

As at 31 December

m+=ZRA=+—H
Note 2017 2016
MY EE —E—+t& —E—RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Current liabilities REAE

Borrowings (EEN 30 4,438,574 2,608,925
Trade and other payables BH REMENRE 31 3,255,709 2,858,512

Amounts due to customers EHIERENEFFUE
for contract works 23 5,023 3,333
Current income tax liabilities MENFFEREE 33 220,223 229,932
7,919,529 5,700,702
Total liabilities 4 £ 1 20,410,100 12,811,915
Total equity and liabilities EHEFEEEE 27,096,049 20,058,374

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 107 to 254 were approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company on 26 March 2018 and were signed
on its behalf.

Dai Richeng
BHEHK
Director

B=

e EESEREHEEREM T — 4
BIiE -

107 EEF 254 BN HHRENR=Z
—NEZAZ+AEKERATESZH
A TRTHALRRES -

Yang Fang
%7

Director

2
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

O3 425 >
SOtREREER
Attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
ALAEEARE
Holders of
perpetual Non-
capital controlling Total
Share QOther Retained instruments interests equity
captal reserves eamings Total XAEA
e Rl REEA & IEREA  FERER PG
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARMTn  ARETR  ARETR
(note 27) (note 28) (note 29)
(Waor)  (WiEos) (Ht20)
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZF-RE-R-BRER 1193213 2264254 600,956 4,058,423 - 884,180 4,942,612
Total comprehensive income for the year ENRERGER
Profitfor the year Fhafl = = 388,093 388,003 = 26,173 414,066
Share of other comprehensive income of investments B A BRI/ E
accounted for using the equity method Ah2ERE = (29,643) (20,643) = = (29,643)
Currency translation ifferences BBREER = 5123 5123 = = 5123
- (24,520) 388,093 363,573 - 26,173 389,746
Transactions with owners in their NEEASHEEEA
capacity as owners ETHZS
Non-contralling interests on acquisition of subsidiaries {UEEHIB A B3 LR ER = = = = 282,215 282215
Capital contribution by non-controllng interests ~ FEERERHE = = = = 87,452 87,452
Issuance of perpetual capital instruments BTKAEAIR = = — 2,000,000 — 2,000,000
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries  WEBKIE A FIEEMER = (62,106) (62,106) = (266,618) (328,724)
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBLR = = = = (7.521) (7.521)
Transfer to statutory reserve EEiTERE = 69,677 (69,677) = = = =
Dividends for the year ended 31 December 2015~ HZ=Z-RE+=F=1-H
LLEERE - — ez (M9) — - (M9g)
= 7,571 (188,998) (181,427) 2,000,000 95,528 1,914,101
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+ZR=+-AMEs 1,193,213 2,247,305 800,051 4,240,569 2,000,000 1,005,890 7,246,459

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

EHEREER
Attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
ARFEEAEE
Holders of
perpetual
capital Non-
Share Other Retained instruments  controlling Total
capital reserves eamings Total KAER interests equity
ik Hthfits RBEH i IEBAN  fERES s
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETR  AREFTR  ARETn  ARETr  ARETRT  ARETR
(note 27) (note 28) (note 29)
(Bsrar) (Hfzt28) (Hzt20)
Balance at 1 January 2017 RZF-tE-F-BRER 1,193,213 2,247,305 800,051 4,240,569 2,000,000 1,005,890 7,246,459
Total comprehensive income for the year ERPENREE
Profit for the year EREF - 422,812 422,812 85,444 35,744 544,000
Share of other comprehensive income of investments bUE A RMELREL 2 AN

accounted for using the equity method — 3,731 - 3,731 - — 3,731

Currency translation ifferences ERREER = 148,011 = 148,011 = - 148,011
- 151,742 422,812 574,554 85,444 35,744 695,742
Transactions with owners in their NREAGHERENETHES

capacity as owners
Non-controlling interests on acquisition of WERBA AR ERER (W 37)

subsidiaries (note 37) — — — - 91,451 91,451
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests ~ FERERHE = = = - 143,000 143,000
Acquisttion of addtional interests in subsidlaries B2 FEEMES (M 15)

(note 15) — (159,237) - (159,237) - (305,367) (464,604)
Issuance of perpetual capital instruments BIAAEAIA = = = — 1,200,000 — 1,200,000
Redemption of perpetual capital instruments EEKAEAIA - - = = (2,000,000) — (2,000,000
Transfer to statutory reserve ETIERE = 91,498 (91,498) — - - —
Dividends for the year ended 31 December 2016~ HZ=F-x&

TZAZT-ALEENRE = (119,321) (119,321) = = (119,321)

Distribution to holders of perpetual capital instruments 2K F X ABALESEA - - - - (85,444) - (85,444)

Distribution to non-controlling interests AT HERER - - - - - (21,334) (21,334)

— (67,739) (210,819) (278,558) (885,444) (92,2500  (1,256,252)

Balance at 31 December 2017 R-F5-tE+-A=+-RH&ER 1,193,213 2,331,308 1,012,044 4,536,565 1,200,000 949,384 6,685,949
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read F ARSI R EEABEM I — 4

in conjunction with the accompanying notes. B -
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

EOHBREERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HL&E

Note 2017 2016
g —E—+tf —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBF T
Cash flows from operating activities REFBMEERE
Cash used in operations KEFARS 35 (1,256,945) (792,218)
Income tax paid 2SR (170,954) (62,641)
Interest paid 2FE (563,828) (233,375)
Net cash out flow from operating activities &= EBFT AR S FEE (1,991,727) (1,088,234)
Cash flows from investing activities BEFHNHRERE
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries, WEEKHIE AR - kR (1,416,335) (1,126,170)
net of cash acquired BENHRE
Capital injection to an associate MEERREE (49,000) —
Capital injection to a joint venture EENENEE (539,000) —
Payments for investments in a joint venture ~ REREE QTR — (670,037)
Payments for funds granted to a joint venture B4 & A AREE S (687,100) (476,488)
Prepayments for acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEHIE 2 B TEFIE (530,600) (461,609)
Payments for property, plant and equipment, #J3 - BE K RHE - (167,501) (516,512)
land use rights and other intangible assets T i AER HAib
BEEEMNR
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR MERIE 130,000 11,642
Interest received 2 URFE 49,072 17,089
Others-net Ht— 558 63,445 9,685
Net cash outflow from investing activities RETEERE (3,147,009) (3,212,400)

Pifaspecs:t

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

BHRERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HL&E

Note 2017 2016
g —E—tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Cash flows from financing activities MERIMEERE
Capital injections by non-controlling interests 38 B JEIERRAER A EE 143,000 87,452
Proceeds from issuance of perpetual é’é‘ﬁikﬂ’ézlilﬂ 1,200,000 2,000,000
capital instruments P81
Proceeds from borrowings &5 Fﬁ@ﬁk 11,570,189 7,271,925
Repayments of borrowings (EVEAEEN (6,330,805) (2,253,676)
Repayments of a perpetual capital instrument E&EkK XA EART A (2,000,000) —
Distributions paid to holders of perpetual BKAEARTA (42,638) —
capital instruments BB AZTHDIK
Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests &) 3E12 I& #E &5 2 4 B9 2K (21,334) —
Dividends paid BARE (119,321) (119,321)
Payments for acquisition of additional UL BB B A Bl RESN (464,604) (248,724)
interests in subsidiaries FER VIR
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEERE TSRS EME 3,934,487 6,737,656
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R& RREEEY (1,204,249) 2,437,022
g lipect |
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning BHREEFNRER 4,129,921 1,672,121
of the financial year REZEEYW
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and ReRReZEMER (28,745) 20,778
cash equivalents (E518) Wz
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRBESEEY 2,896,927 4,129,921

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LS HE SR EREEBREMN T — 64
conjunction with the accompanying notes. H:E -

ERABRERBERAT 115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) on 21 June 2011. On 22 July 2014, the
Company was converted from a limited liability company
into a joint stock limited liability company with registered
capital of RMB787,880,000. The address of its registered
office is 16th Floor, Block A Hecheng International, 1088
Haiyuan Zhong Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan
Province, the PRC. The Company is an investment holding
company. The Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the development, design,
construction, operation and maintenance of municipal water
supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste treatment
facilities in the PRC.

The Company’s H shares were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 May
2015 with the total share capital subsequently increased to
RMB1,193,213,000.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB?”), unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
depicted in note 4.

(@ Amendments to standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards are mandatory
for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January
2017. The adoption of these new standards and
amendments to standards does not have significant
impact to the results or financial position of the Group.

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

ERGTTERE 12558 (1BFTA)

HKAS 7 (Amendments)

BHBGERE 75 (BFTAR)

HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

EBUBRELEAFE 1258
(fERTA)

Income taxes

FriSHi

BEnExR

Statement of cash flows

2.

IE

2.1

SO RRMEE

B BRI E (F)

AR

FEBEEHHBIRRIIREA
BEREBMBREEN(E
BUHREEL NREBLH
1R (5 622 ) MR TR E 4R
o SHPBRRCBRELK
EHIRA o

RSB BPBREEANN
MBHEACRE TERS
bt - EEAAKENETTH
RIBREPTAREEEFLH
i o PR ESREH ENERM
HHEE - RRERMAFTES
HUBHERMSBEANE
B SRS -

() KEBRNGHTRAS
gaT28)

T #AMETRAEER
B=Z—tH%—-A—H
B9 46 9 B B 4F R o )
Ao BRANZE T 2R
R EEAMEET I T & A
SENRESHBIRR
ELEXRTE -

Disclosure of interest in other entities

RENHtERAES

EEABRERDERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

®)

New Standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations not yet adopted by the Group

Certain new standards, amendments to standards
and intepretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2017 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group’s assessment of the impact of
these new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations is set out below.

2. FEEFEBRBESE)
21 RREEE)
(b) A5 H 5 K R A A F

7 RENEETERIRER
2

R-Z—t&+=A
S+—AHEHEAL
EEN SGER-EY S
AT A - A
B RRE - AEEY
HESEGTED 8
BB TRRBNYE
AHWT -

HKFRS 15

BB ELERE 1558
HKFRS 9
ERNBHREEDNFEIFR
HKAS 28 (Amendments)
BBGTHERIZE 28 3% (1S5 A)
HKAS 40 (Amendments)
BEERSTHERIZE 40557 (BFTA)

HK (IFRIC) 22

BB (ERMRBRERELZESR)
2258

HKFRS 16

BRMEHREERE 165

HK (IFRIC) 23

BB (ERMEREREEZESR)
$E 239

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)
EBIBHRELERE 105K
HBE RIS 28 5% (BT A)

Revenue from contracts with customers'
REEEFIILEHIHBA

Financial instruments!

TRITA!

Investments in associates and joint ventures’

R ARRAEATNERE

Transfers of investment property’

EEREYF"

Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’

INER S RFBNKE!

Leases?
HE?
Uncertainty over income tax treatments?

FRSBURIE Y T E 1 2

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture®
REERHBENAREE ARAZBNEELES TE?

3. Effective date to be determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) Amendments to standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

The Group’s assessment of the impact about below
new standards that are expected to be applicable to
the Group is as follows:

() HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

Nature of change

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) has issued a new
standard for the recognition of revenue. This will
replace the previous revenue standards: HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
and the related interpretations on revenue
recognition. The new standard is based on the
revenue is recognised when control of a good
or service transfers to a customer. The standard
permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying
the new standard on the Group’s financial
statements and has not identified significant
impact to the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

SO RRMEE

2. FEEFEBRBESE)

21 RREEE)

(b) 5[5 5 R RN HIF &T

RANSET R (48)

REBFEESAEE

i AT B3 2 Al A9 AR
BSEWT

iy BEVERSEA
FI5E KRB HEE
FEIMEHHIWA

BEIE

RGNS
T&EBEEED
2 EEMBARE
REFER - 2%
AU B Z AT A WL
AER: BAET
% B %1855 W A
REBSFERE
MREREHIUR
BEWATERAE
BRI - HTERI
BB E m kAR
BHEGEERT
FEFRFERWA -
LERRFREE
BERAM S R] B
RN o

5/

B

EEECEER
iR Ea RS- SE 1)
BHMEROTE (B
DRSS IR e
MESEEAR MK
RREENERE
@,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) Amendments to standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

(i)

(Cont’d)
Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for the financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The
Group intends to adopt the standard using the
modified retrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the adoption will be
recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets. The standard does not
need to be applied until 1 January 2018.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) Amendments to standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

(i

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and has not identified any significant
impact from the adoption of the new standard on
1 January 2018.

The Group currently has financial assets mainly
in the category of loans and receivables, which
is measured at amortised cost. Accordingly, the
Group does not expect the new guidance to
affect the classification and measurement of these
financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements
only affect the accounting for financial liabilities
that are designated at fair value through profit
or loss and the Group does not have any such
liabilities. The derecognition rules have been
transferred from HKAS 39 Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement and have not been
changed.

2. FEEFEBRBESE)

21 RREEE)

(b) 5[5 5 R RN HIF &T

RANSET R (48)

(ii)

EREMBREE
AIEIREMT A
(#)

=

e

AEBEWEFTH
THEERAE
E s RERR
E-N\F—-A—H
R P T2 B 9 1E AT
BEAFE-

AL NEEE
5 B R PRI
#2098 %8 B 12 98 9
RAH BN BE
BBt A%E
LR £ 7
BLESWERN
SERIE -

HRHREELE
WIEERBEBES
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EREENSTTE
2 WA E
EFAZEEE &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) Amendments to standards and interpretations not yet

adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS
39. It applies to financial assets classified at
amortised cost, debt instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee
contracts. The directors consider the adoption of
the new standard may result in earlier recognition
of credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) Amendments to standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

(i

(i)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 9 must be applied for the financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The
Group will apply the new rules retrospectively
from 1 January 2018, with the practical expedients
permitted under the standard and comparatives
for 2017 will not be restated.

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

2. FEEFEBRBESE)

21 RREEE)

(b) 5[5 5 R RN HIF &T

RAAEZTER (48)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) Amendments to standards and interpretations not yet

adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB23,277,000.
The Group has not yet assessed what
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example
because of the change in the definition of the
lease term and the different treatment of variable
lease payments and of extension and termination
options. It is therefore not yet possible to
estimate the amount of right-of-use asset and
lease liabilities that will have to be recognised on
adoption of the new standard and how this may
affect the Group’s profit or loss and classification
of cash flows going forward.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) Amendments to standards and interpretations not yet
adopted by the Group (Cont’d)

(i) HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

Mandatory application date/Date of adoption by
the Group

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach
and will not restate comparative amounts for the
year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.

BB RRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group is
depicted in note 2.3.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BRI E(E)

(Cont’d)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 HZEANRRERBTTEENERE
(Cont’d) Al(#&)

2.2.2 Associates 2228& 7\ 5]

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.

e NBIEAMAEAEE
HEBEEAFEHE
3 $5% 428 51 4 = B 3=
> B—MEBH20%
ES50NREENESHE -
RS ERAERE
Fﬁé*é’&?ﬁﬂxémx
= = er YN

2.2.3Joint arrangements 2238ELZH
Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments RIBE B SR EEAR
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint FNHREEZH  RE
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends EZHNREDPEARS

on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in
the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont’d)

2.2.4 Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
depicted in note 2.12.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEE:BEHME(E)

(Cont’d)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 HREAERREZEEENE
(Cont’d) Al(4&)

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests 225 FEEDEE

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change
in ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount

AEESEAEEH K
REGIRNFERES
REBEEAEEES
BEANRS - EEE
S BB YR
ERELR 2 BN REE
HIRFE  LURREE

of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and QESWE:%EENE?E °
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a 3F?£H§:$Eﬁ%]ﬁ¥§ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁi
EAENHERKEZ

separate reserve within equity attributable to owners of
the Company

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with
the change in carrying amount recognised in profit
or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont’d)

2.2.5 Changes in ownership interests

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

2.3 Business combinations

@

Business combinations not under common control

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

ii. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

iii. equity interests issued by the Group

iv.  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

v. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.3 Business combinations (Cont’d)

(a) Business combinations not under common control
(Cont’d)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.3 Business combinations (Cont’d)

@

Business combinations not under common control
(Cont’d)

The excess of the
i consideration transferred;

ii. amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

iii. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity
or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

24

25

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

@)

®)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the group entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency and the Group’s
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a net basis within other
income or other expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(@

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

i assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

i. income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

iii.  all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the case
of leasehold improvements and certain leased plant and
equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Plants and buildings 20-50 years
Machinery 10-30 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Electronic equipment and others 5-10 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Construction in progress represents plant under
construction, which is stated at actual construction cost less
any impairment loss. Construction in progress is transferred
to fixed assets when completed and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or loss. When revalued assets are sold, it is group policy to
transfer any amounts included in other reserves in respect of
those assets to retained earnings.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of investment properties to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful life is as follows:

Plants and buildings 30-50 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.9 Intangible assets

@)

®)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as depicted in note 2.12.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose. The
units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.

Development expenditure

When the future economic benefits become apparent
as a project progresses into the development stage
the costs incurred on development projects (relating to
the design and testing of new or improved products)
are capitalised as intangible assets when recognition
criteria are fulfilled and tests for impairment are
performed annually. Other development expenditures
that do not meet those criteria are recognised as
expenses as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as expenses are not recognised as assets
in subsequent periods. Capitalised development costs
are transferred to technical know-how when the assets
are ready for use.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2017

2.

FTEEHBRBER)

29 B|BFEE

@

©®)

BE

BTy &M 2125
MEtE - WEKHEB QA
WEEBSAELEE -
BMETLTHE HEESF
ETRENR  HEB
EHRERNBETRE
ERTRERERELHE
SRERRER R Wik
AR R5HRER B 5
fR- HEEBRNHWEN
BREEFELEEREM
FRENAREE

AERBAENR D EE
BeELEN - B2
TERERHZERELE
ZEEBNEBAHNE
TEEBENIRESELE
EfAR - BREEMLR
EARRARBEEM
5 REEEENRE
KT LARERR, ©

FRE

B R R AL F 25 7] B AR
RABMERNERE
12 BERET OB
EmSAREMIEE
HE KA RFEER
REFERNMCBETLE
B UEFETRER
Ao REFEZRERE
MEMRAESHIINE
ERRERERT - 2
Al C HE SRR A BY B
AR ERERDEE
RIEEE - CERH
B 8% B AN N B AR A L fiE
RESEEERR; -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.9 Intangible assets (Cont’d)

(@

@

(€

®

©

Operating concessions

The detailed accounting policy of operating
concessions is depicted in note 2.11.

Unfulfilled contract rights

Unfulfilled contract rights represent the fair value of
unfulfilled contracts in excess of the carrying value
for unfulfilled construction contracts acquired through
business combination.

Licenses

Licenses represent the fair value of the operating
permits of solid waste treatment plants and
water supply facilities acquired through business
combination.

Technical know-how and software

Acquired technical know-how and software are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
or through business combination.

Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited
useful life using the straight-line method over the
following periods:

Operating concessions 16-30 years
Unfulfilled contract rights 2-29 years
Licenses 20-48 years
Technical know-how and software 15-47 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.10 Land use rights

2.1

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments
for land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the prepaid operating lease payments for
land over the remaining lease term or the operating period,
whichever is shorter.

Land use rights 40-50 years

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or
their designators (the “Grantors”). The service concession
arrangements consist of Build-Operate-Transfer (the “BOT”)
arrangements and Transfer-Operate-Transfer (the “TOT”)
arrangements. Under the BOT arrangements, the Group
carries out construction work of the facilities of the sewage
and reclaimed water treatment, water distribution or solid
waste treatment for the Grantors and receives in return a
right to operate the facilities of service project concerned for
a specified period of time (the “Service Concession Period”)
in accordance with the pre-established conditions set by the
Grantors, the service project should be transferred to the
Grantors with nil consideration at the end of the operation
period. A TOT arrangement is similar to a BOT arrangement,
except that the Group pays consideration for the right to
operate the facilities of the sewage and reclaimed water
treatment, water distribution or solid waste treatment that
has been built.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Cont’d)

FTEEHBRBER)

211 RIBRKFEERPE(H)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

The Group is generally entitled to use all the property,
plant and equipment of the facilities, however, the relevant
governmental authorities as Grantors will control and
regulate the scope of service that the Group must provide
with the facilities, and retain the beneficial entitlement
to any residual interest in the facilities at the end of
the Service Concession Period. Each of these service
concession arrangements is governed by a contract and,
where applicable, supplementary agreements entered into
between the Group and the relevant governmental authority
in the PRC that set out, inter alia, performance standards,
mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services rendered
by the Group, and specific obligations levied on the Group
to restore the facilities to a specified level of serviceability at
the end of the Service Concession Period and arrangements
for arbitrating disputes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

(a) Consideration given by the Grantor

(i)

Service concession arrangements under financial
asset model

A financial asset (receivables under a service
concession arrangement) is recognised to the
extent that the Group has an unconditional
right to receive cash or another financial asset
from the Grantor for the construction services
rendered and/or the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantor during
the Service Concession Period. The Group has
an unconditional right to receive cash if the
Grantor contractually guarantees to pay the
Group specified or determinable amounts or
the shortfall, if any, between amounts received
from the users of the public service and the
specified or determinable amounts. The financial
asset (receivable under a service concession
arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with
the policy set out for loans and receivables under
note 2.13 “financial assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Cont’d)

(i)

Service concession arrangements under financial
asset model (Cont’d)

When the Group receives a payment during
the concession period, it will apportion such
payment between (i) a repayment of the financial
asset (if any), which will be used to reduce the
carrying amount of financial receivables on the
consolidated statement of financial position, (i)
interest income, will be recognised as revenue
in profit or loss and (iii) revenue from operating
service in the profit or loss. Revenue from
operating service is calculated based on cost plus
a profit margin.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Cont’d)

(i

(i)

Service concession arrangements under
intangible asset model

An intangible asset (operating concession) is
recognised to the extent that the Group receives
a right to charge users of public service, which
is not an unconditional right to receive cash
because the amounts are contingent on the extent
that the public uses and service. The intangible
asset (operating concession) is accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for “intangible
assets” in note 2.9 above, which is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the Service Concession
Period.

Revenue relating to operating service are
accounted for in accordance with the policy for
note 2.29 “revenue recognition” below. Costs for
operating services are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Service concession arrangements under hybrid
model

If the Group is paid for the construction services
partly by a financial asset and partly by an
intangible asset, then each component of the
consideration is accounted for separately and
is recognised initially at the fair value of the
consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.11 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

®)

()

Construction and upgrade services

The fair value of the construction and upgrade service
under the concession arrangement is calculated as the
estimated total construction cost plus a profit margin.
The profit margins are valued by an independent
qualified valuer, based on prevailing market rate
applicable to similar construction services rendered in
similar location at date of agreement.

Revenue and costs relating to construction or upgrade
services are accounted for in accordance with the
policy for note 2.17 “construction contracts” below.

Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure to
a specified level of serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it
must fulfil as a condition of its licences, that is (i) to
maintain the sewage and reclaimed water treatment
and water distribution plants it operates to a specified
level of serviceability and/or (ii) to restore the plants
to a specified condition before they are handed over
to the Grantor at the end of the service concession
arrangements. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the sewage and reclaimed water
treatment and water distribution plants, except for
upgrade element, are recognised and measured
in accordance with the policy set out for note 2.27
“provisions” below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.13 Financial assets

2.13.1Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories:

loans and receivables, and

available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial
recognition.

(@)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. If collection
of the amounts is expected in one year or less
they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade
and other receivables”, “receivables under
service concession arrangements”, “amounts due
from customers for contract works”, “restricted
cash” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.13 Financial assets

2.13.1Classification (Cont’d)

(b)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments are designated as available-for-
sale financial assets if they do not have fixed
maturities and fixed or determinable payments,
and management intends to hold them for the
medium to long-term. Financial assets that are
not classified into any of the other categories are
also included in the available-for-sale category.

The financial assets are presented as non-current
assets unless they mature, or management
intends to dispose of them within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period.

2.13.2Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold,

the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in

other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss as gains and losses from investment securities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Cont’d)

FTEEHBRBER)

213 TREE(HE)

2.13 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.13.3Measurement 2133 at&E

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of

RABERAE  NEH
BAE A AR N (fi 53 3F 52
BEDEQIFEARD
TRHERE)WBZEME

the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets EEEEENRZ AR

carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed FTEERmEE- BBE

in profit or loss. @A ATFEARNESR/
EENRZRARER
R EH e

Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at EREEWRIELEA

amortised cost using the effective interest method. BRI B AR E AR
HIER -

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
monetary and non-monetary securities classified
as available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as “other gains - net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.13 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.13.3Measurement (Cont’d)

Available-for-sale equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are subsequently
measured at cost.

Interest on available-for-sale securities, held-to-
maturity investments and loans and receivables
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as part of
revenue from continuing operations.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as part of other income when the Group's right to
receive payments is established.

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is
determined are depicted in note 3.4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Cont’d)

FTEEHBRBER)

214 HiEE@MIT R

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet where
the Group currently have a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The Group have also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

2.15 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

@

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan or held-
to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment testing of trade receivables is depicted in
note 24.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2017

2.

EEFERME(#)

215 SRIEEREE)

BEEAA S ez BE

HRERREBUEMS @ B8
SRRBEERBERMGR
REEHRETBEREEZ
AREEBR)REMEEZ
FREBRRNRER 2 REME 2
EHETE - ZREEZIREE
A MRS AR EEARE
R fM—EERRISEEZIEH
RERZIEFE - BlFt2EM
REBRZMRESRESH
BEZREEBRAE - R
T2EEZE  AEREAF A
ABREDERT A2 A FER
ERE -

R ERE 2 REBEEHE
A MR FEm S AT
BRBERRE 2 -BEH
BREABIMEKAMEEFRK
) AIRNBEEARREEE
MR ZRERE

& 5 FEURERIE RO R R 55 A B
SF24 Rt o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Cont’d)

FTEEHBRBER)

215 S@EERE(E)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

(b) HHRHEAEZHEE

If there is objective evidence of impairment for R AHEESRE
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss ERBEz2EEHEE B
- measured as the difference between the acquisition BB (RN E R AR

cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss in a subsequent period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases in a subsequent period
and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss.

2.16 Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.17 Construction contracts

A construction contract is defined by HKAS 11,
“Construction contracts”, as a contract specifically
negotiated for the construction of an asset.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be
profitable, contract revenue is recognised over the period
of the contract by reference to the stage of completion.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of
the reporting period. When it is probable that total contract
costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
is recognised as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included in contract revenue to the extent that may have
been agreed with the customer and are capable of being
reliably measured.

The Group uses the “percentage-of-completion” method to
determine the appropriate amount to recognise in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by reference
to the contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection with future
activity on a contract are excluded from contract costs in
determining the stage of completion.

On the consolidated balance sheet, the Group reports the
net contract position for each contract as either an asset or a
liability. A contract represents an asset where costs incurred
plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed
progress billings; a contract represents a liability where the
opposite is the case.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

2.

EEFERME(#)

217 BREYW

REESBEHENE1IRY
BRENNES  [EREH]
BE-ESRIMEE—BEEM
EELEESR

E-REESHNEREETSE
hE > MEENRUEESE
Ao BISHBAZER TR
BAEHNHER - SHURARTIZ
ZHEBRELTE AR TR
RERRHEM - BERSHIRR
BREBBRESHWA - A
BREHNSEIREN -

E-REESHNERTHET
SME - AISHBWARBRRA
BB E EE SN RANE
BRHERD. ©

BHNIREEE  RERERH
EFFFASHWAR - HELLER
EEMEREHASEAEESD
PR

AEBERAITIA DL DR
EERRPBAREINES
T8 - TREREBTFZEREE
BEPRELEENESHIRA
EBRERNREEFT RS
T8 - HEETRBERE - £
FERAELERSORIEDH
BHRAE  PEBEESHKAE
A e

REfEERER  ~EBEH
BHENNEHNRRFERE
REEHRE - ECELNK
AN E #E R AR F O 2 #3R
NERBREENRE &
WHEER—REE . EBRE
KRB - HENESHAERALSE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.18 Trade receivables

2.19

2.20

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. See note
2.13 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade receivables and note 2.15 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and
deposits held at call with financial institutions.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified as
“restricted cash”. Restricted cash are excluded from cash
and cash equivalents in the cash flow statements.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Perpetual capital instruments

Perpetual capital instruments with no contractual obligation
for the Group to deliver cash or another financial asset to
the holders are classified as equity instruments. They are
initially recorded at the proceeds received within equity.
Discretionary interest declared by the Group to the holders
of perpetual capital instrument is treated as dividend.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Annual Report 2017

2.

B BRI E (F)

221 kAEAIAR

FEBVESHNETERER
SHERMEEINIFA ALK
ABATEREAERTH -
Z T BB WE ARG E

PIARER ° AEBERKAER
TEFBAERNEBERER
BERE -

222 EZRHMENFIR

ZESRIENTBEELFRA
REFEBzERERE 2R
BEEE ZESHEAEEKR
RBEBEERIAII0BRIf-
BESREMENMREIREBR
BEE  BRIFENFREFRRE
HE%12EARNEIH - B5E
BB AT ERR  HE
RASKRF B ERE R ANG

=
E-°

2.23 f&®

RN R E A FELHRE
LR G RATER - ERER
BREBHERASER FISHRE
(HIBRR 5 A AS) B m B (E R
ERAMERHIE B A RE
FEEmRTER - WEIHE
ﬂﬂ%ﬁT EMREN - AIRRAL
ﬁﬂahiﬁ%%ﬁﬁ 5

mx%m$ E%%&
T’EﬁLL RIS
JJ: Zlﬂ/zﬁm}fiiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ ZE%
HEEA R RIREE - AIZE
RERERRBE SR
AR ARAERENRE IR
e o

BRIEAREE T BIRMERGE
BRENAPELEREREZ

B2 128 BRIEREE
BREERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Cont’d)

FTEEHBRBER)

2.24 Borrowing costs 2.24 BRI

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.25 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(@) Current income tax
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Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

®)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.25 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

®)

Deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the Company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits,
which means that the allowance reduces income tax
payable and current tax expense. A deferred income
tax asset is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that
are carried forward as deferred income tax assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.26 Employee benefits

@

Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group
participate in various defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in the PRC under which the
Group and the PRC based employees are required to
make monthly contributions to these plans calculated
as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees’
payable under the plans described above. Other than
the monthly contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administrated funds managed
by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.26 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

®)

Defined benefit plan

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in
the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of
the related pension obligation. In countries where there
is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
employee benefit expense, except where included in
the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined
benefit obligation results from employee service in
the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Changes in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.26 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(b) Defined benefit plan (Cont’d)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or
credited to equity in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise.

2.27 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.28

2.29

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

(@) Sales of water and goods

Sales of water and goods are recognised when a group
entity has delivered water and goods to the customer;
the customer has accepted the water and goods and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably
assured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.29 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

®)

©

@

()

Sales from construction contracts

Income from construction service is recognised on the
percentage-of-completion method, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “construction contracts”
(note 2.17).

Rendering of service

Revenue from wastewater treatment, solid waste
treatment and other services is recognised when
service is rendered.

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans and receivables is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.30 Leases

2.31

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are not transferred to the Group as lessee are
classified as operating leases (note 36). Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in other income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. The respective leased assets are
included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk and fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with
most of the transactions being settled in RMB,
which is the functional currency of most of
the group entities. The Group also has certain
subsidiaries in foreign operations. Foreign
exchange risk arises from the recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Currency exposure arising from the
net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is
managed primarily through financing activities
denominated in the relevant foreign currencies.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

The group entities are exposed to foreign
exchange risk of foreign currencies other than
their functional currencies, primarily with respect
to the US dollars (“US$”), Euro (“EUR”) and
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) (together “Non-
functional Currencies”). The Group seeks to limit
its exposure to foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring and minimizing its net foreign currency
position. Management considers the fluctuations
in exchange rates between the functional
currencies of respective group entities and Non-
functional Currencies in which the group entities
conduct business will not have significant effect
on the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-
term borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest risk
which is partially offset by cash held at variable
rates. Borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix
of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in
order to manage its interest rate risk. The Group’s
interest-bearing bank borrowings, restricted
cash and cash and cash equivalents are stated
at amortised cost and not revalued on a periodic
basis. Floating rate interest income and expenses
are credited/charged to profit or loss as earned/
incurred.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has floating
rate borrowings amounting to RMB3,868,592,000
(2016: RMB3,098,085,000). If there would be a
general increase/decrease in the market interest
rates by 100 basis points, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit would
have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB30,074,000 for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: RMB20,598,000). The sensitivity
analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in market interest rates had
occurred as at the 31 December 2017 and 2016
and had applied the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk to those financial instruments
in existence at those dates. The estimated 100
basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s estimate of a reasonably possible
change in market interest rates over the period
until the next annual year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

®)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on group basis. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets is the carrying amounts of restricted cash, cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from customers for contract works and
receivables under service concession arrangements.

For deposit with banks, the Group has limited its credit
exposure by restricting their selection of banks on the
reputable local listed commercial banks or state-owned
banks. Management believes these financial institutions
are reputable and there is no significant credit risk of
loss on such assets.

For trade receivables (note 24) and receivables under
service concession arrangements (note 20), the
customers are primarily local governments and PRC
state-owned entities and management considers the
credit risk is not high.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

()

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by Group financial
department. Group financial department monitors
rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents
to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at all times so that the Group does not breach
borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on
any of its borrowing facilities.

The Group financial department monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The Group expects to fund its future cash
flow needs through internally generated cash flows
from operations, borrowings and perpetual capital
instruments from financial institutions.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows, including interest payments computed
using contractual rates, or, if floating, based on current
rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3. MBEREEE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 31 B¥RBEZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Cont’d) ©) nEELEREE
Between  Between
Within 1and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1FEUN 1E22F 2FES5F% 5FME “at
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBIT ARBTIT AREFR ARBEIT ARETR
Closing balance at RIE-tE
31 December 2017 +ZA=+—-H
Financial liabilities SHER
Borrowings B 5,016,807 3,055,548 5,941,969 2,105,365 16,119,689
Trade and other payables () EZREMENFIE() 2,934,701 1,309,042 30,000 13,000 4,286,743
7,951,508 4,364,590 5,971,969 2,118,365 20,406,432
Closing balance at RIZE-RE
31 December 2016 +-A=1+-H
Financial liabilities EHEaR
Borrowings A 2,904,139 1,592,384 3,815,009 899,770 9,211,302
Trade and other payables () EZREMENTE(® 2,607,338 10,000 30,000 23,000 2,670,338
5,511,477 1,602,384 3,845,009 922,770 11,881,640
H Excluding staff welfare benefit payable, other taxes J TEEEAETIREA -
payable and advances from customers. HitEHERER RS
;e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, sell assets to reduce debt or
raise funding through capital markets as necessary.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including “current
and non-current borrowings” as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
is calculated as “total equity” as shown in the consolidated
financial statements plus net borrowings.

SO RRMEE

3. MBEREEE)

3.2

EREE

REBNEXAEENENAR
EAREEEHFELE - B
R EIHR K B E AR 5548
BERMNE  URERRE
NERRBLURDEARRA

AREIABRELRER  F&
B B AR T IRER AR
B2 BRRREER - H
EEEURDBEBRRNBERER
mEEEES(WMER) -

rEERBEERBLRER
B - R RBFEHIRUA
BAGTE - BEBRERAE
(BREEHEEAERTHN
[ENHA R JE BN AR ME K ) R &
RREEEYAE - BREXTE
BA RS ¥R 3R PR 491 RE 2R 40 28 1 b0
B ERAT R

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H

2017 2016

—F—tF —E—RE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥EFT ARBT

Total borrowings (note 30) &R AAEE (FY5E30) 13,787,996 8,298,479
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 26) & : RERBEZEY

GEFD) (2,896,927)  (4,129,921)

Net borrowings BaEE 10,891,069 4,168,558

Total equity R AEER 6,685,949 7,246,459

Total capital BERHEEE 17,577,018 11,415,017

Gearing ratio EESELXR 61.96% 36.52%

The increase in the gearing ratio was resulted primarily
from the increase of borrowings during the year ended 31
December 2017.

EEABLEERESEIERHRN
BE-E—+tHF+-A=1+-—
B FEEREM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ot SRR MR
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. HMBHEREIERE)
3.3 Financial instruments by category 3.3 RENZSHNERMTA
As at 31 December
m+=ZRA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TF T AR¥T T
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables BER K EWRFRIE
- Trade and other receivables —EZNRHMEWFIE 4,380,461 2,852,429
- Receivables under service — RIS EELHET
concession arrangements Y FE S R IR 5,111,148 2,891,228
— Amounts due from customers for —-EHNIREWREF
contract works FIE 665,754 690,588
— Cash and cash equivalents -BHeRBEESEEY 2,896,927 4,129,921
- Restricted cash —ZRERE 124,292 9,610
13,178,582 10,573,776
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESRERE 4,675 4,675
13,183,257 10,578,451
Financial liabilities SRlEE
- Borrowings — & 13,787,996 8,298,479
- Trade and other payables (*) - B RHMEN
FRIE () 4,207,685 2,654,986
17,995,681 10,953,465
: Excluding staff welfare benefit payable, other taxes payable 5 TEEENEIRA - Hitt
and advances from customers. EAHEREFBK -
All financial instruments are stated at amortised cost. FESE T EIREEmAT

B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.4 Fair value estimation

The Group’s financial instruments recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet are mainly receivables and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost. The fair values
of these financial instruments approximate their carrying
amounts.

Financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed by
levels of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group does not have any
financial instruments that are measured at fair value.

BB RRME

3. MBEKREEE)

3.4

AREER

AEEREHEERBERAR
ANEHMTETERREHN
AEIRNERFIER /A
g ZETHMTANAFEHE
HIRE{EMR® -

BOFESIRNERT ATNZ
UT R FEFEBRETR

= .

HEEENEBEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing these financial
statements are evaluated and based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Service concession arrangements under financial asset
model

When the Group is paid for the construction and upgrade
services by a financial asset, significant judgement is
exercised in determining the fair values of the financial asset
at initial recognition. Cash flow forecast, effective interest
rate and other factors are used in the valuation model.
Any changes in the expected cash flows, such as effective
interest rate, forecasted unit price of service fee, operating
costs and profit margins of the operating services, will result
in change in the carrying value of the financial asset and the
revenue recognised in concession period.

According to the service concession arrangements signed
with the Grantors, the unit price of service fee would be
periodically adjusted to compensate operating cost increase,
including labour costs, material costs, taxation, through a
pricing mechanism which is still subject to regulation by local
government authorities. Judgement is required in assessing
whether increase in costs can be compensated through unit
price adjustment and the timing. In making this judgement,
the Group evaluates the pricing mechanism in the service
concession arrangements, the extent of development of
the project and status of negotiation with the government
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group records impairment of trade receivables based on
an assessment made by management on the recoverability
of trade receivables. Provisions are made where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. Impairment assessment requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of trade receivables and the
impairment charge in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

Income taxes and deferred income taxation

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Hong Kong, Thailand and Indonesia. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provision in the year in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

4,
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(b)

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet
date or whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts of goodwill has been determined
based on fair value less costs to disposal calculations, taking
into account latest market information and past experience.
These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.

Key assumptions used in the calculations are depicted in
note 21.

Accounting for acquisition of subsidiaries

Accounting for acquisition of subsidiaries require the
Group to allocate the cost of acquisition to specific assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated
fair values at the date of acquisition. Critical judgements
were involved in the valuation of identifiable net assets at the
date of acquisiton, including the determination of valuation
parameters and assumptions in the forecast cash flow of
the acquired subsidiaries. Moreover, the total consideration
has to be allocated to among the subsidiaries acquired in
proportaion to the respective fair value of identifiable net
assets as calculated. The estimation on the fair values of
identifiable net assets and allocation of the consideration
could materially impact the calculation of goodwill and
depreciation and amortisation charges in subsequent
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are the chief operating
decision-maker of the Group. Management has determined the
operating segments based on reports reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company for the purpose of allocating resources
and assessing performance.

The executive directors of the Company consider the business
from product and service perspective. The Group is organised
into five business segments as below:

(@) Wastewater treatment;

(b)  Water supply;

(c) Construction and sales of equipment;
(d) Solid waste treatment;

(e) Others, including operation and maintenance services and
other businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment results,
which is a measure of revenue and gross profit of each operating
segment.

The amounts provided to the executive directors of the Company
with respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured in
a manner consistent with that of the financial statements. These
assets and liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the
segment.

Unallocated assets mainly represented cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, certain prepayments and certain receivables
of the group entities engaging in multiple business segments.
Management considered that it is impracticable or not meaningful
in allocating to different segments.

Unallocated liabilities mainly represented certain borrowings,
certain payables and deferred income of the group entities
engaging in multiple business segments. Management considered
that it is impracticable or not meaningful in allocating to different
segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IR RME
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. SERERI(#)
(i)  Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended iy BEZZE—tF+ZA=1+-—
31 December 2017 are as follows: HitFEMND EEE K E R
XU
Year ended 31 December 2017: BgEzE_F—+tF+-HA=+—
HIEFE :
Construction Solid
Wastewater Water  and sales of waste
treatment supply  equipment treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BiER
FRRE #k  HERE  ERRE -] EI) EE)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETn ARETT AREFn ARETR ARETR ARETR
Gross segment revenue PHBEER 1683515 1,194,246 1,578,866 573,461 515,254 — 5545342
Inter-segment revenue gl e - —  (403,100) - - —  (403,100)
Revenue & 1,683515 1,194,246 1,175,766 573,461 515,254 — 5142242
Gross profit ) 518,415 144,185 422,381 152,637 67,106 — 1,304,724
Other income Bt 309,566
Other gains - net EfERE 57,354
Selling expenses HERY (39,524)
Administrative expenses iR (431,477)
Finance costs - net HERTFE (521,481)
Share of profit/loss) of investments WEREARNELRE
accounted for using the equity method &I/ (B 24,652 (23,876) 21,002 1,304 = = 23,082
Profit before income tax FrEmanER 702,044
Income tax expenses FrEmmEx (158,244)
Profit for the year g 544,000
Depreciation and amortisation mEREH (1154200 (159927 (13351)  (120,073) (12,561) (10916)  (441,248)
Segment assets =t 7528533 6,127,885 3204300  4907,107 1224204 4104011 27,006,049
Segment assets include: PHERaES:
Investments accounted for using the NEREARNRE
equity method 180,563 331,532 27,023 13,376 4,534 - 623,028
Segment liabilities par={- 2,231,133 921438 1,751,499 1,200,863 800,206 13,498,961 20,410,100
Addtions to non-current assets FRUERNAE
(other than financial instruments and (SRIANELEMSEH
deferred income tax assets) BERIM) 1,194318 2,037,282 200485 1,259,929 21,021 421916 5,140,901
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. DEER(E)
()  Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended (i) E-E—tF+-A=1—
31 December 2017 are as follows: (Cont’d) HIEFEMND B XERERH
XWT (&)
Year ended 31 December 2016: BE_F—R"FE+-HA=+-—
HIEFE :
Construction Solid
Wastewater Water  and sales of waste
treatment supply  equipment  treatment QOthers  Unallocated Total
BER

BHER ik  HERE  EBRE i AR it
RMBOOD  RMB'OOD  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTn  ARMTr  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARBTR  ARETR

Gross segment revenue PRRREE 628365 639401 1426132 425280 63,244 — 318242
Inter-segment revenue AHERE = - (31653 = = - (3165%)
Revenue & 628,365 639,401 1,109,600 425,280 63,244 — 286589
Gross profit ) 318,001 119,569 329,886 88,450 23594 - 879,500
Other income EftA 160,389
Other gains - net AtlEFE 8,387
Selling expenses HERY (22,810)
Administrative expenses THEx (331,001)
Finance costs - et HERRFE (220,142)
Share of proft of investments accounted for bUEE %A RA X ERR)

using the equity method 16,800 23,196 - - 2415 - 42,411
Profit before income tax FrstiaaR 516,734
Income tax expenses FrEmmEx (102,468)
Profit for the year g 414,266
Depreciation and amortisation EREH (35,662) (60,641) (8,310) (84,985) (5472) (144000 (209470)
Segment assets PHEE 4396604 3388706 2256373 3217256 924,381 5875054 20,058,374
Segment assets include: AREERSE:
Investments accounted for using the NERENRNRE

equity method 297,923 411,416 ~ = 37,341 - 746,680
Segment liabilities par={- 745,374 908,912 1,242,292 874,421 332,245 8,708,671 12,811,915
Addtions to non-current assets (other than S HBEENFE

financial instruments and deferred (SRIANELHRER

income tax asses) BERI) 418,947 1,079,052 14828 1264080 136,186 51045 3,864,147
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO BRI
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. SEHERHE)

(i) Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way iy PEBEEREBUNHERLEAE
as in the financial statements. The table of segment assets/ BIEmERPTE - TREIIZ
liabilities by region is as follows: IR E SN HEE,BE

As at 31 December
R+-HA=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tH —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETR ARBT T
Segment assets TEEE
- PRC — 21,985,340 13,289,257
— Thailand — % 542,897 550,238
— Indonesia — e 374,721 316,958
- Hong Kong —-58 85,677 26,867
- Singapore — F I3 3,403 —
Total segment assets DEEELELE 22,992,038 14,183,320
- Unallocated - XD EE 4,104,011 5,875,054
Total assets HEE 27,096,049 20,058,374
Segment liabilities AR
-PRC —/ 6,575,915 3,819,953
— Thailand —%=H 137,618 206,702
— Indonesia —EE 167,230 76,465
- Hong Kong —-&8 18,205 124
- Singapore — ¥ I3 12,171 —
Total segment liabilities PEHEERE 6,911,139 4,103,244
— Unallocated — KRB 13,498,961 8,708,671
Total liabilities e E 20,410,100 12,811,915
Inter-segment transfers or transactions are entered into at PHBERIRZ DR HHEN
terms and conditions agreed upon by respective parties. {I% ARARHHET - HEHBEED IHHE
Eliminations comprise inter-segment trade and non-trade BHNIEZERR - DHBEREW
balances. Pricing policy for inter-segment transactions is EERRESETEBERETE -

determined by reference to market price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B O BRI
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. DHER(HE)
(i) Breakdown of the revenue from all services and sales of (i) BEHRBERHFEEEREEN
goods is as follows: Wz 2 BAESINT ¢

Year ended 31 December

#BE+-A=+-ALEE

2017 2016

—F—tH —E-RE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T T ARBTF T

Operating services BERK 1,282,534 747,440

Construction services BIER 2,580,507 973,360

Finance income FE WA 289,532 167,755

Engineering-Procurement-Construction RET BB -ET

(“EPC”) and sales of equipment (TEPCl) KR EHE 928,951 914,091

Others Hit 60,718 63,244

5,142,242 2,865,890

(ivy Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total (ivy HxEERKWATERESR
revenue of the Group is as follow: 10% NEFWAWMT :
Year ended 31 December
HE+ZA=+—HLEE

2017 2016

—F—t& —E-RE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T ARBT

Customer A (note a) EFA(KiEEa) 762,529 732,678

Customer B (note b) & F B(MizEb) N/A & F 431,729

(@)

Customer A represents Yunnan Construction and
Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries
(together “YCIH”), which are related parties of the
Group. The detailed information of transactions with
YCIH is depicted in note 38.

The corresponding revenue did not exceed 10% of
the total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017.

@ BEFAERKENBEHASER
LERREEREBERD
AREMBAR(ERmERE
E]) - HEFRREERSMN
FHEE RSB HIEE38 °

by BFE=—F—tE+=A=+-—
B L 5 AR FE WA I S 3B AR
SEEABAK10% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IR RME
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. DEER(E)

(vy The revenue of group entities from external customers (v) SEERREMIEFHKE
broken down by location of the goods or services are RINEmSRBH RS D
delivered to is shown in the table below. HERAE S T & -

Year ended 31 December

BHE+-RA=+—HLEE
2017 2016
—F—tH —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
PRC HE] 4,908,672 2,755,345
Indonesia ENfe 115,961 12,401
Thailand Z=E 111,816 94,589
Hong Kong &E 5,793 3,555
5,142,242 2,865,890
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BB RRME

OTHER INCOME

6. HithigA

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—F—tF —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TT ARBT T
Interest income FEUA
- Bank deposits —RITER 32,091 11,038
— Other receivables from third parties —HitEWE=5
;i 4,434 7,502
— Other receivables from a joint venture —HttEWEE AT
;i 5,265 5,633
Recovery of other receivables (note a) W =] E At FE UK FRIE
(fFzEa) 95,054 —
Government grants BT B 111,334 78,979
Value-added tax refunds BEBRE 58,265 49,220
Miscellaneous income 1B N R 3,123 8,017
309,566 160,389
(@ The Group has received other receivables of (a *EEHEZE-Z—tF+=A

RMB95,054,000 which were fully impaired in prior
years during the year ended 31 December 2017.

=+t—HIEFERERRBE
FERBRIREHMEWRREA
EE#5 95,054,000 Tt °

7. OTHER GAINS - NET 7. HilEFHR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—F—tH —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Fair value gains on the remeasurement ofa FTE&E QTN AFE
joint venture (note 16(a)) Wz (MeEE 16(a)) 51,830 —
Fair value gains on the remeasurement of an 2= AN AFE
associate (note 16(b)) W25 (Ff=E 16(0)) 6,123 —
Other (losses)/gains Ht (E518) s (599) 8,387
57,354 8,387
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

8. HEUBHIHRAX

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLHFE

2017 2016

—F—tf —E-REF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥EFT ARETT

Employee benefit expenses (note 9) EEEFIFE = (FIEF9) 411,416 264,310

- Cost of sales —HERA 202,831 129,927

- Administrative expenses — 1T X 183,387 122,269

— Selling expenses —SHEMX 25,198 12,114
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -  BMERZBINE

equipment (note 17) (MFEE17) 153,094 94,506

Amortisation of land use rights (note 19) b {5 FARESE 8K (FI5E 19) 6,593 3,920

Amortisation of intangible assets (note 21) EEEEEHE(EE21) 281,561 111,044

Legal and professional fee EEREFEER 52,887 62,712

Auditor’s remuneration BB Er A 7,560 5,980

- Audit services — BEEH R 6,700 4,900

— Non-audit services — EBEETRTE 860 1,080

Allowance for doubtful debts ARG 7,976 18,362

Electricity, raw materials consumptions and KERBNE D - Fae

other costs for operating services SHFER HA R AR 587,190 214,461

Costs of construction services BIERIE KA 2,064,748 849,213

Costs of EPC and sales of equipment EPC REHE R B 567,874 603,497

Others Hith 167,620 112,196
Total cost of sales, selling expenses and HEMAK - HERXK

administrative expenses THXEAE 4,308,519 2,340,201

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS

BB RRME

EEEIRAX-SEREEME

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HL&EE

2017 2016

—E—tf —E-NE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®TT ARBT T

Wages and salaries TERF® 299,637 199,936

Pension costs of defined contribution plans EEMAETENERRE 34,529 24,041
Housing funds, medical insurances and FEARS BERRE

other social insurances REMEERE 31,868 21,374

Other welfare and allowance Hi2B R EF 45,382 18,959

411,416 264,310

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include four (2016: three) directors,
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in
note 40. Three of those directors resigned on August 2017.
The emoluments payable to the remaining one (2016: two)

individuals during the year are as follows:

(@ IEEESFAL

FEERAFENDTERSH
ALTBEONE(ZR-RF:
=ZR)EE HMES KRR
A40FRBI DA e AP = E
ERE—LtFNARE-R
AEE[HT —B(ZF—-RN
FrmB)ALTESHBMEM
TR :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—EF—tF —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T

Basic salaries, housing allowances, BEXES - FHE2 -
other benefits in kind HAinBYIEF 1,084 1,139
Bonuses SPAAN 500 360
1,584 1,499

EEABRERDERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 9.

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

(a) Five highest paid individuals (Cont’d)

The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group

fell within the following bands:

BERFFAZ—GQEEEME

(&

(@) EEBBREHAL(E)
REBZERTALTHHMESN
FLUTEE :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RE
Emolument bands &=
Nil to RMB836,000 (equivalent to ZZ AR® 836,000 T
nil to HKD1,000,000) (BEREZE
1,000,000787T) — 2
RMB1,254,000 to RMB1,672,000 AR 1,254,000 7T
(equivalent to HKD1,500,000 to Z AR¥1,672,0007T
HKD2,000,000) (8% 1,500,000 %8 7T
Z2,000,000587T) 1 —

10. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

10. BHEUWIN R A

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—F—t& —EB-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Finance income REWA
- Net exchange gains on financing —RMEEEHER
activities (note a) Wz 58 (ffat a) — (12,674)
Finance costs RMEMX
- Borrowing costs — B AN 599,353 260,525
Less: amounts capitalised on W EEREEN
qualifying assets (note b) Bt (Mizb) (105,246) (31,759)
494,107 228,766
— Unwinding of provision (note 34) — FRBRIR M (FYEE 34) 10,086 4,050
- Net exchange losses on financing - R E R HE L EE
activities (note a) FRA(MtEE a) 17,288 —
Finance costs-net AE KA FEE 521,481 220,142

1 88 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IR RME
10. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS (Cont’d) 10. FAZWNRBAE(E)

(@ Amounts mainly represented the exchange gains/losses (a) “ZRIEXEEBREUIMNSETE
of translating cash and cash equivalents and borrowings NWRERFASZEYRERN
denominated in Non-functional currencies. R Uz g -

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has b) BE=E—tHE+=-A=1+-—
capitalised borrowing costs amounting to RMB12,862,000 BLEFE  AEECHREER
and RMB92,384,000 (2016: RMB17,660,000 and ME BERZBEUAREE
RMB14,099,000) on qualifying property, plant and equipment BEEDRERCERBEA
and intangible assets, respectively. < #12,862,000t & A R ¥

92,384,000 t(= & — R F :

A K #17,660,000T & A B

#%14,099,0007T) °
Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average BE-_Z—tHF+=-RA=+—
rate of 4.80% for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: BLEFE @SRRI E
4.70%). 4.80%(=ZF—RF : 4.70%)

AU INREF IR T LLE AL -

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 11. FEHRX

Year ended 31 December
BEt+_-_HA=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARETT
Current income tax BNEA 1S HE
— Corporate income tax —¥AEHR 172,192 160,054
Deferred income tax IEEFTSH
— Increase in deferred income —EEFBHERE
tax assets (note 33) 12 hn (Ff=E 33) (44,169) (66,187)
— Increase in deferred income —EEFEBHEE
tax liabilities (note 33) 2 hn (Bt =E 33) 30,221 8,601

158,244 102,468
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

PRC corporate income tax

Certain subsidiaries in certain industries operating in the
western region of Mainland China can enjoy a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15%, provided their revenues
generated from main operating activities accounted for more
than 70% of their total revenues of the period.

Certain subsidiaries operating wastewater and solid waste
treatment projects in Mainland China are eligible for a tax
holiday of three-year full exemption followed by three-year
half exemption of corporate income tax commencing from
their first year generating operating revenue.

Except for preferential treatments available to certain
subsidiaries as mentioned above, other subsidiaries within
the Group in the PRC are subject to corporate income tax at
the statutory rate of 25% (2016: same).

Thailand corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project
in Thailand is eligible for an eight-year tax holiday of full
exemption from 2013 to 2020.

Hong Kong profits tax

The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: same).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
Group did not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: same).

Indonesia corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in
Indonesia is subject to corporate income tax at the statutory
rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
same).

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017

11.

FS R (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

HEIREATER

EHREABADDEEES
TITENETHBLARATE
Z15%NEBEELEMEHRB
Z iERHEFTELEXRKBE
EHRESHBRBKREDN
70% B E -

BB & 5K K B BE R
HEBRENETHBARNGE
REZEHZERRELEE
WEFEERE=FRBERH
B=FHWORF RGN
BBEE -

BEMEFHEARZEWE
BB AEELGRE
2 R AR 25% (2B — A
F 1 R WEER ML
S F1SB: -

ZEEEMREH

1 5 A AR B O
BARE-F-=FE=F=
BERTTHNERBM -
B RIEH
ME=F—tF+=A=+-
AL - BAEERIEHH

EH165%(ZF—NF : 1
@) e

HRAREREE-Z—LF
ToA=T—HIEFELEE
ERAERBORF - ARG
REBAEHEB(CZE X
F D MEE) e

ENfE {3 A 1S Bt

BE_Z—tF+=-A=+—
HIEEEEHRELEERERE
BEHMKBARER255% M
EEMBREMSERBHR(=
B—RF : ~NEA) -



11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IR RME
INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d) 1. FEHEAXZ(#E)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the REBERR TS HANGE R M IEE B
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average RERERANEBEE R ER M
tax rate applicable to profit of the group entities as follows: VB EMAENERSRE A
BT :
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—HLEE
2017 2016
—F—t& —T—RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT
Profit before income tax MRS B R 702,244 516,734
Less: Share of profits of W AR E AR
investments accounted for using H AL R &R T
the equity method (23,082) (42,411)
679,162 474,323
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to REBRARENERN
profits in the respective companies HETEMNHIA 136,540 90,596
Income not subject to tax BERBUIA (10,083) .
Effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIELFTER
as deferred income tax assets EENHRKEESE 29,628 9,688
Effect of expenses not deductible for RAMB A NEE
tax purpose 2,159 2,184
Income tax expenses 158,244 102,468
The weighted average applicable tax rate IR E AR E 20.1% 19.1%

EEABRERDERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)

(@)

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 20.1%
(2016: 19.1%). The increase is caused by a change in
the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective
countries and regions applying different corporate income
tax rates.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at
31 December 2017, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of RMB39,316,000 (2016: RMB9,688,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to RMB215,894,000 (2016:
RMB53,535,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses amounting to RMB32,181,000
(2016: nil) will expire in 2022, and tax losses amounting to
RMB183,713,000 (2016: RMB53,535,000) can be carried
forward indefinitely and have no expiry date.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017

11.

FS R (&)

(@)

MEFHERHRESH20.1%
(ZZ2—RF 119.1%) ° BiXK
22BN AEEKHEQRR
RATRGEMSHRBTENE
BERRENRRE DR
ik -

MEECBEEEMERZ
EEFSHEEERNER
BREAEEBRRER
BEFNERzZER - A==
—+tH&+=ZA=+—-HB 'K
EEWERUAEIKERK
ERBUANBREBEAR
#%£215,894,000 T(= & — X
F . AR¥53,535,0007T)
RIELEFMERMEENARYE
39,316,000 T(= & — < F :
A R #9,688,000) jT )
18 &5 18 A K #32,181,000 7T
(ZE2E—RF B)BER=Z
FE - RBEEBAR
#%£183,713,000 T(= & — X
F: AR#%53,535,0007T) 7]
EIRAEEEETEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

SO RRMEE

12. SRER

(@ EX
BREARBFIZANTRERE
EFRUBZE_E—tFR

—E-RE+ZA=+—HIE
FENSBTEBERMETES
B3 -

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RE
Profit attributable to the ordinary AN T EBRRELGER
shareholders of the Company (RMB’ 000) (AREFIT) 422,812 388,093
Weighted average number of ordinary 2EITHEBRINE
shares in issue (thousands) EHE(FR) 1,193,213 1,193,213
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share)  SREARZEF|
(BRARYT) 0.354 0.325
(b) Diluted (b) #E
HR-Z—tER-_F—RF

Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share as there were no potential diluted ordinary shares
outstanding as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

13. DIVIDENDS

At the board of directors meeting held on 26 March 2018, the
directors of the Company proposed a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 of RMBO0.13 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately RMB155,118,000 (2016: RMBO0.1 per
ordinary share amounting to approximately RMB119,321,000) out
of retained earnings of the Company. These proposed dividends
have not been reflected as dividends payable in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 but
will be reflected as dividends distribution for the year ending 31
December 2018.

The 2016 dividends were paid on 20 July 2017.

TZ A=+ —HIAEETEIN
MNETHESER  SSKRE
ERAN RS REANERNEE -

13. KR

EZZE-N\F=AZ+BETH
§$Em§¢ RKRAREEER
MEZE —tFE+ZA=+—
Htiﬁff&ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂ“ BREB
BRARYO013T EHHVARYE
155,118,000 (= Z— < F : B8
EERAREOIT EHYUAR
#£119,321,000t ) E A QX AR &
BRFAERS  ZEERBERELER
BE-Z—tH+=-A=+—H1
FENEBEHUBREPRMRE
EBARKRE  BERE8E-ZF—N\F
+TZA=+t—HLEEERMERE
DK °

ZE-RERE
B=+BIKft -

ERZE—t&Ft
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

14. SUBSIDIARIES

14. MIBAF

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2017, all of which are private limited liability companies:

UTA=ZF—tF+=-A=+—H
FTENMBAREE  HYRHF LH

BRATR :
Ownership
interests held by
the non-controlling
interests (%)
Principal activities and place Issued and fully Ownership interests (note c)
of incorporation and operation paid-up capital  held by the Group (%) FERETENR

Name (note a) TERS, SRt BRTREY REFREL BEEDIL (%)

#B(Mta) REXHE BREE/FREE BEAML(%) (M)

Dali Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* Sewage treatment and water supply, RMB120,000,000 45 (2016: 45) 55 (2016: 55)
(“Dali Water") the PRC ARH120,000,000 7T 45(25-RF 1 45) 55(Z%—~% 1 55)
REABEERERRAR(RBAE]) FREBRK 98 (note b)

(Hf3ED)

Yunnan Yun Shui Construction & Engineering Environmental protection equipment RMB60,000,000 100 (2016: 100) - (2016: -)
Co., Ltd* (Formerly known as OriginWater sales and construction, the PRC AR#60,0000007T  100(=Z—7E 1 100) -(ZB-RE:-)
Technology Company Limited) FREBHERER T8

ERELERIRERAT
(REEHRZKEREERERAR)

Yunnan OriginWater Membrane Technology Co., Ltd.* Environmental protection equipment sales, RMB55,614,800 100 (2016: 100) - (2016: -)
ERHRELRENAERERLR the PRC AR#55,614800T  100(=F—7E 1 100) -(ZB-RE: -)

RREEEE 7E

Jinghong Water Supply and Drainage Co., Ltd.* Sewage treatment and water supply, RMB80,000,000 51 (2016: 51) 49 (2016: 49)

FATEHKERERLA the PRC AR80,000000%  51(ZE-~E:51)  49(ZF-5F :49)
AKRERMK  hE

Honghe Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* Wastewater treatment, the PRC RMB115,500,000 100 (2016: 100) - (2016: -)
TUNKBEERERRAT KRR E ARE115500000%  100(ZF-~%F 1 100) - (ZB-RE:-)

Emin Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* Water supply, the PRC RMB50,000,000 100 (2016: 100) - (2016: -)
BYRABERRERRLA ik HE ARHES0,0000007  100(=F—7F :100) -(ZB-#E:-)

Shandong Environmental Industry Investment Environmental protection equipment sales, RMB120,000,000 100 (2016: 80) - (2016: 20)
and Development Co,, Ltd.* the PRC AR#120,000,000t  100(=F-~F : 80) - (Z5-RE:20)
WRERREXRERRARLR RREEEE 1E

Yuxi Clean Environmental Protection Technology ~ Solid waste treatment, the PRC RMB60,000,000 100 (2016: 100) - (2016: -)
Co,, Ltd.* EIERE e ARH60000000%  100(=F—7F 1 100) =22 )
TEMHRERERREREALA

Wuxi Zhongfa Water Investment Co., Ltd.* Wastewater treatment, the PRC RMB134,000,000 75 (2016: 75) 25 (2016: 25)
EHTRIBREERLA KRR HE AR134,000,000 7 715(25-~% : 75) 25(=B-RE 1 25)

Yunnan Dianzhong Water Co., Ltd.* Investment in sewage treatment RMB110,000,000 80 (2016: 80) 20 (2016: 20)
EMEPABERAR and water supply, the PRC AR%110,000,000 T 80(ZF—7% : 80) 20(=F—7~E:20)

RESKREREK  PE

Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company Limited Investment in sewage treatment HKD498,905,000 100 (2016: 100) - (2016: -)

(“Yunnan Water Hong Kong”) and water supply, Hong Kong 498,905,000  100(=F—7% : 100) -(ZB-5RE: -)

EEAB(ER)ROERARD(EBAEER )

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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14. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

14. MIBAR (%)

Ownership
interests held by
the non-controlling
interests (%)
Principal activities and place Issued and fully Ownership interests (note ¢)
of incorporation and operation paid-up capital held by the Group (%) FERERER
Name (note a) IEED, EMmitE ERTREY REEER BEAD(%)
R (Maa) REZHE BRRA/2RER BRADIL (%) (Mztc)
PJT Technology Co., Ltd Solid waste treatment, Thailand THB740,000,000 100 (2016: 100) - (2016: -)
EEEE  &E 740,000,000%%  100(ZF-~%F 1 100) - (ZB-RE:-)
Huize Water (Qingzhou) Company Limited* Water supply, the PRC RMB53,152,000 65 (2016: 65) 35 (2016: 35)
BEKBEMBERAA ik HE ARH53,152,0007 85(=F—~FE : 65) 35(ZE-AE %)
Yunnan Yunshui Xianjing Investment Co., Ltd.* Investment in sewage treatment and USD25,000,000 85 (2016: 85) 15(2016: 19)
water supply, the PRC 25,000,000 %7 85(=F—~F 1 85) 15(Z8—5~% 1 15)
WREKMIRRREEERAR REFKEEREK 78
Shandong Binzhou New Environment Investment ~ Investment in sewage treatment and RMB80,000,000 80 (2016: 80) 20 (2016: 20)
Co., Ltd.* water supply, the PRC AR80,000,0007 80(=F-~F 1 80) 20(=F-R~F:20)
WRENEHREREARNE RETKERREK 78
Shandong Tengyue Chemical Hazardous Waste Solid waste treatment, the PRC RMB108,571,429 97 (2016: 51) 3(2016: 49)
Research & Treatment Co., Ltd.* EEEE  HE ARH1085714297C 97(ZF-~E : 51) 3(ZE-AE  49)
(“Shandong Tengyue”)
WRER( 2 RRERIHREEERAR
(NLRkER])
Yunnan Kong Gang Water Co., Ltd.* Investment in sewage treatment and RMB300,000,000 80 (2016: 80) 20 (2016: 20)
EREEKEERAT water supply, the PRC AR300,000,000 7T 80(ZZ-~E 1 80) 20(ZF-~E:20)
REBKRER{K - hEl
Guizhou Renhuaihaorui Water Investment Co., Ltd.*  Investment in sewage treatment and RMB200,000,000 100 (2016:100) - (2016: -)
BN KEREERAT water supply, the PRC AR¥200,000000%  100(=F~~% 1 100) -(ZB-RE:-)
RETKEEREK  FE
Yueyang Dongting Water Investment Co., Ltd." Investment in sewage treatment and RMB100,000,000 51 (2016: 51) 49 (2016: 49)
ERRRAEREERAT water supply, the PRC AR%100,000,000 T 51(Z8—75~E  51) 49(ZF-7~E 1 49)
RESKREREK  PE
Xiaoxian Yunshui Water Investment Co., Ltd.* Water supply, the PRC RMB50,850,000 100 (2016: 100) - (2016: -)
BRZOBREERAA fiok - 8l AR%50850,000%  100(=F-7& : 100) -(Z8-7%: -)
ERABRERHERL T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

14. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

14. MIBAR (%)

Ownership

interests held by

the non-controlling

interests (%)

Principal activities and place Issued and fully Ownership interests (note c)
of incorporation and operation paid-up capital held by the Group (%) FERERER

Name (note a) IEED, EMmitE ERTREY REERELR BEAD(%)

##(Meta) REZHE BRRA/2RER BRADIL (%) (Mztc)

Wenshan Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* Wastewater treatment, the PRC RMB50,000,000 100 (2016: 100) -(2016: )
(“Wenshan Water”) KRR HE AR™50000000%  100(=F—5~%E : 100) - (ZE-7E:-)
LM BEFREERAR (UL ])

Lvliang Dingheng Water Supply Co., Ltd.* Water supply, the PRC RMB50,000,000 70 (2016: 70) 30 (2016: 30)
(“Lvliang Water") fitk > e ARH50,000,0007 70(=5-~%:70) 30(=F-7~%:30)
ERSRMHKERAT ([ BREK])

Yun Shui Gong Da Environmental Technology Investment in solid waste treatment, RMB83,700,000 76 (2016: 76) 24(2016: 24)
Co., Ltd." (*Harbin Yun Shui”) the PRC AR83,700,000 7 76(=%—~%:76) 4(=F-RE 1 24)
EREZATARRRHARNERAR REERRE 1
((REEEX])

Shunping Qingyuan Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd*  Wastewater treatment, the PRC RMB56,000,000 80 (2016: 80) 20 (2016: 20)
EPSERTKEERRAT KRR e ARE56,000000%  80(=F—xF:80) 20(=5-7F:20)

Da Li Yun Shui Environmental Protection Co., Ltd*  Investment in sewage treatment and RMB185,000,000 70 (2016: 70) 30 (2016: 30)
FBREXREREERAR water supply, the PRC AR¥185,000,000 T 70(ZB-~E 1 70) 30(=ZF—7E 1 30)

RESKREREK - hE

(@  The English names of these subsidiaries referred to in this report () AFREMBAMNVZEHE QA
represent management’s best effort at translating the Chinese HYEZBIIEEEBERSIEEES
names of those companies, as no English names have been YERBHNER  REER2AZSM
registered. R ETE -

(b)  According to the capital injection agreement date in 9 April 2014, by HBEEBHE-Z-—NFENAIA
the Group and the minority shareholders will hold 45% and 55% WL EERDE  NEBEDH
equity interests of Dali Water, respectively. As at 31 December BREAE D BIEE KIBIKFE A45%
2017, The Group has substantially controlled Dali Water through 55%HIRE - BE-_ZE—+tHF
an agreement entered into with one of minority shareholders of +-—BA=+—H ' xEBFBHA—
Dali Water pursuant to which the minority shareholder confirmed to MEHEP—-FZRIEBEBABLHKRE
act consistently with the Group in business operation and finance Fra] S 8915 s M i 41 RIB K& 8Y
decision making of Dali Water. (2016: same). REDRRE B DERERE

R EAEHABAREABHNER
KR ISR REEAEE -
TE(ZF—RF  HE) -

(c) The total non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries 0 RZZE—tHE+=-A=+—HFE

as at 31 December 2017 are RMB949,384,000 (2016:
RMB1,005,890,000), and are considered not material to the Group.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN 15

SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group acquired
additional shares of certain subsidiaries, the Group recognised
a decrease in non-controlling interests and a decrease in equity
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company. The effect
of changes in the ownership interest of the Group on the equity
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company during the

year is summarised as follows:

BB RRME

Wi B B 1B 2 R RO BB S E 25

REBE-Z-—+tHF+=-RA=1t—H
HFEE > AEBWEETHEAR
MERIMER - NREERERDIFERE

HRDUR AR BAEERRREMS

BERD  ANEBMEREEZZE

HERAXRABEBERRRELEDS
VRERLT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—EF—t& AL
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT
Carrying amount of non-controlling BRI ERERN
interests acquired BRTEI{E 305,367 266,618
Consideration for acquiring additional W REINE R AR Y
non-controlling interests RIE (464,604) (328,724)
Excess of consideration recognised within equity AEZERNREB L
BB (159,237) (62,106)

EEABRERDERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 16. UEZENRMBE

METHOD
The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as REMEEEBEREANSED
follows: N

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBT T
A joint venture (note a) & AF (MizEa) 572,287 709,339
Associates (note b) B A a] (Mgt b) 50,741 37,341
623,028 746,680
The amounts of investments accounted for using the equity NEHESEEBIAFTHESEAR
method recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss HMRESENT :
are as follows:
As at 31 December
R+-A=+—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREET T ARETT
A joint venture BE AT
— Share of profit/(loss) for the year - ELEFER
AL (E18) 21,185 (38,717)
- Negative goodwill arising from investment -~ EREE AT
in a joint venture REEENEHE = 78,713
Associates NS
— Share of profit for the year — B FERaEF 1,897 2,415

23,082 42,411

1 98 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017



16.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

METHOD (Cont’d)

(a)

Investment in a joint venture

16.

IAME EE NRRRYR & ()

(a)

REERANRE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—F—t& —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Balance at 1 January Wm—H—B8&EH% 709,339 —
Investment in a joint venture (note (ii)) REERRNRKRE
(BYEE (ii)) 539,000 670,037
Negative goodwill arising from investment of ER&E ARNKREEE
a joint venture HEe e — 78,713
Share of profit/(loss) for the year (note (iii))  BE{RFRER],
(E518) (P &E (iii)) 21,185 (38,717)
Share of other comprehensive income for ~ EEFREMEE
the year g 3,731 (29,643)
Currency translation differences EmEERE (2,636) 28,949
Fair value gains on the remeasurement of ~ FTE&EATHN
a joint venture A ERE 51,830 =
Step-up acquisition from a joint HEEQRZELWES
venture to a subsidiary (note (i) Bt 2 B (BIEE (i) (748,750) —
Elimination of unrealised profits or losses EE AR B IR B R S AR (1,412) —
Balance at 31 December R+ZHA=Z+—BHWEs 572,287 709,339

The Group has interests in a joint venture that is accounted

for using the equity method.

P

)

REBERNRESE DT
1R T U R AR -

Place of
business/
country of Percentage of
incorporation ownership interest
SENMEB As at 31 December
= M A 3L AY B 3R FTE#EZAE D
Name of entity 2017 2016
Rz —F—tFE ZZ—RF
GNS Singapore 50%
N
Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental Protection PRC 49% N/A
Company Limited* (“Haiyun Environmental”) (ii) s TiE

MTEZERFEAR AT (THEERR (i)

EEABRERDERDA

2017 FEH/E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY  16. UERENRMILE (#)
METHOD (Cont’d)
(a) Investment in a joint venture (Cont’d) (a) RABATIMBRE(E)

(i)  The principal activity of GNS is investment holding. () CGNSHEEZBEARE
The principal activities of the subsidiaries of GNS are A% o GNS [t B 2 B /Y
investments in, either directly or indirectly, water- TEER S EESEE
related infrastructure assets, including water treatment REN KB E R
plants, wastewater treatment plants and water WMEE > BFEREMK
recycling plants in the PRC. BT - 55 7k B IR B L

REBEKRE
On 15 March 2017, the Group completed the N-EBE—+tE=H+F
acquisition of the remaining 50% equity interest of B &NEBs5xERKE
GNS and GNS became a wholly-owned subsidiary of GNSHIE T 50% Ja#E
the Group (note 37). TMGNSEABAEEN2
EME AR (FFE37) »

(i) Haiyun Environmental is principally engaged in () BEBRIEEFER
investing, financing, construction, operation and EABISEERERD
management of water environment projects and MEERERNRE B
infrastructure construction projects in the PRC. BB TR ESTE o

(i) The table below provide summariesd financial (i) THRERENYERER
information for joint ventures that are individually X REARPESL DTN
immaterial to the Group. B FEE R o

2017 2016
—F—tH —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARET T
Aggregate carrying amount of BRFTEXREE ATNE
individually immaterial joint ventures  BREIE 572,287 709,339
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEEDEATHENE
share of: B
— Profit/(loss) from - REFERLEEKDN
continuing operations wmA, (E51E) 21,185 (38,717)
— Other comprehensive income —Ht2mEKA 1,095 (694)
— Total comprehensive income —ZHIKAELE 22,280 (39,411)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Auunal Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 16. UHEZZENREIIRE ()

METHOD (Cont’d)
(b) Investment in associates (b) REEQTWIRE
Year ended 31 December
HE+ZA=+—HLEE
2017 2016
—F—t& —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBTT
Balance at 1 January W—H—HB& & 37,341 34,926
Acquisition of a subsidiary W BB R A F) 4,533 -
Addition nNE 49,000 —
Share of profit for the year (note iii) D FERRR (FEE i) 1,897 2,415
Fair value gains on the remeasurement of ~ EHFFTEBHZ ATHN
an associate N EKNER 6,123 —
Step-up acquisition from an associate to HELEARZESWES
a subsidiary (note())) Bt 2 | (BEEE (i) (43,464) —
Elimination of unrealised profits or losses TEH R IR RS BT 18 (4,689) —
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=Z+—BHWEs 50,741 37,341
The Group has interests in below major associates that are FRAEBER TIIEAERE
accounted for using the equity method during the year. SIBRMEEE AR s -
Place of
business/ Percentage of
country of ownership interest
incorporation As at 31 December
S Ly FrEHEERE D
& M X LAY B 3R R+-A=+—H
Name of entity 2017 2016
BRER —F—t&E —T—F
Bazhou Keda Haorui Environmental Investment PRC (i) 43.75%
Co., Ltd.* (“Bazhou Keda”) A
EMNBHEERRIBREGR AT (TEMNRHE) ()
Langfang Yunxin Environmental Protection PRC 49% N/A
Company Limited* H TiE A

B EHMRFEEERRAF

ERABRERGERET 201
2017 FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 16. UHEZZENREIIRE ()
METHOD (Cont’d)

(b) Investment in associates (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Bazhou Keda is principally engaged in wastewater
treatment in the PRC. On 8 January 2017, the Group
acquired additional equity interests of 16.25% in
Bazhou Keda, which became a subsidiary with 60%
equity interests held by the Group (note 37).

(b) REBEQXTNRE(HE

() BEBMREZEEHRERK
EEKEBER - K=
Z—tHF—-ANH X
EEWEBDMRIENLE
SM16.25% 8% #E - i 2

HERARAEBRRFER
60% B9 [t /B -~ =) (Pt &
37) °
All of the associates are unlisted companies and there (i) FEMEQARNRFLD
were no quoted market price available for the shares. D F) B 36 5 AR AD R
E -
The table below provide summariesd financial (i) T FRBEEE B A E
information for associates that are individually I AERABEE QTR
immaterial to the Group. BITEER -
2017 2016
—EF—t& —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Aggregate carrying amount of BRI FEAREE QT
individually immaterial associates K4 BREE 50,741 37,341
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s REBEPMEUATKIE
share of: HAERE :
— Profit from continuing operations - REFELEEKN
and total comprehensive income B R 2B AKELE 1,897 2,415

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED

Auunal Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BB RRME

17. % - BB R&

Electronic
equipment
Plants and Motor  and others Construction
buildings ~ Machinery vehicles ~ EF#HER  inprogress Total
BERET 3 RE it ERIR At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT ARETR ARETR AR%Fx ARETR
At 1 January 2016 RZF-~E-A-H
Cost A 557,379 778,519 31,276 65,027 501,914 1,934,115
Accumulated depreciation Zithe (94,405 (193,692) (14,383) (14,306) — (316,786)
Net book amount REE 462,974 584,827 16,893 50,721 501,914 1,617,329
Year ended 31 December 2016 BEZF-A%E

+ZR=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 462,974 584,827 16,893 50,721 501,914 1,617,329
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KEMBAR 261,093 250,417 5,898 5815 1,047 525,170
Additions HE 59,236 31,243 16,391 13,614 165,211 285,695
Transfer from construction in progress ~ EEEERIR 144,795 410212 - - (655,007) -
Disposals e (5,817) (292) (749) (543) — (7,401)
Depreciation charge (note ) FE(fEe) (18,218) (60,950) (7,842) (7,496) — (94,506)
Closing net book amount HRREE 904,063 1,215,457 30,591 62,111 114,065 2,326,287
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"E+ZA=+-H
Cost B 1,033,674 1,547,925 59,401 89,173 114,065 2,844,238
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (129,611) (332,468) (28,810) (27,062) = (517,951)
Net book amount REFE 904,063 1,215,457 30,591 62,111 114,065 2,326,287
Year ended 31 December 2017 BEZF—t%
+ZRA=+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 904,063 1,215,457 30,591 62,111 114,065 2,326,287
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEHEAE 21 7,141 1,409 670 = 9,241
Additions B 3,049 21,211 10,742 7,856 163,732 206,590
Transfer from construction in progress ~~ EREERIRE 17,733 104 = — (17,837) —
Disposals & (10) (1,773) (3,605) (4,192 — (9,580)
Depreciation charge (note 8) FrE(fEEe) (39,121) (94,912) (11,291) (7,770) = (153,094)
Closing net book amount HEREFE 885,735 1,147,228 27,846 58,675 259,960 2,379,444
At 31 December 2017 RZF-t5+ZA=+-H
Cost A& 1,057,979 1,569,325 65,963 102,813 259,960 3,056,040
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (172,244) (422,097) (38,117) (44,138) — (676,596)
Net book amount REFE 885,735 1,147,228 27,846 58,675 259,960 2,379,444
EEKRBERERGERAD A

2017 FEH/E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 17.

Depreciation was charged to consolidated statement of profit or
loss under the following caption:

E RS C )

WEDNEHERRANUTIEE
HOBR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-ALEE

2017 2016
—E—tH —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AREET T ARET T
Cost of sales SHER A 134,759 82,980
Administrative expenses THAX 17,528 10,806
Selling expenses HEMX 807 720
153,094 94,506
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. B EWE

Year ended 31 December

BEZ+-H=1+—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—tf —E—RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARTT ARET T
Balance at 1 January W—HA—HB& & 17,177 17,764
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS KB | 10,378 160
Depreciation charge ERX (863) (747)
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=Z+—HBHWEs 26,692 17,177

(@ The Group had no contractual obligations for future repairs
and maintenance as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

(b) Independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties
were performed by independent third party valuers to
determine the fair value of the investment properties as
at 31 December 2017. The fair value of these investment
properties as at 31 December 2017 as assessed by the
valuers by direct comparison method or discounted cash
flow method were approximately RMB38,230,000 (2016:
RMB28,645,000).

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

RZE-—EtFR-F-AF
tTZA=1+—H ' XEBELE
AREEREESVHERE -

AEBREVERBILFE=
FEEMETE LGB N
EEREVER=-Z—LtHF
+=ZA=+—HWAFE-
DEREWENR-_ZT—LHF
+TZA=+-—BHNAFEL
EEMAEELBEREER
BEREZTHRNAARY
38,230,000 T(= & — N F -
AR#28,645,0007T) °



19.

20.

LAND USE RIGHTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease for lands located in the PRC with a lease term of
40-50 years, and their net book value are analysed as follows:

SO RRMEE

T HbiE R

AEBR I RENER BHEEH
NFA0ZE50F 19 B L it 49 FE 4
wEiE > HIRmEEIMWOT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HL&E

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-REF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBFT ARET T

Balance at 1 January R—A—Br&EHR 192,381 121,311
Additions NE 251 28,259
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B T B 2 ) 3,712 46,731

Amortisation charged to administrative BRAMNEER

expenses and cost of sales (note 8) SHEKA (MIEES) (6,593) (3,920)
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=Z+—BHWEs 189,751 192,381

RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENTS

The following is the summarised information of the financial asset
component (receivables under service concession arrangements)
with respect to the Group’s service concession arrangements:

B 7 R [ AR A 45 ¥
STREEARBY RBIFHAEER
BET REUGRRIR) BV E R0 T

BRF AR S R HF T R B RIR

ERBRN

As at 31 December

W+ZHA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-NE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR¥TF T
Receivables under service RIS EELTHETH
concession arrangements FEWFRIE 5,111,148 2,891,228
Portion classified as current assets PEARBEENDD (52,928) (31,082)
Non-current portion IERENE D 5,058,220 2,860,146

EEABRERDERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(@)

In respect of the Group’s receivables under service
concession arrangements, credit risks varied amongst the
Group’s projects operated in different locations of the PRC.
The collection of receivables under services concession
arrangements is closely monitored in order to minimise any
credit risk associated with the receivables.

20. BRHFHFEERHTHBIEIR

(4)

@ FMAKBERRBSFEELH
THERBFEMS @ FERR
EAEERDENE M HEE
FIEE MR - BFEEEEKRK
HEBENEAEERRE - RE
BIFEE 2T N ERWEIRR
WEI1ERZ B2 -

As at 31 December

wR+ZH=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥F T ARETT
Yunnan Province EmE 1,600,057 1,081,311
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region FBETHARRE 924,870 566,760
Shandong Province WERE 508,730 415,034
Jiangsu Province JLERE 477,314 240,551
Hebei Province sadb & 288,422 147,174
Guizhou Province =EME 220,899 —
Fujian Province BEE 210,111 —
Henan Province IEE 201,215 188,234
Anhui Province ZRAE 177,846 118,827
Guangdong Province BERE 117,076 133,337
Hebei Province JdEE 129,502 —
Shaanxi Province BREE 125,201 —
Others Hib 129,905 —
5,111,148 2,891,228

The receivables under service concession arrangements
were billable receivables. They were mainly due from
governmental authorities in Mainland China, as grantors in
respect of the Group’s service concession arrangements.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
considered fully recoverable.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 20. FREHHFARERFETHEWRE

ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) (48
(b) The expected collection schedule of receivables under (b) MRIEAFFTLE ZHET BEIR
service concession arrangements is as follows: BNTRHARG R ERAT ¢
As at 31 December
W+-A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBTT
Within one year —FHUR 52,928 31,082
One to two years —ZWE 47,114 32,812
Two to five years MERF 171,031 103,524
Over five years BRAF 4,840,075 2,723,810
5,111,148 2,891,228

EEABRERBERAEA D07
2017 FEHE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IR RME
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BREE
Unfulfilled Technical
contract know-how
Goodwill  Development Operating rights and software
(oteb) expenditure  concessions AT Licenses g% Total
8 (th) RERY  HiERE AR R HHRER @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AR®Fn  AREfr  AREfT  ARETR
At 1 January 2016 RZF-x&E-F-H
Cost AR 115,101 5920 1,463,229 33,636 88,666 39,377 1,745,929
Accumulated amortisation ZiHEH - - (22,412) (10,815) (o) (542) (34,680)
Net book amount REsE 115,101 5920 1,440,817 22,821 87,755 38,835 1,711,249
Year ended 31 December 2016 HEZS-AEtZREt-ALEE
Opening net book amount BIRETE 115,101 5920 1,440,817 22,821 87,755 38,835 1,711,249
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBLAE 109,357 - 1,462,295 21,703 569,520 3,750 2,166,625
Additions AE - 2,343 757,075 399 - 1,457 761,274
Currency translation differences EBREER 31 = 35,487 = = = 35,808
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR (879) - - (2,659) - 0 (3,537)
Transfer from development expenditure & HEEHX - (4411) - - - 4411 -
Amortisation charge (Note &) BHm% (i) = = (89,341) (11,271) (8,626) (1,806) (111,044)
Closing net book amount BRETTE 223900 3852 3,606,333 30997 648,649 46,644 4,560,375
At 31 December 2016 RZF-~E+ZRZ+-H
Cost FiR 223900 3852 3,722,35 50,538 658,186 48,829 4,707,661
Accumulated amortisation ESE i = = (116,023) (19,541) (9,537) (2,185) (147,286)
Net book amount REFE 223900 3852 3,606,333 30,997 648,649 46,644 4,560,375
Year ended 31 December 2017 HEZS-tEtZR=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 223,900 3,852 3,606,333 30,997 648,649 46,644 4,560,375
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37)  WEMBAE(H3ka7) 213,413 — 2508368 = = 49758 277,5%
Additions i - 1653 1,473,665 - - — 1475318
Currency translation differences RHAEER (9,810) = (6,967) = = (41) (16,818)
Amortisation charge (Note a) B (i) = = (247,652) (16,261) (1,778) (5,870) (281,561)
Closing net book amount BAREEFE 427,503 5505 7,333,747 14,736 636,871 90,491 8,508,353
At 31 December 2017 RZF-tE+ZA=1+-H
Cost s 421,503 550 7,697,422 50,538 658,186 98546 8,037,700
Accumulated amortisation Zitas = = (363,675) (35,802) (21,315) (8,055) (428,847)
Net book amount REFE 427,503 5,505 7,333,747 14,736 636,871 90,491 8,508,853

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Amortisation was charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss under the following caption:

21.

SO RRMEE

BREEEHE)

(a)

BHCRSOHERPHTIIE
B R :

Year ended 31 December

#BE+-A=+-ALEE

2017 2016
—E—tH —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AREET T ARET T
Cost of sales SHER A 277,512 109,243
Administrative expenses THAX 4,049 1,801
281,561 111,044
Impairment test for goodwill (b) FEERERR

The goodwill of the Group as at 31 December 2017 mainly
arose from the acquisition of GNS, Shandong Tengyue,
Harbin Yun Shui and Future International Group Co., Ltd.
(“Future International”), amounting to RMB185,310,000,
RMB109,522,000, RMB53,664,000 and RMB42,129,000,
respectively. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
goodwill was allocated to each cash generating unit (‘CGU”).
The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined based
on fair value less costs to disposal. The calculations use
pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Management determined the projection period based
on their past experience and expectation for the market
development and is consistent with their business plan.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates stated below.

AEBR=-ZE—+tE+=A
=St+-—HWEEXTZRWE
GNS: WEHER  WEE
EAREBEZEBEBRAA"
(2 )MmEX 28 A
A R #185,310,0007T * A
R #109,522,0007T * A R
#£53,664,000T & A R #
42,129,000 7t ° & A B B =
s BEIRZRSELE
N(BREEEEN] - BEE
BN ESEDREA
FEREERAEE - stEH
XA AT RS REFEA - &
BEEBRNAFHIEIE
g - EEERANEEIRE
HNEBABNBELREE
HMISRENWTEY > BRFES
LT E -3 - BB R FH
BHBESRENER T dEst
BMREHEHE -

EEABRERDERDA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO B RRM

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

(b) Impairment test for goodwill (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Key assumptions used for fair value less costs to
disposal calculations of each CGU were in the range as

follows:

21.

REEEE)
(b) FERERRE)
() BEREELBEMAE

D EREERETE
ERNEBRRRNVEED
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+_-_A=+—HLEE

Average annual growth rate

of revenue (iii)
Long-term growth rate (iv)

W 2 - 19 F 48 R =R (iii)

REERE (v)

2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBET T ARET T
5% - 9% 5% - 9%

3% 3%

Pre-tax discount rate (v)

BRI BAER 2R (v)

11% - 14%

12% - 14%

Sensitivity analysis on key assumptions used in the
calculation of the impairment tests for goodwill arose
from the above subsidiaries have been carried out. If
the average annual growth rate of revenue had been
lower than management estimates by 5% or discount
rate had been higher than management estimates by
5% with other variables held constant, the recoverable
amount of goodwill would still exceed their carrying

value and no impairment will be required.

Management determined average annual growth
rate of revenue based on past performance and its

expectations for each market development.

The long term growth rate used is consistent with the

forecasts included in each industry report.

The discount rate used is pre-tax discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections which reflects specific
risks relating to each business.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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(i)

(i)
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23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

INVENTORIES 22, H&
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tF —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBTT
Raw materials ExrR 28,064 18,367
Work in progress EEm 8,883 6,545
Finished goods BURK 8,683 2,473
45,630 27,385
No provisions for inventories have been made for the year ended BE_ZE—+tER-_ZE-—XREF+=

31 December 2017 and 2016.

B=+—-HLEHFE  UEFREFE
B -

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT 23, & TiEfEY ()= B

WORKS "
Contracts in progress at the end of the reporting periods: SEARETHESY
As at 31 December
wt+=-R=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tF —
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T AR®ETT

Costs incurred to date plus recognised

ESEEENMAMERER

profits less recognised losses AR B FERR S 18 1,050,358 803,554
Less: progress billings W EEAR (389,627) (116,299)
660,731 687,255

Analysed for reporting purposes as: FERRENDNE -

Amounts due from customers
for contract works

RENIREREFRIEA

— Non-current — JEBNER 260,694 659,974

— Current —BNHER 405,060 30,614
665,754 690,588

Amounts due to customers for contract works LA X TRRERNZEFRIE (5,023) (3,333)
660,731 687,255

EEABRERDERDA
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BB RRME

24, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

24. EH5REMBBERRERTEMNRE

As at 31 December

N+=ZRA=+—8H
2017 2016
—F—t& —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Trade receivables g 5 EWIE
- Related parties (note 38) — B8 (FiEE 38) 1,984,773 1,024,685
- Local governments — b 77 BUAT 659,286 367,560
— Other third parties —-Hih%E=H 865,067 469,629
Less: provision for impairment L ORERE (41,721) (34,430)
3,467,405 1,827,444
Borrowings to a joint venture (note 38) m—EE&E A RAELHNER
(Pt 38) — 482,378
Other receivables due from: FEUW AT & 7 HAth FEU R IE -
- Related parties (note 38) — BEHE 5 (FIEE 38) 31,412 6,403
— Third parties —5=5 889,206 543,081
Less: provision for impairment R ERE (7,562) (6,877)
913,056 1,024,985
Total trade and other receivables BE R EMEWRFIEHELE 4,380,461 2,852,429
Less: non-current portion of other receivables & : E b EUFRIERY
JERNEASS (30,214) (128,605)
Current portion of trade and other receivables & 5 &k HAtFEINFIEH
BNERER 2 4,350,247 2,723,824
Prepayments SEENE S
— Related parties (note 38) — BAH 75 (FEE 38) 67,595 25,064
— Third parties —%= 1,756,930 1,338,582
1,824,525 1,363,646
Less: non-current portion of prepayments R TR RIEIERNEAE o (1,695,626) (1,230,108)
Current portion of prepayments FETFRIEBNEAER 128,899 133,538

21 2 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
(Cont’d)

(a)

Trade receivables

In general, the Group grants credit periods of 90 to 180 days
to its customers. Ageing analysis of gross trade receivables
(including amounts due from related parties of trading in
nature) at the respective balance sheet dates, based on the
invoice dates or contractual terms, is as follows:

24,

BB RRME

B 5 Rk H it B IR R
RE(E)

(a)

B 5 RWREA

rEE-BREEZFEEWN
Z180KRMNEAE - REEE
B Z RS NIERED
HWEZEWRIEAZE(BIEE
W RAE S5 B B E R E) R
DHWMT :

As at 31 December

R+ZHBA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AER¥ET T ARBT T
Within one year —F R 2,451,422 1,502,558
One to two years —ZWE 803,928 158,404
Two to three years ME=F 101,300 130,108
Over three years =FUt 152,476 70,804
3,509,126 1,861,874

()  As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade receivables
of RMB503,479,000 (2016: RMB615,547,000) were fully
performing within credit periods.

() BE=ZF—tH+=A
=+—H  AEEBH
A E #503,479,000 JT
(ZEBE—-—RF: ARE
615,547,00070) W E 5
EWREREREBERE
ZHET -

EEABRERDERDA
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BB RRME

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
(Cont’d)

(a) Trade receivables (Cont’d)

(i)  As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade receivables
of RMB2,734,549,000 (2016: RMB1,051,516,000) were
past due but not impaired. These receivables relate to
a number of independent customers that there is no
recent history of default. Based on past experience and
project status, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The ageing of these
receivables is as follows:

24,

B 5 Rk H it B IR R
RE(E)

(a)

BZRWRIA(HE)

(i)

BE_-_Z—t&+=
B=+—H' X558
BEZREWVRREAR
#2.734,549,000 7T
(ZEBE—RF: AR¥
1,051,516,000t ) ©
BEERRE - ZS5E
W k18 B % A A HA 3 4R
EYNRBENBILEFE
B REBELRKE
BEAMR XQAAEER
ABERZEESRED
HERE FEEE2EE
BETEEREFHAL
BNERAETZHK
B - ZERERFENR
BRI -

As at 31 December

R+=-HB=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARTT ARET T
Within one year —ERA 1,827,032 769,615
One to two years —ERE 707,047 147,410
Two to three years ME=F 95,216 96,786
Over three years =FPE 105,254 37,705
2,734,549 1,051,516
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24, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Cont’d)

(a) Trade receivables (Cont’d)

(il

As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade receivables
of RMB271,098,000 (2016: RMB194,811,000) were
impaired. The provision of these trade receivables
amounted to RMB41,721,000 as of 31 December 2017
(2016: RMB34,430,000). The individually impaired
trade receivables relate to customers that were in
financial difficulties or customers that were in default
or delinquency in payments. It was assessed that a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
The ageing of these trade receivables is as follows:

BB RRME

24. E5REMBHRREREM
IR (&)

(a) EBESZEWFUR(E)

(il

BE-Z—t&+=
B=+—H A58
A B #271,098,000 7T
(ZBE—RF: ARE¥
194,811,000t ) ¥ &
FRERKBECREE- 8
E-Z—-—tH+=A
=+t—H ZZEE5E
WRENRESEAS
A B #41,721,000 T
(ZEBE—RF: AR¥
34,430,000 7T) ° fARIE
BB E 5 FE R R IE
EBUKENBENEER
EXRBEANFRNEF
B EFME HoRE
WFRIETEEA A& AT Uk -
ZEE S RERFENIER
BT :

As at 31 December

BR+=A=+—H
2017 2016

“E—tE —F-AF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBFRE  ARBTR

Within one year —F LR 130,670 120,495
One to two years —ZEME 87,122 8,062
Two to three years ME=F 6,084 33,155
Over three years =FLE 47,222 33,099

271,098 194,811
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BB RRME

24, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Cont’d)

(a) Trade receivables (Cont’d)

(iv) Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

24, BEREMEBEWSEREEM
RIE(E)
(a) EZEWFEE)

(v AEEESEBHED
AEREREMT :

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tH —E-RE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AREET T ARET T

Opening balance at 1 January H—A— BB & 34,430 12,906
Impairment provision B 13,217 25,241
Reversal due to collection Y El e (5,926) (3,717)
Closing balance at 31 December W+ZA=+—HBHAKRES 41,721 34,430

(b) Other receivables

()  As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s other receivables
of RMB882,894,000 (2016: RMB1,012,389,000) were

past due but not impaired.

(b) EHEEFRIR

) BE=TT—-—tHF+=
B=+—H'&x&H
A E #882,894,000 T
(ZEBE—XREFE: AR®
1,012,389,0007T ) ¥ &

fEWFEE BB
HE -
As at 31 December
m+=ZRA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBET T AR¥T T
Within one year —F R 526,879 639,835
One to two years —Z2RF 292,229 315,346
Two to three years ME=HF 24,613 14,588
Over three years =FHUE 39,173 42,620
882,894 1,012,389
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24, TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

(Cont’d)

(b) Other receivables (Cont’d)

(ii)

As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s other receivables
of RMB37,724,000 (2016: RMB19,473,000) were
impaired. The provision for these other receivables
was RMB7,562,000 as of 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB&6,877,000). The ageing of these other receivables
is as follows:

BB RRME

24, BEREMEBEWSEREEM

RE(E)

(b) EfEWFEIRE)

(i)

BE-_Z—t&+=
B=+—H' X558
A B #37,724,000 T
(ZE2E—-—RE: AR¥
19,473,000 T ) Ky E b &
WHIEBERE - 2=
TtEtHFFT=A=T—
A ZEHMERE
HEBEcEABEARE
7,562,000 T(= & — <
F: A K ¥6,877,000
JU) o ZEHEHMEWFIE
FIBRERINT :

As at 31 December

BR+=ZA=+—H

2017 2016

—E—tE TR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBFRE  ARBTR

Within one year — R 12,903 5,463
One to two years —EME 17,694 5,055
Two to three years ME=F 1,027 114
Over three years =FLE 6,100 8,841

37,724 19,473
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SO B RRM

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
(Cont’d)
(b) Other receivables (Cont’d)

(i) Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of
other receivables are as follows:

24, BEREMEBEWSEREEM
RIE(E)
(b) HibpEWKEE)

(i) ANER B E AL BRI
REREZEOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016

—F—tF —E-RE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥F T AR®T T

Opening balance at 1 January H—A— BB & 6,877 10,825
Impairment provision RERE 685 240
Reversal due to collection U [5] M 3¢ (=] — (3,402)
Write off bad debts G — (786)
Closing balance at 31 December W#R+ZH=+—HHEKREEH 7,562 6,877

(c) Prepayments

The Group’s prepayments are mainly for purchase of goods,
prepayments for land use rights, construction works and
other services and prepayments for acquisition of equity
interests.

(d) The carrying amount of trade and other receivables,
approximate their fair values and are mainly denominated in
RMB. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

25. RESTRICTED CASH

As at 31 December 2017, the restricted cash mainly comprised
of guarantee deposits for notes payable and construction of
projects.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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(c) FMNFE

REENANRAETERBE
BY - LR BETR
K H AR R TR TR AR R
RWBARNFIR -

d) EZBZRHMEWFZENREE
HEQNFEMESE BEENA
R¥EHE - & AHEB R
BiEERRS LS ERKR
THHARE(E - AEBEAESH
EATEFYERER -

25. ZRFRE

R=-ZB—tH+=-A=+—H %
REARECTZVEBAZBERER
5B BRAEE



26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

26.

REeRBEE%EEY

As at 31 December

R+ZH=+—H
2017 2016
—F—t& —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Cash at bank and in hand ROERRFERS 2,836,457 3,126,921
Short-term bank deposits at call (note a) S HRR AT 17 7k (i EE @) 60,470 1,003,000
2,896,927 4,129,921

As at 31 December 2017, short-term bank deposit was
denominated in RMB, with interest rate ranged from 1.1% to
1.56% per annum and will mature by 31 March 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, cash and cash equivalents of the

Group are denominated in:

RZE—tFE+ZB=+—
H> BHBRITERUARY
FFE FRNEN F11% 5
1.56%  BR-_ZFE—N\EFE=H
=+—HAZIHE -

R-FE-—tF+=-RA=1+-—
B ARENRERREEE
YILAT P EHEHE

As at 31 December

w+=ZBA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB?’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T ARET T
- RMB — AR 2,607,303 3,593,621
- HKD -8B 40,289 9,346
- USD —-X7 207,020 499,279
-THB — ek 35,126 16,532
- IDR —EEE 7,189 11,143
2,896,927 4,129,921
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BB RRME

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BAX

Number of
shares Share
(thousand) capital
& E () i
RMB’ 000
AR®ETT

As at 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, R-_ZE—XE—H—H
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 —E-R"E+A=+—8"
—E—+tf—H—HE

—E—+tH+=-H=+—H 1,193,213 1,193,213

(@ On 27 May 2015, the Company issued 287,521,000 H
shares of RMB1 each at HKD5.8 per share as public and (a)
international offers in connection with the Listing and raised
gross proceeds of approximately HKD1,667,622,000.
Besides, on 10 June 2015, pursuant to the exercise of the
over-allotment option, additional 43,128,000 shares of RMBH1
each were issued at HKD5.8 per share and raised gross

proceeds of HKD250,142,000.
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—E-FERFA=-_t+tH"
XD EEER5.8E T E
17287,521,000/8 & Ik ™ &
ARB1ITHHR EHHE
FTHERN QMK ERER R
B WESESREHAEY
1,667,622,00078 JT ° Lk 4b
—E-RAEXNABTRH: B8
R EETE B8R
5.8 Jt % 1743,128,000 %
BREEAREATHEN
Bin o WEEMESREHATE
250,142,000 3 7T °
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& Ot R
28. OTHER RESERVES 28. Hithf#HE
Capital Statutory Translation
reserve reserve reserve Total
B AR EERE E e st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EFT AR¥FTRT AR¥TRT AR®TRT
Balance at 1 January 2016 R-ZE—X"F—H—H
B BR 2,135,307 128,063 884 2,264,254
Acquisition of additional BB FT BB A Bl EEIMERS
interests in subsidiaries (62,106) — — (62,106)
Share of other comprehensive DA E A BRAY
income of investments accounted ~ FE{EIRER
for using the equity method Hith 2wz = - (29,643) (29,643)
Currency translation differences ERERE — — 5,123 5,123
Profit appropriation (note a) A B (FfEEa) — 69,677 — 69,677
Balance at 31 December 2016 RIE—RE
+ZH=+—BHM&EeH% 2,073,201 197,740 (23,636) 2,247,305
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-FE—tF—H—H
B4 8 2,073,201 197,740 (23,636) 2,247,305
Acquisition of additional interests U BB T BB A Rl BR IME RS
in subsidiaries (159,237) — = (159,237)
Share of other comprehensive DARERR A A BRIV FE(L
income of investments RENEMEZERE
accounted for using
the equity method — — 3,731 3,731
Currency translation differences [N ERE o = 148,011 148,011
Profit appropriation (note a) e B (FiEE a) — 91,498 — 91,498
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-E—t&+ZAH
=+—HrEeH 1,913,964 289,238 128,106 2,331,308

(@) Statutory reserve

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC, except for sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises,
all PRC companies are required to transfer 10% of their
profit after taxation calculated under PRC accounting
rules and regulations to the statutory reserve fund, until
the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be
used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
losses carried forward from previous years or to increase
capital of the respective companies.

(@) EERE

BRI PEARREAR B RSERR 0 R
RINEEREN  FIEREAD
A ELREPE SRR
RERTENRBRERHN
10%EREZLERES  E
EENESHBETHAME
KEI50% B I - EEEES
ARG E - B AE
KBTI FEELENEENIE
MEBATNER -

ERABRERHGERAET 2D
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BB RRME

29. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENT 20. kAEATIH
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group issued BE-_Z—tF+=-HA=+—HL
unsecured perpetual capital instruments with aggregated net FEHE  AEEQHE -REH
proceeds of RMB1,200 million to a financial institution in the PRC HBRTESRIEFEATARE
(2016: RMB2,000 million); and redeemed with the aggregate 1,200 B BT EEKFXKAERT
repayments of RMB2,000 million to a financial institution in BE(ZE—-XRE: AR¥2,0008
the PRC (2016: nil). The perpetual capital instruments have no Br) AEQPE—XESREES
maturity, and the payments of distribution can be deferred at the BEHABEARKE200058 TME
discretion of the Company. There was RMB85,444,000 of profit E(ZZ—XRF: &) - ZKAE
attributable to the holders of perpetual capital instruments for the ARTEIWEHAR » B9 IRNWZASH
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil). HAARBIBEFLUELE - BE-S
—tF+ZA=+—HLEFEXKA
EXRTEBBEARGBEINAARYE
85,444,000 T(=ZF— 75 : ) -
Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+—HALEE
2017 2016
—F—tH —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARET
Balance at 1 January R—A—HB&E& 2,000,000 —
Issues BT 1,200,000 2,000,000
Redemptions BE [ (2,000,000) —
Profit attributable to holders of perpetual KAERIAEFEA
capital instruments L &R 85,444 —
Distributions to holders of perpetual MAKAERTAFEA
capital instruments EH B 2R (85,444) —
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—Hi&EH% 1,200,000 2,000,000

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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BB RRME

30. BORROWINGS 30. f&®
As at 31 December
N+=ZA=+—8H
2017 2016
—F—t& —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARBT T
Non-current JEBNHA
Long-term bank borrowings REIRITER
- Secured —BEHR 2,867,218 1,727,559
- Unsecured — K 1,595,996 1,787,069
Corporate bonds and other borrowings NEESF REMER
— Unsecured — K 4,886,208 2,174,926
9,349,422 5,689,554
Current BIHEA
Short-term bank borrowings FEERIRITIERK
— Unsecured — iR 3,197,013 1,941,205
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings RERATERH BN 2
- Secured —HIER 455,044 102,280
- Unsecured — K 232,776 108,073
Current portion of corporate bonds and NEEFREMERD
other borrowings BIHAER 2
- Unsecured — AR 553,741 457,367
4,438,574 2,608,925
13,787,996 8,298,479
(@ The Group’s borrowings carried weighted average interest (a BE=ZE—tHF+=ZA=+-—

rates of 4.27% per annum for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: 4.70%).

(b) As at 31 December 2017, other borrowings from a related (b)
party is depicted in note 38(h)(ii).

BLEFE  ANEBFIFEREF
FEEA427T%(ZF—NF :
4.70%)

R=B—tE+=g=+—
B B B 13K
B 1% T HAFTE 38(h)(ii)
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©

30. BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 30. fEFK(#)
As at 31 December 2017, borrowings of RMB3,322,262,000 0 R=ZZE—tHE+=ZA=+-—
(2016: RMB1,829,839,000) were secured by pledge of the H T E X AR ¥
Group’s receivables under service concession arrangements, 3,322,262,000t(= & — <
land use rights and investments in subsidiaries and a joint F: A K #1,829,839,000
venture with carrying value as follows: JU)HREEN T NAEE R
BT RELTHRRFIE - +
AR AMBARR—E
BENTAINKREERERR .
As at 31 December
R+-HA=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARET T
Investments in a joint venture R—EEERAENKRE — 709,339
Investments in subsidiaries RHTEARNRE 1,608,357 542,216
Receivables under service RIS R E 2t
concession arrangements FEWFRIE 310,760 309,214
Land use rights T e AR 19,996 20,430
1,939,113 1,581,199
As at 31 December 2017, bank borrowings of Z2 -+ 5 +

RMB24,719,000 (2016: RMB24,517,000), RMB1,444,248,000
(2016: RMB1,842,103,000) and RMB306,981,000 (2016:
RMB117,000,000) were guaranteed by a PRC local
government, a related party and third parties, respectively.
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+—H RBITERA
04,719,000 (= & —
F: A E 24,517,000
TT) > A R #1,444,248,000
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1,842,103,0007t) ' LR AR
#£306,981,000 T(= & — X
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BB RRME

30. BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 30. faFK(#&)
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s borrowings were d R=Z-Z2—+tHFE+=-BA=+-—
repayable as follows: H AEBEEXPESEEBRN
T
As at 31 December
R+-HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETR ARBT T
Within one year —F LR 4,438,575 2,608,925
One to two years —ZRF 2,624,030 1,361,475
Two to five years —EREF 4,987,444 3,537,193
Over five years EFHUE 1,737,947 790,886
13,787,996 8,298,479
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate () MBERXR  ZEBEFEEN
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of NEEgBHEMRERESNEREE
each of the year are as follows: HERZNT :
As at 31 December
R+-HA=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tH —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®F ARBTT
Within six months ~NEB LA 3,894,100 3,691,523
Six months to one year ~NMEBE—HF 4,492,157 1,383,459
One to five years —ZhHE 3,855,216 2,637,161
Over five years BBRE 1,546,523 586,336
13,787,996 8,298,479
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings AREFLESWETDREE AT
approximate their fair value. BAEE o
The Group has complied with the financial covenants of H BE-B—LEMN=-T—XKEF

its borrowing facilities during the year ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

TZA=T—HLEFE  &X&
BB T B AR ER e Y B 35 22
e
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BB RRME

30. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

(@ The Group’s borrowings were denominated in:

30. f&FK(4)

(@) AEREEFUTIIERE :

As at 31 December

R+-ZA=+—H

2017 2016

—E—+tH —E—RE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARKT T ARBT T

- RMB - AR 10,978,059 6,321,026
-USD -8Bt 2,785,218 1,952,936
_EUR -%5 24,719 24,517
13,787,996 8,298,479

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. ES BRHMEMTIAE
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—H

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBFT ARET T

Trade payables: BESEARIE :

- Related parties (note 38) — BEHE 5 (PMI5E 38) 1,192,382 531,674

— Third parties —$5=% 1,836,469 1,183,181
Notes payables N 40,000 —

Other payables: HAhpE(SFRIE -

— Related parties (note 38) — BAH 75 (P £ 38) 82,562 210,553

— Third parties —@m= 1,056,272 729,578
Advances from customers REEFF B 52,531 61,328
Staff welfare benefit payable EETREF 38,562 31,312
Other taxes payable HAth 118 229,915 159,941
Less: non-current portion B - FEENERER (1,272,984) (49,055)
Current portion BNEAER 3,255,709 2,858,512
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31.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

(@)

(b)

Trade payables are settled in accordance with agreed terms

with suppliers.

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the ageing analysis of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

trade payables based on invoice date is as follows:

31.

BB RRME

BSREMEMKEGE)

(@ EIEMNFELRRBEMER
P TE R TR AE B Y ©

b)) RZEBE—tERZZE-—XRE
+ZA=1+—8 " EZENXK

HENEZ H I ERE, 2T a0

T

As at 31 December

R+ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Within one year —F LR 1,830,650 1,238,674
One to two years —EME 757,182 266,666
Two to three years —BE=F 213,277 142,570
Over three years =FBE 227,742 66,945
3,028,851 1,714,855

EEABRERDERDA
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BB RRME

32. DEFERRED INCOME 32. BTN
Deferred income represented government grants received from ELEWA—RERREBERIESKE
governmental authorities with respect to Group’s constructions of R - HKRIE - EREYERE
wastewater treatment facilities, water supply facilities, solid waste R LA T $2 3L 1 K AR 7 o BB A A B
treatment plants as well as the provision of water supply service. BB B) - B A R E S
The movement of deferred income is as below: T

Government

grants

BT BN

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Opening balance at 1 January 2016 R-E—R"E—H—H 164,876

Acquisition of subsidiaries WKEEH B A A 447,088

Additions wE 61,725
Credit to consolidated statement of profit or loss STAGEHHERR (26,692)

Closing balance t 31 December 2016 RIE—RE+ZH=1+—HH&&ER 646,997

Opening balance at 1 January 2017 RIE—t&E—RA—HEWMER 646,997

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) WEEK B A B (BIEE37) 10,409

Additions nE 16,829
Credit to consolidated statement of profit or loss SFAEHHERR (40,343)

Closing balance at 31 December 2017 RIE—t&+A=+—HEKRER 633,892

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A OEBRENE
33. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 33. IEIEERH
(a) Deferred income tax assets (a) EEFBHREE
As at 31 December
R+ZHA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETT AR¥T T
The balance comprises temporary HERAEYREER
differences attributable to:
Government grants B #EED 132,242 139,214
Tax losses HIEEE 81,406 33,156
Accrued expenses FEFTR X 71,231 27,155
Unrealised profit of intercompany NEERGARER
transactions eyl 31,794 14,343
Provision for impairment of trade and other Z 5 & HhEUFIE
receivables EERE 22,509 40,786
Staff welfare benefit payable N ETREF 638 695
Total deferred income tax assets EILFTSR EE4AEE 339,820 255,349
Set off of deferred income tax liabilities RIBIKSEIRER TR
pursuant to set-off provisions FEHias (24,951) (9,357)
Net deferred income tax assets THIEILFTBREE 314,869 245,992

EHABRERBERAT  D2Q
2017 FEHE
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BB RRME

(a)

33. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 33. IRIEFBH
Deferred income tax assets (Cont’d) (@) EEZEFRBHEEE)
Provision for
impairment of
Unrealised ~ trade and Staff
profit of other welfare
intercompany  receivables benefit
Government Accrued  transactions B4R payable
grants  Taxlosses  expenses  AFAEXE fpek FEft Total
Movements 29 BH 3 Eifx  AERER  EHERG 81 &t
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2016 120165 1R 1B4&# 17,016 10,760 5,628 4467 25219 1,157 64,307
(Charge)/creditto consolidated statement B/ /(E&) 4R
of profit or loss 8412 2,39 1,527 9,876 4438 (462) 66,187
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENEAR 113786 - - - 11,069 - 124,855
Balance at 31 December 2016 2016512 731 RER 139214 33,156 21,155 14,343 40,786 695 255,349
Balance at 1 January 2017 R01TE1 B BER 139,214 33,156 27,155 14343 40,786 695 255,349
(Charge)/credit to consoldated statement B%/(E8)
of profit or loss Aftea (6,972) 24,215 21,149 17451 (18211) (57) 44,169
Acquisiton of subsidaris note 37) WEEMR AR (Mt 37) = 2975 2384 = = = 47,809
Reversal e = = (7507) = = = (7.507)
Balance at 31 December 2017 ROITE12 31 RER 182202 81,406 71,281 31,794 2,509 638 339,820
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BB RRME

33. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax liabilities

IEEFRSH (%)

(b) EEFBHEE

As at 31 December

wR+ZHA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —EF-RF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T ARETT
The balance comprises temporary HEEAREYREER
differences attributable to:
Fair value gains N EWRE (868,672) (593,085)
Service concession receivables RIS 4 EF FE U R IE (123,397) (61,677)
Accelerated tax depreciation IR E (3,668) (1,485)
Total deferred income tax liabilities EEFrERa &R (995,737) (656,247)
Set off of deferred income tax assets RIBIKSHIRRERTE
pursuant to set-off provisions BEEFIEBHERE 24,951 9,357
Net deferred income tax liabilities FIELEMESHEE (970,786) (646,890)
Service
concession Accelerated
Fair value receivables tax
gains PR 4 aF depreciation Total
Movements 28 ATERE B EE ERENE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Opening balance at #2016 51 A1H
1 January 2016 HiEs (167,335) (34,220) (4,695) (206,250)
Credit/(charge) to consolidated B8R/ (F8)6MHER
statement of profit or loss 15,646 (27,457) 3,210 (8,601)
Acquisition of subsidiaries KERBAR (441,396) — — (441,396)
Closing balance at #2016 £12 A 31 B R &S
31 December 2016 (593,085) (61,677) (1,485) (656,247)
Opening balance at #2017 51 A1 REMES
1 January 2017 (593,085) (61,677) (1,485) (656,247)
Credit/(charge) to consolidated BR/(GB)AMHER
statement of profit or loss 33,682 (61,720) (2,183) (30,221)
Acquisition of subsidiaries I B RES A ) (HE 37)
(note 37) (309,269) = — (309,269)
Closing balance at 2017512 A31 R A&
31 December 2017 (868,672) (128,397 (3,668) (995,737)
EEKRBERERGERAD A
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SO B RRM

34. PROVISIONS 34. &
Maintenance Employee

costs benefit Total
HAE A EEEHN st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR¥T T

(note a)

(MtzEa)
Opening balance R_E—RE—HA—H

at 1 January 2016 HAfn &5 64 21,951 3,840 25,791
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BB B/ A ) 27,904 — 27,904
Provision capitalised in REFEER

intangible assets B EREER 21,057 — 21,057
Amortised to consolidated BiEzaoHERR

statement of profit or loss (FFzE10)

(note 10) 4,050 — 4,050
Paid during the year FRENFIE — (85) (85)
Closing balance RIE—ARHF

at 31 December 2016 +-RA=+—H

HA R AR 8h 74,962 3,755 78,717
Opening balance R-_FE—t&—HA—H

at 1 January 2017 AR 4R 74,962 3,755 78,717
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB B A R

(note 37) (HE£37) 171,915 — 171,915
Provision capitalised in REFEETERE

intangible assets BIEER 3,150 — 3,150
Amortised to consolidated sz aoHERx

statement of profit or loss (FFzE10)

(note 10) 10,086 — 10,086
Paid during the year FREARE = (381) (381)
Closing balance RIE—tH

at 31 December 2017 +=ZA=+—H

HR &8 260,113 3,374 263,487

(@) Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into
by the Group, the Group has the contractual obligations
to maintain the facilities it operates to specified level of
serviceability and/or to restore the plants to a specified
conditions before they are handed over to the Grantors at
the end of the service concession period. These contractual
obligations to maintain or restore the facilities, except for any
upgrade elements, are recognised and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the year.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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(a)

RIBEA R EET B BRI ST
Ehnek - AEBNSHEES
REHQENRE  BRTS
BEMNTRHRBKER, R
RERISIS RS A RE - £
BXBETETAZAE  BH
EEEETEMRE - ZERER
EERENESQNEFEURANR
EERDBRIN DIRFRETE
AEEMREXHNREMHE

S = =
FOBAETE ©



35. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

35. REMBARE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T ARBT T
Profit before income tax S8 ANER) 702,244 516,734
Adjustments for: MUTEBELFAE :
— Allowance for doubtful debts — RERIBE 7,976 18,362
— Amortisation of investment properties —REY = 906 747
— Amortisation of land use rights — T AR 6,593 3,920
- Amortisation of intangible assets — B EE#H 281,561 111,044
— Depreciation of property, - - BER
plant and equipment RiBITE 153,094 94,506
— Share of profit of investments accounted — LR EANERWY
for using the equity method R E &R (23,082) (42,411)
— Other gains - net — Hib U8R (57,354) (8,387)
- Finance costs - net —BE R AR 504,193 220,378
Other income Hbg A (41,790) (24,173)
Change in work capital (excluding the effects EEESEY(TERE
of acquisition and currency translation WS & & OF A BREF
differences on consolidation) EHEENTE)
— Inventories -FE (10,036) (14,649)
— Amounts due from customers for —-MEHNIREEWR
contract works BFMIEA 26,524 (156,469)
— Trade and other receivables and - B 5 RHEMERRIE
receivables under concession arrangements RS E 5
TR FRIR (3,114,822) (1,978,954)
— Trade and other payables - B RHEMEMNRIE 333,398 435,781
— Deferred income —IEFEW A (26,350) 31,353
Cash used in operations BREMARE (1,256,945) (792,218)

EEABRERDERDA
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35. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS (Cont’d)

Net borrowings reconciliation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

35.

REMAREH)

B F R

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARKT T ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEZEEY 2,896,927 4,129,921
Borrowings - repayable within one year B — —F AR ER (4,438,575) (2,608,925)
Borrowings - repayable after one year B — —F L LR (9,349,421) (5,689,554)
Net borrowings EEISEE] (10,891,069) (4,168,558)
Cash and cash equivalents RENRRESEEY 2,896,927 4,129,921
Gross borrowings - fixed interest rates B — B ER= (9,919,404) (5,200,394)
Gross borrowings — variable interest rates ERAERE — B E =R (3,868,592) (3,098,085)
Net borrowings (EEOEE (10,891,069) (4,168,558)
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& Ot R
35. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS (Cont’d) 35. REHARE(H)
(a) Net debt reconciliation (Cont’d) (a) FEERAFHEHE)

Liabilities from
Other assets financing activities
Hit&E REMERHHER
Cashand Borrowings - Borrowings -
cash repayable repayable

equivalents within1year after 1 year Total
ReRBg e ™ -
ZEY 1EMAER 1ENLER CEl

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETR

Net debt as at 1 January 2016 WZE-AE—-A-BH3aK 1672121 (1038355  (2,025960)  (1,392,194)
Cash flows B 2437022  (1429,113)  (3380,896)  (2,372,987)
Foreign exchange adjustments INEEAE 20,778 2,019 (8,918) 13,879
Other non-cash movements HitF B2 e — (143,476) (273,780) (417,256)
Net debt as at 31 December 2016 R-F—7*%+-H=+—H

BB aE 4129921 (2,608,925  (5,689,554)  (4,168,559)
Cash flows B (1,204249)  (718892)  (4520,419)  (6,443,560)

Foreign exchange adjustments INETERE (28,745) 42,788 135,421 149,464
Other non-cash movements HitFEH2E —  (1,153,546) 725,131 (428,415)

Net debt as at 31 December 2017 #R-E—+&+-F=+-A
HFaE 2,896,927 (4,438,575)  (9,349,421) (10,891,069)

EEABRERDERDA 235
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BB RRME

36. COMMITMENTS 36.

(@) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred as of
31 December 2017 is as follows:

7

(a)

BRI

BE-F-—tFt=-A=1+-—
HERTNENRELNERS
HT

As at 31 December
R+-HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tE —F-AF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBTT

Property, plant and equipment, concession M - BERZER
projects and construction projects & IEE
Equity investments ERRE

7,501,972 2,368,788
447,695 2,314,454

(b) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The Group has leased various offices and warehouses under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 and 10 years.

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease rental
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

(b)

RERERE - FAEEERE
HA

AEBRBRAHEEEHEE
HREEZEARLAERARE -
HEHE1Z10FE -

AEBRE R AHELLHEY

BENARRREE ST RERE
M

As at 31 December

wR+ZH=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TRT ARBTT
Within one year —FL R 10,143 7,089
One to five years —ZhRF 12,269 5,846
Over five years HEEE 865 1,123
23,277 14,058
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B IR RME
BUSINESS COMBINATION 37. EBHEH
The Group has completed several business combinations during rEERBE-_Z—tFE+=-A
the year ended 31 December 2017. The acquired businesses have E+-HLEFECERZEER
contributed revenues of RMB758,059,000 and profit for the year e -BWEBABE-_Z—tHF
of RMB2,334,000 to the Group for the period from acquisition +TZA=+—HLHB 2
date to 31 December 2017. Had the business combinations been BEBALAEEBERMBREAR
completed at 1 January 2017, the consolidated statement of profit #£ 758,059,000 T & 4 F A K #
or loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 would 2,334,0007T c MEBKR=—_ZF—+t
show pro-forma revenue of RMB5,286,012,000 and profit for the F—A—BERMK > AEBREBE
year of RMB526,359,000. —E—tF+ZA=+—HLEE

MEHBERREBETRBEREAR
#£5,286,012,000 7T & 4t F] A R #
526,359,000 7T °

Set out below are the summarised information of the completed TX&EIRKR=-_Z—LtE+=A
business combinations during year ended 31 December 2017. E+-HERNWEBSHNBES
£ o
Ning De

Zhang San Ming

Wan Waste JinLiYa

Incineration  Environmental

and Power  Technology

Generation Investment

Bazhou Co. Ltd.* Co. Ltd.*

GNS Keda (‘Ning De”)  (“San Ming”) Others
(note 16(a) (i))  (note 16(b) (i) (note a) (note b) (note ¢) Total
B =B
ol £HE

WARKERE  REMERE
BRAR BRAR

GNS Eii#E (r=&)) (=) Aft
(EE16(a)() (B3 16(0)) (Wa) (Hb) (M) &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR#TR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Consideration: KE:
-~ Fair value of 50% equity interest in ~EBIEEHGNS 50%

GNS held by the Group RENLTE 748,750 = = = = 748,750
- Fair value of 43.75% equity interest in - H&E BB Bazhou Keda

Bazhou Keda held by the Group REEER43.75% = 43,464 = = = 43,464
- Cash -B% 943,420 21,400 192,537 186,631 212,449 1,556,437
- Unpaid consideration -*RfE - — 21,393 89,890 36,856 148,139
Total Consideration BRE 1,692,170 64,864 213,930 276,521 249,305 2,496,790

ERABRERBERAA D37
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BB RRME

37. (¥BEH#E)

Bazhou
GNS Keda Ning De San Ming Others
(note 16(a) (i))  (note 16(b) (i) (note a) (note b) (note ¢) Total
GNS Bi#E B =M 2
(F&E16(a)())  (FEE 16(b)() VET) (Fth) ED) @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETz  AREfR
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired  FIRETHAIBEENATE

Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEN 93,078 42,365 3,202 21,305 26,686 187,536
Trade and other receivables 5 REMENTE 313,128 79217 20,826 18,818 135,026 567,075

Receivables under service RS EERH T HENGE
concession arrangements 848,826 — 210,111 — 178,676 1,237,613
Intangible assets BlEE 1,773,580 - 163,954 497,707 122,885 2,558,126
Deferred income tax assets EEfENaE 47,809 - - - - 47,809
Other assets EfEE 4418 452 164 555 35,302 40,891
Borrowings &5 = = (82,312) (122,129) (900) (205,341)
Amounts due to the Group EfAEEHE (1,174,743) = = = - (1,174,743)
Trade and other payables AR EMENTE (22,426) (23,195) (67,151) (65,141) (215,532) (393,445)
Provision BE (134,878) = = (87,037) = (171,915)
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFEHEE (249,760) () (34,864) (6,809) (17,831) (309,269)
Deferred income WA (2432) = = = (797) (10409)
Total identifiable net assets RATEELE 1,497,500 98,804 213,930 307,269 257,235 2,374,828
Non-controlling interests FEkER = (39,560) = (30,748) (21,143) (91,451)
1,497,500 59,334 213,930 276,521 236,092 2,283,311
Goodil EE 194,670 5,530 - - 13,213 213,413
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

(@)

Ning De is principally engaged in solid waste treatment in
the PRC. On 24 August 2017, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of Ning De from an independent third party.

San Ming is principally engaged in solid waste treatment in
the PRC. On 22 September 2017, the Group acquired 90%
equity interest of San Ming from an independent third party.

Others represent five completed acquisitions in water supply,
wastewater treatment and solid waste treatment industry in
the PRC. The fair value of acquired net assets and goodwill
of these business combinations are not individually material
to the Group.

Acquisition-related costs of above business combinations
were charged to the administrative expenses and were not
individually material to the Group.

The goodwill of RMB213,413,000 arises from a number
of factors including expected efficiencies in the business
of the subsidiaries after the acquisitions, which cannot be
separately recognised as an intangible asset.

BB RRME

37. (¥BEH#E)

(@)

BERFREPENREEEER

IE CTRIE-—tFNAZTH
 REER-EBBYE=R

Hﬁlﬂﬁ"”’EE’MOO%HﬂfE °

—HEEETEREEREE

ﬁ cRIE-—tFRAZ=FZ=
 REER-BBYE=S

Wﬁ:%mw%ﬁﬁ

HApsERE K - 5KER
LUK Bl ERIEITRMNAIRD 58
BB - FTEEEFE
MR FERZEXEBSHNE
BHAKEMSLETEK -

LIRS OB KA
ST HIRESAEE
MELRERK -

AR%213,413,000 THI &
DELXBEZEREZ  BREWE
ﬁmgﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬁzs

TEEDREABELEE -
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BB RRME

38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. TEHBALS
(a) Major shareholders (@) EFERR
The following entities are the major shareholders of the UTERRAATNEERR
Company
Place of

Name incorporation Ownership interests (%)
& NGRS BN =

2017 2016

(b)

(c)

Yunnan Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.

(“Yunnan Province Water”) PRC 30.07 30.07
EHEABEXRREAERAA(EFEKRHE )
Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.

(“Beijing OriginWater”) PRC 24.02 24.02
LREKERBEROBERAR (LREKRD)

Subsidiaries (b) HKEAT
Interests in principal subsidiaries are set out in note 14. FEWB A TR IR
14 °
Name and relationship with other major related parties (c) BEHAIFNEBEREEMTER
BHHER
Name Relationship
=g aRES
Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Shareholder of Yunnan Province Water
Investment Co., Ltd. (“YMCI”)
EMEETERREEEERAR(EEHREE ] ZEEKBHRER
GNS Joint venture of the Group before 15 March 2017
TEER-—Z—tF=ATHHBAINEGEDLE
Caiyun International Investment Limited Fellow subsidiary
(“Caiyun Investment”)
FEERREARAB(EERE ] CENE NG
YCIH State-owned enterprise
EHEERREEREEBRA AR BBEEE

HB AR ([ ZErmERERE D (TYCIH])

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Key management personnel compensation

Key management includes executive directors. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for
employee services is shown below:

SO RRMEE

38. FTEMBARSH(H)

(d)

EEEEASHMH

FREEASEEHITES -
RETRBIVEAREE NN
ZATHIRB 0T -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016

—F—tF —E-RE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T R ARBTFT

Short-term employee benefits SEHIE TER 14,019 7,740

Transactions with other state-owned enterprises

In accordance with HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”,
state-owned enterprises and their subsidiaries, directly or
indirectly controlled by the PRC Government are regarded
as related parties of the Group.

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by state-owned enterprises. During the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had
transactions with state-owned enterprises including, but
not limited to, operating services, construction services and
equipment sales.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business on terms comparable to those
with other entities that are not state-owned. The Group
has established its pricing strategy and approval process
for purchase and sales of products and services. Such
pricing strategy approval processes are consistently applied
regardless of the counterparties are state-owned entities or
not. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that none
of these transactions are material related party transactions
that require separate disclosure except for the transactions
with YCIH.

(e)

BEHMEAELEETHRS

RIEEBEHERISE 2457 B8
BAME] BPERFERE
AR NERA R R A
BARWARANEE R
7 e

REBEHBEARFEERMNE
BRBHEEER - RBEZ
E—tERZZ-ARE+ZA
=t+—-BLFE  ~EELEH
BELETHRZEBEVGET

RA)ELRE ERBBR
REIHE
BERGZHEAEENREE

BBRPRAIEAMIEREE
B PR AT 3L & EL B AV TR ST -
ZIK%.E,L_L BB Eun&ﬁﬁﬁ%
WEBR RAERE - ﬁ@
E1f%fﬂ£?tt/ﬁmﬁiﬁlﬁﬂ
THREFHIRE %lﬁ;
°Wﬂ“%ﬁﬁ%@%m5
BE ARAESRALER
%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ TRYEENEX
BEEARS  HHEEEERE
BETHRZZERM -
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SO B RRM

38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

U]

(9)

242

Significant transactions with other related parties

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Group had the following significant transactions with related
entities which are carried out on terms agreed with the
counter parties in the ordinary course of business:

38. FTEMBARSH(H)

( EBREMEBINEIEXRS

REBEE-ZZ—tERZZE—X
F+-ZA=+—HLEFE K
SEHEEHEREREFINE
BEKARE DT WIEFGET
TUTEARRS :

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTFT ARETT
Sales and purchases of goods and services $HERBES MK R
— Sales of goods and services to YCIH - HHEERRRET
ETHERER 762,529 732,678
- Sales of goods and services to - HHEEmERBRET
other related parties HibREEE S 3,133 4,670
— Purchase of construction services REEEREHR
from YCIH BERERY 1,410,359 697,604
- Purchase of goods from Beijing iR EKREEES M
OriginWater 10,813 4,821
Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/ (90 HHEE BEERRBRBEL
purchases of goods and services HiERENNETELEE

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the
reporting period in relation to transactions with related
parties:

UTBRREEL RS R
¥R E AR o REA

As at 31 December

W+ZA=+—8
2017 2016
—E—tH —E-RE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Trade receivables for sales of goods HEE MR R
and provision of services g 5 ERFRIE
- YCIH - EEEREE 1,961,545 1,012,993
- Other related parties =il el 23,228 11,692
1,984,773 1,024,685
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& Ot R
38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 38. TERMBAXRS(H)
(9) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/ (0) H¥HE BESRREBBE4L
purchases of goods and services (Cont’d) H R EANEELEER(E)
The balances of trade receivables from sales of goods HEERmRRENE 5 BT
and services are mainly denominated in RMB, unsecured, ENESREEUARKETHE -
interest free and with credit periods of 90 to 180 days. EEB RERZEZHFNE

180 KHEEH -

As at 31 December

R+-ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tF —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTFT ARETT
Prepayments for purchase of goods BEEMm
and services BR#% 2 TR K
- YCIH - EEEREHE 57,723 —
- Beijing OriginWater —dbEmEKIR 6,872 25,064
- YMCI - EFEER 3,000 —
67,595 25,064
As at 31 December
N+ZA=+—8
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT
Trade and other payables for purchase BEEMRBREZES
of goods and services H At FRIE
- YCIH - EREREE 1,269,228 528,526
- Beijing OriginWater —EREKIR 3,096 3,096
— Other related parties — H{bRAE S 52 52
1,272,376 531,674
Less: non-current portion of trade and W BSRHEA
other payables FE(SFRIERFERN B SR 5 (1,219,717) —
Current portion of trade and other payables & 5 &k H b fE{f FIEH
BNEAER 2 52,659 531,674

ERABRERBERAT 243
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SO B RRM

38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 38.

(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/
purchases of goods and services (Cont’d)

The trade and other payables for purchase of goods and
services are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free,
and are settled in accordance with agreed terms with related

ITEFBARS(HE)

(9)

TERHE BEERRERE
EENEHRENNERZLER
()

BEERKRZ2ES REA
BARREUAREHE - BE
%l RIRBERABE 2

parties. R EARTRIRRR -
As at 31 December
R+ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—F—tH —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Advance from customers for sales of BEFHEEER
goods and provision of services R #% = 225K
-YCIH - EFERER 2,000 502
— Other related parties vl 121 —
2,121 502
38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 38. FEREEARF(4E)
(h) Borrowings to/from related parties (h) MBS ER

()  Borrowings to GNS ()  1B7A# GNS
2017 2016
—F—t& —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARETT
Opening balance at 1 January Ww—H—BE &S 482,378 =
Payment (NEN 773,494 476,488
Receipt e (86,394) —
Interest charged FE 5,265 5,890
Acquisition of GNS iz 88 GNS (1,174,743) —
Closing balance at 31 December W12 A31 B R & & = 482,378

The borrowings granted to a joint venture are
denominated in USD, unsecured, and bear interest at
4.80% per annum.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B IR RME
38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 38. FEMBARE(E)
(h) Borrowings to/from related parties (Cont’d) (h) MBS ER(E

(i) Borrowings from Caiyun Investment (i) EIEEREEH

2017 2016

—F—tF —E—RE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥TT ARBTT

Opening balance at 1 January Ww—HRA—BEM&Ee 208,799 —
Receipt e 1,326,536 416,220
Repayment B (737,479) (207,980)
Interest charged T8 5,064 1,530
Interest paid 2IFE (4,582) (971)
Exchange gains B 5 U & (13,089) —
Closing balance at 31 December w12 A 31 BEARE & 785,249 208,799

The borrowings granted from Caiyun Investment are
denominated in USD, unsecured, and bear interest at
4.20% per annum and repayable in 2020.

FERENBRRUE
TUEHE  |IER - W ¥
HEESF4.20% 1 F
B WHE 2020 £ {EE -

() Funds to/from related parties () HEEREZINES
()  Funds to Beijing OriginWater () HBUAREZEKEHES
2017 2016
—F—tH —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Beginning of the year £ — —
Payment (NEN 24,311 —
Receipt W — >
Closing balance at 31 December Hm12 831 B R&EH 24,311 —

(i)

Funds to other related parties

(i) HEEETHEZ

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RE

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥TT ARET T

Beginning of the year F4 6,403 6,136
Payment (B 700 1,237
Receipt e 2 (970)
Closing balance at 31 December ®12 A 31 HEA R &84 7,101 6,403

EEABRERDERDA
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BB RRME

38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(i) Funds to/from related parties (Cont’d)

(i) Funds to other related parties (Cont’d)

The funds grant to Beijing Originwater and related
parties are denominated in RMB, unsecured and
interest free and repayable on demand.

(i) Funds from related parties

38. FTEMBARSH(H)
() EBREBELINES(H)

(i) HBEEETHEL (H)

) db 58 KR & B B 75
REMNESYUBREX
FTARY  HEER &
ME - AHEEER -

(i) HKEBEHHHEE

2017 2016

—E—tf —E-REF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBET T AR®T T

Beginning of the year E: 20| 1,754 1,754

Receipt e 73 —

Repayment [ty (300) .

Closing balance at 31 December R12 A31 HEARE & 1,527 1,754
The funds grant from related parties are denominated EBEZS AN ESEITY

in RMB, unsecured and interest free and repayable on

DARBE B

demand. R EBANE AEESE
* o
(i) Guarantee (i) ®RH
As at 31 December
N+=-A=+—8H
2017 2016
—EF—tF —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Guarantee provided by YMCI in respect EmHREERAEE
of the perpetual capital instruments KAMERT ARMEHN
of the Group ER 1,200,000 —
Guarantee provided by other related HAh @@ A B A EE
parties in respect of the bank borrowings IRITEREHNER
of the Group — 7,500
1,200,000 7,500

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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BB RRME

39. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY 39. ApNEIEEERR

As at 31 December

wR+=-A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARET T
ASSETS BiE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERZE 138,516 97,947
Receivables under service RIS FEELTHETH
concession arrangements FEURFRIE 84,021 53,685
Investments in subsidiaries REB R BRIRE 6,089,337 4,422 838
Intangible assets B EE 3,314 5,885
Investments accounted for using the equity method bA#Ez 2 A BRRVIRE 573,698 37,341
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EHAEWRIE 7,038 7,015
Prepayments FEFRIE 731,059 985,337
Available-for-sale financial assets aHtHEsmEE 76 76
Deferred income tax assets EIEFIEHERE 64,701 34,028
7,691,760 5,644,152
Current assets MEEE
Inventory 7E 126 —
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HMEKRRIE 5,368,158 2,739,293
Prepayments FEFRIE 5,566 2,047
Restricted cash FREIRE 15,000 —
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 957,191 2,517,709
6,346,041 5,259,049
Total assets BEE 14,037,801 10,903,201
EQUITY W
Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders ARREEERE
of the Company FELH#E
Share capital i 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves (note a) HibfE e (MiEEa) 2,264,327 2,238,581
Retained earnings (note a) REB BRI (M a) 162,715 134,313
3,620,255 3,566,107
Perpetual capital instruments KAEARTERE 1,200,000 2,000,000
Total equity e 3% 4,820,255 5,566,107
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B Ot IR R M
39. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) 39. ARFREEEBRE)
As at 31 December
R+=ZH=+—H
2017 2016
—_E—tf —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARKTT AREBT T
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings EEN 4,027,743 2,649,744
Trade and other payables B R HEMENRE 718,192 —
Deferred income IEAEUA = 600
Deferred income tax liabilities EILFTSHiEs 2,971 —
4,748,906 2,650,344
Current liabilities REAE
Borrowings (B 3,282,179 1,987,367
Trade and other payables B S RHMEARIE 1,186,461 699,383
4,468,640 2,686,750
Total liabilities wam 9,217,546 5,337,094
Total equity and liabilities ERaEBE 14,037,801 10,903,201

ARBEERERBALNTAESS
REZB-NF=ZA=+BHLEL

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company on 26 March 2018 and was signed on

its behalf. HERAZEE -
Dai Richeng Yang Fang
BHEHK BhA
Director Director
5% 2=
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B IR RME
39. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) 39. ARFREEEBRE)
(a) Movement of reserves and retained earnings (a) REELBRRBER

Capital Statutory Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
RARGE EERE REEA &5t
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZF-~E-R—-B&4% 2,195,657 28,299 121,834 2,345,790
Profit for the year EERR - 146,425 146,425
Transfer to statutory reserve BRLERE - 14,625 (14,625) -
Dividends for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ-F-RE+-A=+-REERE = - (119,321) (119,321)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-F-AE+ZRZ+-REH 2,195,657 42924 134,313 2,372,894
Balance at 1 January 2017 BECE2-tE-A-A4H 2,195,657 42,924 134,313 2,372,894
Profit for the year EERT = = 173,469 173,469
Transfer to statutory reserve BRLERE = 25,746 (25,746) -
Dividends for the year ended 31 December 2016  HZ_ZE-~E+-A=t-HLEERE — — (119,321) (119,321)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RIE-tE+ZB=+-RER 2,195,657 68,670 162,715 2,427,042
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SO B RRM

40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40. EEEFIRER

EEREENHME

AEEENBARDAMEA
ESRESNMES250T ¢

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a)

The emoluments of individual director and supervisors’ of
the Company paid/payable by the Group are presented as

Mr. Jiao Jun (Resigned on

EELE(R-Z—tF

below:
() For the year ended 31 December 2017 0 BE—ZFE-—tFE+=AH
=1 —HIEFE
House
Salaries, allowances
Name of directors/ allowances  and other
supervisors B /EERS Fees andbonus  benefits  Pension Total
HE  ERER
e EBRTL REMER Big @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETRT AR¥EFR AR®Tn AR¥TR
Executive Directors WITESE
Mr. Yu Long Fhets 80 3,130 107 = 3,317
(chief executive officer) (THEE)
(Resigned on (R=2—tENA
28 August 2017) ZT\HER)
Mr. Liu Xujun (Resignedon ~ ZIfBE L4 80 1,022 % = 1,196
28 August 2017) (R=E—-t&ENA
ZH\HER)
Mr. Huang Yunjian (Resigned EERLE(R-E—+F 80 1,268 % = 1,442
on 28 August 2017) NAZT\HEH)
Mr. Yang Fang (Appointed ~ BAE4E(R=E—+& 160 1,143 101 — 1,404
on 28 August 2017) NAZ+N\AfEaw)
Mr. Dai Richeng HAREE 480 290 107 = 877
Non-executive Directors *  JEH{TEEH*
Mr. Xu Lei (Resigned on FEEE(R=2—1F — — - - -
24 February 2017) Z A=t HEH)
Ms. Li Bo (Appointed on FRuUL(R=B-& - - - - -
28 August 2017) NABZ+N\BfEaw)
Mr. He Yuanping R &4 = = = = =
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi B L — — — — —

28 August 2017) NA=+\BEHR)
Mr.Yang Tao (Appointed ~ BEE4E(R=E—+& - — - - -
on 28 August 2017) NBZ+N\BfEw)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

(a)

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont’d)

(0

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO RRMEE

40. EEREFIREZS(E)

(a)

EEREENME(F)

Hh BE—ZFE-—tFE+=AH
=+—HIFEE)

House
Salaries, allowances
Name of directors/ allowances  and other
supervisors B /EERS Fees andbonus  benefits  Pension Total
He  HERER
weE EMRRL REMER BHE st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFR AR®TRT AR%TRT
Supervisors Ex
Ms. Yang Chuanyun BlIEzt 294 = 69 = 363
Ms. Wang Shugin (Resigned ETHEZT(R=E—+F - - - - -
on 28 August 2017) NAZT\HER)
Ms. Li Bo (Resigned on FRaL(R=F-1F — - - - -
28 August 2017) NAZH\BER)
Mr. Tan Hairui Fisk i 36 — = — 36
Mr. Cao Jinwen (Resigned ~ EBE X4 (RZZ—+F 24 = = = 24
on 13 August 2017) NBt=HER)
Ms. Tang Shuang ERut 251 — 24 — 275
Ms. Xu Cuifen (Appointed on  BEZ 2+ (R=E—+F — — - - -
28 August 2017 and NAZ T N\BEGIER
resigned on 15 “E-tF+-A
November 2017) TR HERE)
Mr. Long Limin (Appointed on  BEFIR 4 (R=B—+ & - - - - -
28 August 2017) NAZ+N\AfEaw)
Mr. Zhu Zhen (Appointed on kiR EE(R=E—+ 5 — - - - -
28 August 2017) NAZTN\BER)
Independent
Non-executive Directors B JEHiTES
Mr. Ma Shihao FHREE 100 — — — 100
Mr. Ren Gangfeng (Resigned #i# %4 (R=E—+F 66 — — — 66
on 28 August 2017) NAZ+/\BER)
Mr. Hu Song HREE 100 — — — 100
Mr. Kwok For Chi BRELE 179 = = — 179
1,930 6,853 596 — 9,379
ERABRERDERL T
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& Ot R
40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d) 40. EEEF R EH)
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont’d) (a) EEREEMNME(F)
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2016 (i) BE=—ZFE-—~NE+=H
=F—HILEFE

House

Salaries, allowances

Name of directors/ allowances  and other
supervisors BE/EEHE Fees and bonus benefits ~ Pension Total

8. ERER
HE EERTA REMER Bikg st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARMFR AR®Tn ARET:x

Executive Directors WITESE
Mr. Yu Long (chief FREE 120 1,580 106 — 1,806
executive officer) (THER)
Mr. Liu Xujun LMELE 120 508 97 — 745
Mr. Huang Yunjian BERESE 120 544 97 = 761
Mr. Dai Richeng (Appointed ~ E{H M L4E 480 = 55 = 535
on 7 June 2016) (R=B-~ExAtH

0]

Non-executive Directors *  JFHITES* — = — — -
Mr. Xu Lei (Resigned on MEEL(NZE—+E . _ _ _ _

24 February 2017) ZAZTHmEEHT)
Mr. Wen Jianping (Resigned (&I %4 — — — — —

on 17 March 2016) (ZE-~"E=RB+tH

BHE)

Mr. He Yuanping T LEE — — — — —
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BAEEE = = — — !
Mr. Jiao Jun EERLE = = = = =
Supervisors B
Ms. Yang Chuanyun BlELxL 221 == 64 — 285
Ms. Wang Shugin IHExt — — — — —
Ms. Li Bo FRaL — — — = —
Mr. Tan Hairui Fbisk b 36 — - — 36
Mr. Cao Jinwen EEBRLLE 36 — = — 36
Ms. Tang Shuang BREat 194 — 39 == 233
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40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont’d) (a)

(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Cont’d)

Salaries,

Name of directors/ allowances
supervisors BE/EEHE Fees and bonus
ol

e RMRREL
RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR

BB RRME

40. EEREFIREZS(E)

EEREENME(F)

(i) BE=-F—AFE+=H
= —FEE)

House

allowances

and other
benefits Pension Total

ERBEM

R E iR Bite st

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTRT ARETR

Independent BUEHITES
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ma Shihao BtZE4 100 — — — 100
Mr. Ren Gangfeng EmELE 100 = — — 100
Mr. Hu Song I EE 100 = = = 100
Mr. Kwok For Chi BRELE 179 — — — 179
1,806 2,652 458 — 4,916

There were no fees or other emoluments payable to
non-executive directors during the year.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits (b)

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: none).

Consideration provided to third parties for making (c)
available directors’ services

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2016: nil).

Y FRAERNEHT
EENRERNEME
B o

EENRAENRERER

BE_ZE—tF+A=+—
HIEEE » EEEC WEE
5 U B AT 3R R 18 ) S B B AR
FM(ZB—RE  E) o

MENEERBEMEAE=711
HRE

BE-Z—tHF+A=1+—
BLEFE  ANEEWLERRER
EERBFOEAE=FZAK
B(ZB—RF HE) -

EEABRERDERDA
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SO B RRM

40. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

As at 31 December 2017, there are no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors (2016: nil).

The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors
in respect of their services as directors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2017 were RMB1,325,000
(2016: RMB1,319,000). The aggregate emoluments paid to
or receivable by directors in respect of their other services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
RMB7,356,000 (2016: RMB3,007,000).
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40. EEREFIREZS(E)

(d)

FRNES EENZEHE
ErREAEEEAXZANE
;o EERRHARZNER

AZE—+tFE+ZA=1+—
B #BEUES EE0NTE
HrEREEERATREAN
BN EERRHEMRZZH
(ZEB—REFHE) -

EERMERBE-ZE—+
F+ZA=+—HLEE
EIARATESCEEMNS
EURNEFEMAEAARY
1,325,000 T(= & — N F -
ARM13190007T) £E
REERBE—ZT—+tE+=
A=+—BILEEHEEALN
AEKREHNEGRECER
BN AEA AR
7,356,000 T(ZFE—RE : A
R 3,007,000 7T) °



CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR

LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Five-year Financial Summary

EEHEHME

HRAEHEZREGSWER

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
5t —E-RE —T-1F —FT-NF —F-=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TRT AR®BTR AR®BTrR AR®BTr AR%TR
Revenue hé= 5,142,242 2,865,890 1,558,394 1,100,761 688,734
Gross profit ER 1,304,724 879,500 507,622 333,637 260,739
Profit before income tax Fri8®ianER 702,244 516,734 382,869 226,157 252,233
Profit for the year FERRF 544,000 414,266 317,443 187,896 200,856
Profit for the year attributable to: LA A TFEAEIER]
Ordinary shareholders
of the Company RAREBERRR 422812 388,093 285,853 166,587 193,683
Total comprehensive income FEREHENE
for the year k] 695,742 389,746 318,419 187,804 200,856
Total comprehensive UTFALEGEZ2E
income attributable to: WEE4a%E -
Ordinary shareholders
of the Company KAREBERRR 574,554 363,573 286,829 166,495 193,683
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET MREHEEARR
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—F—tf —F-F —F-1F —F-NF —T-=F%
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TRT AR®BTR AR®BTrR AR®BTrR AR%TrR
Assets BE
Total non-current assets FREEELTE 19,092,066 12,972,400 6,677,868 3,525,728 2,233,718
Total current assets RBEEAL 8,003,983 7,085,974 2,924,423 1,494,211 1,323,691
Total assets BEERE 27,096,049 20,058,374 9,602,291 5,019,939 3,557,409
Equity and liabilities EGRaRE
Equity attributable to: AT Efh s
Ordinary shareholders
of the Company RAREBERRR 4,536,565 4,240,569 4,058,423 2,384,246 2,068,251
Perpetual capital instruments KABARIA 1,200,000 2,000,000 — — —
Non-controlling interests IR 949,384 1,005,890 884,189 337,078 208,153
Total equity AR 6,685,949 7,246,459 4,942,612 2,721,324 2,276,404
Non-current liabilities FREEE 12,490,571 7,111,213 2,469,257 1,080,945 330,216
Current liabilities pEI=E 7,919,529 5700,702 2,190,422 1,217,670 950,789
Total liability aEesE 20,410,100 12,811,915 4,659,679 2,298,615 1,281,005
Total equity and liabilities BEEREE 27,096,049 20,058,374 9,602,291 5,019,939 3,557,409
EMABRERGERAA
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report
RIE - HERERHRE

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

In order to enable stakeholders (including shareholders, investors,
regulatory authorities, customers, employees, partners and
communities) to understand the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) policies, measures and performance of the Group, the Group
has prepared this ESG report (the “Report”) that covers wastewater
treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment of the Group during
the Report Period according to the ESG Guide in Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules.

The board of directors of the Group is responsible for evaluating and
determining the environmental, social and governance risks relating to
the issuer and it has included the ESG matters in the risk management
and internal monitoring system of the Group. Both the management
and staff of the major subsidiaries and functional departments have
participated in preparing the Report, assisting the Group to review its
operations and identify relevant ESG matters as well as evaluating the
importance of the above to our businesses and to each stakeholder.
The table below sets out a summary of the ESG matters of significance
to the Group during the Reporting Period as set out in the Report:
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report
RIE - HERERHRE

ESG Guide Abstract ESGHE5IIRE Significant ESG Matters EXESGEH

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RiE

A1. Emission Al. BERR) e Exhaust gas, wastewater, EER, + BEok & [ B2 i 38 2 ik
solid waste treatment and  HERK
carbon emission

A2.Use of Resources A2. BIRER e Energy and water BERRIHFZEBEMR
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Since its inception, Yunnan Water has been specializing in the
field of environmental protection and providing customers with
stable, high-quality, customized and integrated solutions and
core technology integration services in the areas of water supply,
wastewater and solid waste treatment. The Group actively plays
its role as corporate citizen to fulfill its environmental protection
responsibility, strives to improve the eco-environmental quality,
promotes sustainable development, creates eco-friendly cities
with technologies and funds and forges ahead with a strategic
positioning as a leading municipal environmental protection
integrated services provider in China.

The Group believes that it is crucial to comply with applicable
environmental laws, regulations and policies for the long-
term development and success of the Group. Therefore, we
continue to keep abreast with the policy guidance of the industry,
analyze the latest applicable environmental protection laws,
regulations, policies as well as the best domestic and foreign
practices, and timely update our policies and procedures in
relation to environmental protection to ensure our environmental
management is in line with the latest standards.

The Group is actively participating in environmental protection. All
the Group’s subsidiaries are required to strictly comply with the
Group’s internal management system in relation to environmental
protection in order to meet the relevant legal requirements.
The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
environmental laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

The information disclosed in the Report covers 104 water supply,
wastewater and solid waste treatment project of the Group in the
PRC during the Reporting Report (excluding the Group’s newly
constructed projects in 2017 and projects outside the PRC).
See sections below for detailed information on emission and
discharge.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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A1. Exhaust gas, wastewater, solid waste treatment and carbon
emission

As a pollution control enterprise, the Group is always
committed to complying with relevant environmental
systems and rules in every production process. Besides,
it incorporates sustainable development as the guiding
principle in the decision-making process, takes the
environmental impact of projects into consideration and
emphasizes the harmony between mankind and nature
instead of just pursuing economic benefits. The Group
possesses industry-leading membrane technology, enabling
it to effectively increase the quality of both the treated water
and supplied water. Meanwhile, the Group actively develops
new technologies in the field of solid waste treatment and
makes comprehensive reuse of wastes regenerated in the
process of solid waste treatment.

EXHAUST GAS AND WASTEWATER

The Group continues to renovate treatment technologies and to
optimize its production management system, aiming to effectively
achieve the annual emission reduction targets for the operation project,
and therefore has received government recognition and praise.

For odor generated from wastewater treatment, we have planted
greenbelts around the gas sources and collected it for bio-treatment
in order to meet national emission standards. For hazardous gas
generated from solid waste treatment, we have introduced and adopted
international advanced technologies and continued to enhance
the fume treatment equipment to ensure that harmful components
contained in the fume have been effectively removed and meet
emission standards.

Wastewater generated from the operation of sewage treatment and
water supply facilities mainly contains small amount of domestic
sewage and equipment flushing water and will be discharged after
being processed and meeting the required standards. Wastewater
generated from the operation of solid waste treatment facilities have
been recycled or be discharged into the municipal pipe network after
being processed, striving to achieve “Zero Discharge”. After being
processed by our sewage treatment facilities, the volume of COD and
NHNH3-N discharged by us has been reduced by 75,193 ton and 9,604
ton, respectively.
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The table below summarizes the final volume of emission by us during
the Reporting Period:

RARERE - RIFIAVERREABERN
BT

il

Final volume of
emission (ton)!

Type of emission B E A A= (HE)
Particulate matter (PM) R (PM) 20.9
Sulfur oxide (SOx) ALY (SOx) 49.81
Nitrogen oxide (NOx) AEEY (NOx) 121.52
Chemical oxygen demand (COD) {LEFESF £ (COD) 67,387
Ammonia nitrogen (NH3-N) A (NH3-N) 3,143

SOLID WASTE

We actively pay attention to solid waste treatment and continues
to develop solid waste technologies to promote the recycling of
resources. In 2017, the volume of hazardous wastes, medical wastes
and domestic wastes treated in the Group’s solid waste treatment
business was 99,334 ton, 35,776 ton and 175,039 ton?.

The Group also generates solid wastes in its daily operation of
business, which are mainly dewatering sludge generated in the process
of our sewage treatment and water supply and slag and fly ash in the
process of our solid waste treatment. During the Reporting Period, total
volume of such non-hazardous and hazardous wastes was 209,843
ton2.

The Group has comprehensive management system in place for all
kinds of solid wastes generated in the process of its production and
operation, strictly complies with national discharge standards and
adopts effective measures to reduce and properly dispose of solid
wastes.

1 The data covers 104 water supply, wastewater and solid waste treatment
project of the Group in the PRC (excluding the Group’s newly constructed
projects in 2017 and projects outside the PRC).

2 The data covers 104 water supply, wastewater and solid waste treatment
project of the Group in the PRC (excluding the Group’s newly constructed
projects in 2017 and projects outside the PRC).
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For solid wastes such as sludge generated in the process of sewage
treatment and water supply, we strictly follow relevant national policies,
regulations, industry standards and the requirements of environmental
impact assessment report approval to establish comprehensive
production management system and process control system in order
to manage the measurement, transportation and disposal of solid
wastes to prevent secondary pollution. Besides, we possess advanced
membrane technology in the industry and have actively carried out
research and development in order to effectively reduce solid wastes
generated during the operation process.

For solid wastes generated in the process of solid waste treatment,
we classify or seal them with warning signs in strict compliance with
national policies and industry standards. All disposals of such solid
wastes are carried out in strict compliance with national policies and
regulations and requirements of government-approved environmental
impact assessment report.

For the daily office operation, we put great efforts to promote paperless
office and use OA system and video meeting system by connecting
OA platform with various departments of the Company to reduce
waste arising from document circulation. We exercise control over the
purchase of stationeries such as paper, implement strict registration
system in respect of the collection of office supplies and encourage
employees to print on both sides of paper to reduce waste of paper.
We also advocate reuse of office stationaries including envelopes and
file folders etc. Besides, we advocate that disposable tableware should
not be used in the office and that chargeable office equipment should
be purchased in order to reduce usage of disposable batteries.

CARBON EMISSION

Our carbon emission arises mainly from the consumption of electricity.
During the Reporting Period, the electricity-related carbon dioxide
equivalence (CO2e) generated in our business operation amounted to
101,159 ton with a density of 0.0336 ton of CO2e per sq.m.. We have
implemented various energy conservation measures to minimize carbon
emission. Please refer to the section headed “Energy Consumption”
below for details.

R HERERHKRS

HESKEBEERHEKBEPELENTRE
LEEERY  RMABEERRERBE
ERATERE . URIBEREIEF
BHREMERR  fIIETBENEEEE
HERBREEESE  HEERRERYH
AR ERNEBEETREEE  BR
TEEZRFR - BAR - BMAEEEAN
ITEARSTENBREZ ORI - EE
FRRMETHE IFAEBRIEEEE
BREPVERERY -

HUEREEBETNERY  ~5E
BEEREZBRERITEREZRD
BREMATR TEBRREZRESE
W TABERYMNEEYBERRER
BERER RSB ENR R ENE
REERFRE -

HEMAEABENR  RPARDERE
MWD EAPLEBLOARSER
BEESBRS BBOATEEERNFT
A BO T XHREBRPEEN
RE - BB REXANBERET
2= BRLORAmNERBERERENE
AREEGE  XBETEEITED - B
HRRE - RATREEEERABR AN
B EHE XHREME- - K
MEBBRLERERENE-—REE
B FARTHBBETRENRLIR
% B —IRMERHAEA -

BB

BRFNHREREEREMEMNERE - B
MEMME BRMEEMELENTESAE
M= &1 ik 8 2(C02e) %A 101,159
Wi - 2R E £50.0336HEC0O2e BEF TS
KeBMOEmSEMEER - UED
WOEENRBERE - FBHE2ETX
BEREAE—8D -

EEABRERDERDA
2017 FEH/E

261



262

Environmental, Social & Governance Report
RIE - HERERHRE

AZ2. Energy and water consumption

As one of leading integrated service providers in the
municipal wastewater treatment and water supply industries
in Yunnan Province of China, the Group always takes
the environmental, social and governmental impact into
consideration in its core operating practices and strictly
controls the resource consumption of each project according
to the principle of economic operation as well as strives to
increase the resource utilization rate, improve the operation
skills of staff to maximize the resource utilization.

The Group conducts daily monitoring and statistical analysis
for each operating project to have a deep understanding
of the consumption of energy, water resource and raw
materials, determine indicators of the energy consumption,
water consumption and raw materials consumption
and supervise and evaluate each project. In addition to
complying with relevant national laws and regulations, the
Group also has a series of internal monitoring, management
and assessment systems in place, sets the control target
for total energy consumption and gives early warning and
fine-tuning to production projects of which the energy
consumption increases rapidly to ensure that the Group can
utilize the resource in an effective way while maintaining
high-standard operation. The Group has been striving to
achieve maximum benefit for customers and the environment
with the minimal resource consumption, and to promote
clean and sustainable resources and energies.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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ENERGY CONSUMPTION

During the Reporting Period, the energy consumption of the Group was
mainly consumption of indirectly and externally-purchased electricity
amounting to 160,207,091 KWH in total, representing a density of
electricity consumption of 56.34 KWH per sq.m?.

Waste incineration is a way of converting thermal energy to electricity
which realizes “minimization, reclamation and harmlessness” and
avoids a waste of resource. The Group enhances the measures on
stacking fermentation of waste to increase the heat utilization ratio
and also adopts variable frequency regulation for large-power motors
in order to reduce self-consumed electricity and increase the on-grid
energy. Besides, we adopt advanced operating technology during
the incineration process, enhance the thermal insulation effect of the
equipment and recycle thermal energy for secondary use to increase
the re-utilization rate of energy.

In order to increase the energy utilization rate in the process
of wastewater treatment, the Group focuses on technological
transformation for key devices with large energy consumption and low
efficiency, including the lifting pump, air blower and sludge dewatering
system etc. Besides, the Group continuously develops and promotes
new green technologies to reduce energy consumption in technological
link.

In order to increase the energy utilization rate in the process of water
supply, the Group continues to innovate production technology
and improve the production management system to increase water
production rate.

The Group encourages all its staff to save electrical energy during the
production process and office work. The Group also arranges cleaners
to conduct inspections during the non-office hours to ensure that the
electric devices such as lighting equipment has been switched-off. The
Group also sets fuel consumption targets for business vehicles and
encourages all staff to use mass transit.

3 The data covers 104 water supply, wastewater and solid waste treatment
project of the Group in the PRC (excluding the Group’s newly constructed
projects in 2017 and projects outside the PRC).
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WATER CONSUMPTION

We help people in different regions to resolve water supply problems
and provide healthy and sufficient tap water for people. During
the Reporting Period, the volume of water sold by us amounted to
106,789,248 m3 and the volume of wastewater treated by us amounted
to 381,669,641 m33.

The Group requires all its operating projects to use reclaimed water
to clean and cool down equipment if permitted and to water plants in
factories and office areas, so as to reduce water resource consumption
during the production process.

To further reduce water consumption, water in all the solid waste
treatment facilities is fully recycled and reclaimed water is also used
as flushing water in some toilets. The Group also invests resources to
carry out activities such as posting water conservation signs to remind
staff to save water.

b/ $i-F 3
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(m3/sq.m.)

2017(m?) BE

2017 (ELH*R

Indicator BiE (ALAXK) BETLHXK)
Total water consumption * KOEFEMAE 11,964,730 4.208
Total recycled water * RIRFAKBEE 1,921,965 0.676

For our water supply business, we draw water from local sources with
proper government approval. Therefore, we do not have any water
sourcing issues.

PACKAGING MATERIALS

As a water environmental enterprise, we do not use packaging
materials during the daily course of our business operations.

4 The data covers 104 water supply, wastewater and solid waste treatment
project of the Group in the PRC (excluding the Group’s newly constructed
projects in 2017 and projects outside the PRC).
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A3. Environment impact management

The construction of environmental protection projects
will have certain impact on the environment and natural
resources. The Group considers such impact as one of
the key factors when making investment decisions. The
Group performs evaluation of the above-mentioned impact
according to relevant laws and regulations. The Group
applies “simultaneous design, construction and operation”
acceptance check after the project has been put into
operation to meet the requirements of the relevant and
laws, regulations and policies. Besides, the Group has also
developed relevant systems and procedures to monitor
and manage environmental impact of all projects in order to
avoid excessive use and waste of natural resources

As treated wastewater is ultimately discharged to the
environment, the Group strictly adheres to the processing
requirements to guarantee the stable quality of treated water
and reduce its impact on the environment.

The Group has also taken a series of treatment measures
for thermal pollution and noise pollution during the solid
waste treatment process. The Group has adopted advanced
thermal insulation material to provide the heat generation
equipment with thermal insulation treatment in order to
ensure that the heat source point reaches the operation
standard and has also installed blimps for the equipment
that produces noises in order to ensure the noise emission
to reach the standard.

B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employee benefits

Yunnan Water is an enterprise with core technology,
aspiration and social responsibility. It attaches importance
to team construction and employee’s virtues and ethics,
introduces talents by multiple channels and cultivates
talents by using incentive mechanism. The Group has
comprehensive human resources policies covering
recruitment, remuneration, staff welfare and performance
etc.
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We strictly comply with applicable laws, regulations and
rules on labour protection to guarantee equal employment.
We are against any recruitment discrimination concerning
age, marital status, race, social status, religious belief,
disability, gender, sexual orientation or political background
etc. We guarantee equal opportunity and fair treatment for
all level of staff and job applicants in recruitment, internal
transfer, training, promotion, performance evaluation and
remuneration. Besides, we have the same remuneration and
staff welfare structure for both the male and female staff.

The Group carries out open recruitment to encourage fair
competition, make overall assessment and recruitment on
a selective basis. The Group signs labour contracts with
employees in accordance with labour laws and regulations
to effectively protect rights and interests of employees.

With respect to remuneration package, based on the
assessment on values of staff’s posts, guided by the
Group’s operation strategy and with reference to the industry
and the region’s salary level, the Group has established a
competitive remuneration system. Besides, the Group strictly
complies with relevant national laws and regulations and
continuously improves staff welfare, reviews staff’s working
hours, pays various statutory social insurances according to
the laws and ensures that employees are entitled to statutory
holidays. Moreover, employees are also entitled to paid
annual leaves, marriage leaves and maternity leaves.

With respect to performance assessment, the Group has
established a target-oriented employee performance
appraisal system covering various aspects, such as the
performance, ability and attitude etc. of the staff. The
promotion and salary adjustment of staff is determined
by the assessment results. In order to create a healthy,
diversified and harmonious working environment, all the
matters concerning promotion, salary review and post
transfer will be considered in an objective way according to
staff performance and the business condition of the Group.
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The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to human resources
during the Reporting Period.

Occupational health and safety

The Group has established policies and targets on safety,
quality and environmental management, and set up safety
management procedure and systems according to the
Fire Protection Law, Safe Production Law, Environmental
Protection Law, Law on Occupational Diseases Control,
Law on the Safety of Special Equipment, Safety Supervision
Regulations on Special Equipment, Safety Management
Regulations on Special Equipment, Safety Management
Regulations on Hazardous Chemicals of the PRC and
other applicable laws and regulations, prepared and issued
the comprehensive plan on emergency rescue of safety
accidents and emergency plans for safety accidents as
well as established a safe production committee and held
meeting regularly in order to study, deploy and solve existing
problems in the process of safe production management.

We have implemented the safe production responsibility at
each level during the operating management process, and
conducted safety inspection regularly to eliminate hidden
dangers at the production site and prevent the occurrence
of accidents. During the project construction process, the
Group is committed to fulfilling its safety responsibility and to
enhancing safety monitoring in order to ensure construction
safety and provide the staff with a safe working environment.

We actively carry out safety trainings and education for the
staff, regularly enhance the professional skill and safety
awareness of the staff, and strengthen emergency response
capability by carrying out emergency drills on production
accidents. We also provide safety equipment as necessary
in accordance with the polices of the Group and organize
regular physical examinations for the staff in order to prevent
them from occupational harm and occupational diseases.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with laws and regulations in relation to workplace health and
safety during the Reporting Period.
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B3 Staff development and training

The Group has built a scientific and effective training
programme for the overall development of the staff. The
Group prepares training plans according to job nature and
needs and ensures the implementation of the plans, which
bring positive effect to the Group and assist the staff in their
development. The trainings consist of induction training,
business training and continuous education training etc.

INDUCTION TRAINING

To help new staff to get involved as soon as possible, we provide
induction trainings for new staff to introduce the corporate culture and
various internal rules and regulations of Yunnan Water.

BUSINESS TRAINING

Our staff receives different types of training according to their roles
and responsibilities. For instance, the operating centre carried out
professional trainings on wastewater treatment process and water
quality assay and analysis and the project management centre carried
out skill trainings on electricity generation by waste incineration and
destructive distillation process for waste during the Reporting Period.

CONTINUOUS EDUCATION TRAINING

We provide staff with comprehensive training programs according to
the characteristics of different positions in order to help employees
grow rapidly and realize individual value and to contribute to the growth
and development of the Group.

In addition, to further enhance the communication between the
headquarters and the wholly-owned subsidiaries, and strengthen the
executive power of the team, we also organized business trainings
during Reporting Period.

B4  Preventing child or forced labour

The Group carries out recruitment and employment in strict
compliance with the relevant national and local laws and
regulations and rejects the application from any person that
does not meet the requirements of the laws and regulations.
Besides, the Group also conducts background investigations
based on the information provided by the staff and will
reject the application from any person who provides false
information.
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The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with labour laws and regulations in relation to preventing
child or forced labour during the Reporting Period.

B5 Supply chain environmental and social responsibility
management

In accordance with the provisions of the “Bidding and
Bidding Law” and the “Regulations on the Implementation
of Bidding and Bidding”, the Group adopts the principle
of fairness, impartiality and openness to select qualified
suppliers in the form of public bidding on the public resource
trading platform where the project is located. The Group
selects qualified suppliers by bid invitation, comparison
& selection or bid negotiation if the tender amount fails to
reach the requirement as stipulated under the Tendering
and Bidding Law. The Group considers the environmental
& social performance, qualification level, goods provided or
service quality, service adaptability and capability as well
as quoted price in a comprehensive way when selecting
suppliers.

The Group requires relevant internal departments to conduct
evaluation on all the goods and services suppliers during the
year to retain or disqualify the suppliers.

B6 Service quality and standards

The Group attaches great importance to the impact of the
Group’s products and services on the user’s safety and
health. We have developed strict internal management
policies and procedures according to relevant national
policies and standards, aiming to provide high quality
services and keep making progress towards higher
standards.

QUALITY CONTROL

The Group has technologies and industrial experience necessary to
maintain the quality of environmental protection projects at each stage
such as design, investment, construction and operation. For instance,
we adopt advanced online monitoring systems to continuously monitor
the quality of the treated wastewater and supplied water during the
operating process of the wastewater treatment and water supply
facilities. Specifically, the monitoring data of the online monitoring
system for wastewater treatment will be transmitted to the government
platform for pollution sources of the authority in a real-time way for 24-
hour monitoring.

R HERERHKRS

REEBN RS HR I I IRE
IR E2Rp 1k RE SRR H 55 THE
MERERBPCERERSE
E o

B5 HREHRERIESTERE

AEBZBEEREEIR
(BREBREIDIRE &
BAF - DAIE - AFEHEREE
FIRE e AR ERR S F
BERMARAENGNERS
REIER - WAREDRERE
ERENBESE  AKER
BEEBRRABEEE B
FHLERZENHANENS
HBRER - NEBEIHER
BESZRARERTEEE
M BEKYF - RENEYH
RBEE - RBESEREE
N URBESEE -

REEEZF AR IR AR
HAFEMBENRRBEHH
EEETREERNE - BER
B EUHHEENER -

B6 REEEREE

REBESEEREmMMRBE
REFNZZHRENTE &
RE X EBBURRE - FIER
HRHOARERFENRZT » &
HIREHEBENRT - LEE
HESRETEZE -

BEEH

AEBERRBENSRT BRE &2
R BEERERBRHAEEESEMN
BRI R AT R AT AR - Flan o I
SKEBEREKRERABER - KA
SENESE ARG EEEASKER
HAKRMHAKMKE - Heh» SFRKEER
ESENZGENBEEREREZHA
S RRERNGEEEYR  HHE
FR24/NIEEEEE o

EEABRERDERDA
2017 FEH/E

269



270

Environmental, Social & Governance Report
RIE - HERERHRE

Besides, we have obtained international management system
certificates such as ISO9001, 1ISO14001 and OHSAS18001, strictly
abide by the above standards during the process of production and
assembly, and enhance the operation of the systems on quality,
environment, occupational health & safety in order to ensure the quality
of the membrane products manufactured.

We carry out major businesses by strictly complying with following
relevant national/industrial standards and the details of the articles are
in below:

With regard to the wastewater treatment business of the Group,
we are committed to ensuring that the treated wastewater meets
the requirement of Discharge Standard for Pollutants for Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plant (GB 18918-2002) or Environmental Quality
Standard V for Surface Water and that wastewater discharge outlets
are built in strict compliance with the requirements of the environmental
impact assessment report approved by the government for designated
discharge.

With regard to the water supply business of the Group, the Group
attaches great importance to water quality control from the water
source to users since the quality of the water supplied directly affects
public health. Water supplied by the Group meets a number of national
standards, including but not limited to Hygienic Standard for Drinking
Water (GB 5749-2006), Standard for Quality of Urban Water Supply
(CJ/T 206-2005), Technical Regulations on Operation, Maintenance
and Safety of Urban Water Supply Plant (CJJ 58-2009), Technical
Regulations on Operation, Maintenance and Safety of Urban Water
Supply Pipeline Network (CJJ 207-2013) and Urban Water Supply
Services (GB/T32063-2015) in order to ensure reliable and safe water
supply. The Group has established strict quality management systems,
tests and inspects against various indexes on production and operation
and conducts real-time monitoring on the water quality to ensure that
the water quality meets the relevant standards.

With regard to the solid waste treatment business, the services
provided by the Group are governed by Pollution Control Standard
for Domestic Waste Landfill (GB 16889-2008), Pollution Control
Standard for Municipal Waste Incineration (GB 18485- 2014),
Technical Requirements on Medical Waste Incinerator (GB 19218-
2003) and Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Waste Incineration
(GB 18484-2001). We have set up internal control systems and set
discharge limits for incineration plants according to strict operation
conditions and technical requirements in order to minimize the impact
of waste incineration to the environment and to the public.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED
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The Group has prepared comprehensive contingency plans and
emergency mechanisms for potential risks and accidents in the
production process and will immediately activate the contingency plans
in case of emergency happens to ensure users’ safety and health.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations in relation to services quality during the Reporting

Period.

B7 Anti-bribery and anti-corruption

B8

The Group has established a disciplinary commission and a
disciplinary inspection office dedicated for bribery, blackmail
and fraud prevention as well as relevant investigations and
handling. The Group also sets up corruption risk prevention
and control system which demands the senior management
and middle management to report their personal matters. We
also established whistle-blowing channels via telephone and
e-mail to report cases relating to the violation of laws and
the code of conduct. The Group also attaches importance
to corruption risk education, organizes corruption risk
training, holds special lectures on corruption prevention and
enhances the anti-corruption awareness of the staff. Both
the management and the staff are required to follow the
rules of moral conducts of the Group and no cases against
the anti-corruption stipulation and code of conducts has so
far been identified.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations during the Reporting
Period.

Social welfare

Yunnan Water has a strong sense of social responsibility.
As an active advocator for building a learning-oriented
enterprise, the cooperation between the Group and
universities is regarded as a meaningful public welfare
activity for both the community as well as the Group. The
Group makes contributions in implementing the strategy
of developing the country through science and education
and reinvigorating the country through talents development
as well as building a harmonious society while actively
establishing and enhancing the reputation of the Group.
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The Group is enthusiastic about social welfare and charitable
activities. In 2017, based on the needs for the poverty-
relief work of Yulu Village, Yulu Town, Huize Country, Qujin
City, Yunnan Province, we made a donation of money in
an amount of over RMB610,000 to this village to help them
to carry out the village road project. Upon completion of
construction, this project will directly benefit two villages
covering 2,230 villagers in 700 households. In addition,
the Group is also keen on various kinds of donations such
as the “Donating Schoolbags to Schools” public welfare
activity and made a donation of money to the Association
for the Senior of Dayu Village, totalling approximately
RMBS5.65million.

The combination of “reverence, thankfulness and
confidence” has always been the cultural concept advocated
by the Group since its inception. The spirit of actively
undertaking responsibilities, dedication and caring heart
of staff fully reflects our cohesion. Under the guidance of
this concept, the Group will continue to strive to perform its
social responsibility as well as actively hold and participate
in social charity activities.
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